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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

$83.4 million of net income from
Advanta Business Cards versus
$54.2 million in 2005.

17% annual growth in Advanta Business
Cards’ total revenues and 6% annual
growth in operating expenses.

$5.2 billion of managed receivables
versus $3.8 billion at the end of 2005.

Si.1 billion of owned receivables versus
S879 million at the end of 2005.

S12.3 billion in transaction volume,
up 26% from 2005,

I.I million business credit card customers
at year end, up 28%.

$2.86 diluted earnings per combined
common share from continuing
operations versus $4.02 in 2005,

$20.65 book value per combined
common share versus SI8.74 at
December 2005,
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“THANK YOU FOR CALLING ADVANTA.”




WE'RE DOING SOMETHING RIGHT WHEN A VOICE
COACH IS SINGING OUR PRAISES.

MELODIC VOICES

Advanta: Thank you for calling Advanta. My name is C: Ol okay, so I am ahead of the game?

‘anessa. How may | help von?
- r * ™

A: Yes, you're ahead of the game.

Customer: Hi Vanessa, how are you doing? )

C: Well please mark this day down; it may be the

A: I'in fine, sin, and how are yvou? only time. (laughier)
C: Lam good. | think my small bhrain necids some A: (laughter) Right, okay.

adult supervision. Mavbe vou can help me with
some inforwution? A: So, Mr Janovich, your payment {or this month has
been received.

Az T will do my best, sit. How may T help you?

w1 : “CAN YOU SEND ME A BOX OF
C: Well, T just checked my anline statement and |
am u litth: confused by the due date. T know you just CHOCOLATES?”

received a payinent from me around two and a half

weeks ago, but the due date on the online statement C: Okay, greal. Can | expect to sec another slatement
15 just three duys from now and 1 just got back from online soon? 1 don’t want to be late with the next
vacalivn, | do not want to be a naughty boy and send one eithern

in my payvment lale. It seems 10 me that this date
. H . OOKS lk(_! vour statemenls are se H ))I'()\‘il]l'll ,'l 3

came up quite quickly. A; tlooks li e your s ale Is are sent out apy alely

on the Sth of each wmonth. So you can look online for

A: I be happy to check into that for you. May | ask vour next statement on April 5.

your name: please? _

C: So il I don't send a pavment today, that’s okay?

“| THINK MY SMALL BRAIN NEEDS | 4. vuu cir voutre fine.
SOME ADULT SUPERVISION. '
MAYBE YOU CAN HELP ME
WITH SOME INFORMATION?” A: Mr Janovich, is there anything else [ can help

you with?

-
.

31 Okay, great.

C: Yes, Mike Janovich. C

: Can you send me a box of chocolates? (laughter)

Az Mr Janovich, for the protection of your aceount

-

) : {laughter) [ know, doesn’t everyone love chocolate?
may | also have you mother’s maiden name?

-

. 2t Well no, that’s about it. You've done well. Tl just
C: That’s casy. Mom’s maiden name is Burlon. . . o .
’ wail lo receive the next statement and P pay that
- - . one "t Y.

A: Excellent. Thank vou, Me Janovieh. ne prompily
. . . . : Okay, ereal.

Az Sir, alier reviewimng your account il looks like your A:C I\")' gree
pavment for this month has been fulfilled by the S ] ST
. ’ C: Thank vou for smiling.
puvment we received on March 16,
A You're welcome, sie. Thank vou for choosing

Advanta. We do appreciate vour business.

$

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: VANESSA
CALL RECEIVED: 3.30.06
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‘Thix transeripn ned the following trarseripts are actial calls from ddvinta costomizes: o cver: their numes and other pesonal inforowation have been changed o peotect theie privacy,
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Item 1. Business

In this Form 10-K, “Advanta”, “we”, “us” and “our” refer to Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries, unless the context
otherwise requires.

OVERVIEW

Advanta is one of the natton’s largest credit card issuers (through Advanta Bank Corp.) in the small business market.
We issue business purpose credit cards to small businesses and business professionals. Our business credit card
accounts provide approved customers with unsecured revolving business credit lines. Advanta’s exclusive focus on
the small business market, as well as our size, experience in the small business market and commitment to
developing meaningful product offerings and a high level of service tailored to the needs of small businesses,
differentiate us from other credit card issuers. We use our direct marketing and information based expertise to
identify potential customers. Founded in 1951, Advanta has long been an innovator in developing and introducing
many of the marketing techniques that are common in the financial services industry today, including remote
lending and direct mail, affinity and relationship marketing,

At December 31, 2006, we had $1.1 billion of owned business credit card receivables and $4.1 billion of
securitized business credit card receivables.

We own two depository institutions, Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank. We primarily fund and
operate our business credit card business through Advanta Bank Corp., which offers a variety of deposit products
that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) in accordance with applicable FDIC
regulations and limits, We offer credit protection and related products to our customers. A portion of these products
are insurance products that we offer through our insurance subsidiaries, Advanta Life Insurance Company and
Advanta Insurance Company. We also have venture capital investments remaining from our venture capital
activities which had an estimated fair value of $1.0 million at December 31, 2006. In recent years, we have limited
our new venture capital investment activity and we presently do not expect to make significant additional venture
capital investments.

Through the first quarter of 2001, we had two additional lending businesses, Advanta Mortgage and Advanta
Leasing Services. In the first quarter of 2001, we exited our mortgage business and ceased originating new leases in
our small ticket equipment leasing business. See “— Discontinued Operations,”

Prior to February 20, 1998, we also issued consumer credit cards. Under the terms of a contribution agreement,
dated October 27, 1997 and amended on February 20, 1998, we and Fleet Financial Group, Inc. (“Fleet”) each
contributed substantially all of the assets of our respective consumer credit card businesses, subject to liabilities, to a
newly formed entity controlled by Fleet that is now known as Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. This transaction i$
referred to in this Form 10-K as the “Consumer Credit Card Transaction.” We acquired a 4.99% interest in the Fleet
Credit Card Services, L.P. as of the date of closing of the Consumer Credit Card Transaction. At December 31,
2006, our ownership interest in this partnership was approximately 1.3%. As a result of our May 28, 2004 agreeraent
with Bank of America Corp. (“Bank of America”) and the combination of Bank of America’s and Fleet Credit Card
Services, L.P’s consumer credit card businesses, our partnership interest in Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P.
represents an interest in the combined business. See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Advanta Corp. was incorporated in Delaware in 1974 as Teachers Service Organization, Inc., the successor to a
business originally founded in 1951. In January 1988, we changed our name from TSO Financial Corp. to Advanta
Corp. Our principal executive office is located at Welsh & McKean Roads, P.O. Box 844, Spring House,
Pennsylvania 19477-0844. Qur telephone number at our principal executive office is (215) 657-4000.
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Advanta Business Cards
Overview

Advanta Business Cards is one of the nation’s largest issuers (through Advanta Bank Corp.) of business purpose
credit cards to small businesses and business professionals. Our business purpose credit cards are issued and
primarily funded by Advanta Bank Corp. Our strategy in our Advanta Business Cards business segment is to
maximize long-term profits by attracting and retaining high credit quality customers and deepening our customer
relationships.

Our principal objective is to use our information-based strategy to continue to prudently grow our business and
increase our profitability. Based on our experience and expertise in analyzing the credit behavior and characteristics
of our customers, we have developed an extensive database of customer information and attributes. We use this
information, in conjunction with proprietary credit scoring, targeting and other sophisticated analytical models we
have developed, to marketl our product offerings and services to prospective customers and to manage our
relationships with our existing customers. We continually monitor our customer segments and validate our models
based on actual results, and use this information to refine and improve our analytical assumptions. The information
we gather and analyze allows us to market directly to specific customer segments and target prospects effectively.
We also use this information proactively to anticipate customer needs and customize our product offerings 1o meet
those needs and to enhance and maintain our relationships with existing customers.

We use a targeted approach to these market segments, aiming to anticipate the distinct needs of various small
businesses and business professionals and to design product offerings and services that are useful to them, based on
their specific needs. Our strategy also involves strengthening and deepening our relationships with our existing
customers through our rewards programs, promotional offers, on-line account management tools and customer
service.

Under the terms of our cardholder agreement, our business purpose credit cards may be used for business
purposes only. Our business purpose credit cards provide approved customers with access, through merchants;
banks, checks and ATMSs, to unsecured revolving business purpose credit lines.

We are licensed to issue both MasterCard®* and VISA®** business purpose credit cards, although our primary
product offering is a MasterCard® business purpose credit card. MasterCard® and VISA® both license banks and
other financial institutions, such as Advanta Bank Corp., to issue credit cards using their respective service marks
and interchange networks.

We offer a number of benefits that we believe are important to smail businesses and business professionals,
including:

« competitively priced offerings and rewards programs;
» additional cards for employees at no fee with the ability to set individual spending limits;

* on-line, downloadable detailed expense management reports that categorize purchases and itemize charges
for recordkeeping and tax purposes;

« customized cards with the customer’s business name and logo displayed on the front of the card and
customized business checks;

* free on-line account management and account payment; and

*  MasterCard® is a federally registered service mark of MasterCard International, Inc.

** VISA® is g federally registered service mark of Visa International Service Association.




« access to preduct features and services that are designed to meet the needs of our customers on favorable
terms and conditions.

Additional benefits of our MasterCard® and VISA® business purpose credit cards include free auto rental
insurance, free purchase protection service for a specified time period and several free emergency assistance and
referral services. We are continually looking for innovative ways to tailor products to the needs of small businesses
and business professionals.

We offer rewards programs with most of our business purpose credit cards. Under our rewards programs,
customers may earn either cash back rewards or business rewards that can be redeemed for travel, gift certificates or
merchandise, based on net purchases charged on their business credit card accounts,

As a participant in the MasterCard® and VISA® associations, Advanta Bank Corp. receives interchange fees as
partial compensation for taking credit risk, absorbing fraud losses and funding credit card receivables for a limited
period prior to account billing. The interchange fees are paid to us by merchant banks, based on the purchase
activity of our customers. In addition to interchange income, we generate revenue through interest earmned on
outstanding balances, balance transfer fees, cash usage fees and other fees. We also generate fees and revenues
through products and services offered to our business credit card customers such as specialty credit-related
insurance, other credit protection products and services and other products relevant to small businesses.

For 2006, 94% of Advanta’s total revenues were derived from Advanta Business Cards as compared to 82% for
2005 and 98% for 2004. For 2005, Advanta’s total revenues also included the gain on transfer of consumer credit
card business. See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for additional segment financial information
about Advanta Business Cards and Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for further information about
the gain on transfer of consumer credit card business.

Origination

We originate, directly and through the use of third parties, substantially all of our business credit card accounts using
direct marketing techniques. Our sources for potential customers include credit reporting agencies, lists from data
compilers and customer lists from establishments that have a small business customer base. We also acquire
customers through our stratégic relationships with other organizations serving the small businesses market. In an
effort to expand our customer reach, we regularly test new sources and channels for identifying potential customers.

. We target prospects for our business purpose credit cards using relevant information from the sources described
above, historical solicitation data and our proprietary segmentation methods. Our targeting models and procduct
offerings are continually updated to reflect changes in the competitive environment. We originated approximately
371 thousand new business credit card accounts during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Underwriting

We have developed sophisticated models for assessing the creditworthiness of applicants. Using a proprietary credit
scoring system, we evaluate common applicant characteristics and their correlation to credit risk. We regularly
validate and update our scoring models to maintain and enhance their predictive power.

On the application for our business purpose credit card, we reguest information about the individual signing
the application (the “signing individual”) and the business. Generally, under the cardholder agreement for our
business purpose credit card, the signing individual (typically an owner or authorized officer of the business) and the
business are jointly and severally liable for all transactions on the account. On these accounts, we may consider
credit-related and other relevant data about both the signing individual and the business in our assessment of the
creditworthiness of potential customers. Through the application process, we verify the applicant’s identification
information and collect information about the applicant’s business. This information, combined with credit reports
received from external credit reporting agencies and other data sources, forms the basis for our decision to extend
credit. The credit line size we offer varies and is ultimately determined based upon the information we receive
regarding the credit history and creditworthiness of the business and signing individual. In other cases, however, we
offer our business purpose credit card to business professionals. For these accounts we consider relevant data only
about the signing individual in our credit assessment because on these accounts only the signing individual is liable.
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Pricing

Our product offerings are competitively-priced and typically include promotional pricing and rewards. We design
our product offerings to selectively attract and retain high credit quality customers and to respend to the competitive
environment. Our current pricing and rewards strategies include a combination of promotional pricing and either
cash back rewards or business rewards that our customers can redeem for travel, gift certificates or merchandise. A
customer may receive promotional pricing, including an introductory period during which a low er zero percent
finance charge rate is charged for a specified duration on specified types of transactions, after which the
introductory rate generally is converted to a higher rate. Some customers may receive non-introductory promotional
pricing for specified types of balances or account transactions. Generally, our customers earn rewards based on net
purchases on their business credit card accounts. We continually test different pricing and reward strategies.

Our business credit card accounts are assigned finance charge rates which are either fixed or variable rates. Qur
variable finance charge rates adjust from time to time according to an interest rate index- such as the Prime Rate or
LIBOR. We may reprice accounts at our discretion and in accordance with the terms of the applicable cardholder
agreement.

We continually monitor the credit quality of our business credit card customers and adjust the pricing and/or
credit line size on their accounts based on a variety of factors, including changes in a customer’s credit standing and
other factors that could indicate a risk of future nonpayment. To discourage delinquent payments, we assess late fees
and use “penalty pricing” which automatically increases the finance charge rate assessed on any account that is in
default in accordance with the terms of the applicable cardholder agreement. The amount by which the finance
charge rate is automatically increased may vary.

Servicing

We use internal and external resources for servicing our credit card accounts, Certain administrative functions
associated with the servicing of our business credit card accounts are outsourced to First Data Resources, Inc. Our
agreement with FDR requires that the services be performed in accordance with our policies and procedures. The
services may include: authorizing transactions through the MasterCard® and VISA® systems, based upon our
criteria for approval; providing data processing services; performing billing, posting and settlement processes;
generating monthly billing statements; providing credit and fraud management tools; and issuing credit card
plastics and new account agreements. Under our policies and procedures, we monitor the services provided by FDR
for compliance with our criteria,

Customer Service and Support

We maintain several channels of communication and support for our customers, including a toll-free phone number,
on-line account management, secure message center and postal and facsimile services. We maintain multi-site
contact centers, currently located in Horsham, Pennsylvania and Draper, Utah. Our contact centers are managed so
that functions can be performed seamlessly regardless of geographic location. Customer contacts are distributed
across these sites based on service level objectives. In addition, we leverage numerous technology solutions to
increase efficiencies, reduce costs and improve customer satisfaction. We use metrics such as first contact resolution
and average speed of answer to measure our performance and success.

Our customer service function works closely with other functions across our organization to achieve seamless
service and problem resolution. We are focused on supporting and maintaining our relationships with our existing
customers through programs designed to stimulate card usage, enhance customer loyalty and retain existing
accounts. Our objective is to maximize every contact opportunity to provide “best in class” service to our customers.

Collections

Delinquencies and charge-offs are monitored by management in our collections and credit departments. We use a
variety of techniques to discourage delinquent payments, including assessment of late fees and use of penalty
pricing, as described above. Our credit evaluation, servicing and charge-off policies and collection practices may
change from time to time in accordance with our business judgment and applicable laws and regulations.
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We use a variety of collections strategies to pursue late payments. Our strategies are developed using
proprietary models that analyze an array of variables, including payment history, Fair, Isaac and Company
(*FICO™) credit score and other credit indicators, to predict the type and timing of collections activity to be
implemented for each account in order to optimize our collection efforts. Collection activities include statement
messages, formal collection letters and telephone calls, as well as a self-service website that our customers can
access. We maintain multi-site collection centers, currently located in Horsham, Pennsylvania and Draper, Utah.
Efforts to collect delinquent and charged-off accounts are made by our collections staff, supplemented in certain
cases by external resources such as collection agencies and attorneys. We may sell accounts that we decide not to
pursue through a collection agency or litigation.

¥

Credit Protection and Related Products

We offer credit protection and related products to our existing business credit card customers. Our credit protection
products include coverage for loss of life, disability, key person departure, business interruption and involuntary
unemployment. A portion of our credit protection and related products are insurance products offered through our
insurance subsidiaries. Together with unaffiliated insurance carriers, our life/health and property/casualty insurance
subsidiaries, Advanta Life Insurance Company and Advanta Insurance Company, respectively, provide insurance
and related products mostly to existing Advanta customers. Under reinsurance agreements, our insurance
subsidiaries generally assume the risks associated with these products from the unaffiliated insurance carriers.
In consideration for assuming these risks, our insurance subsidiaries receive reinsurance premiums equal o the net
premiums collected by the insurance carriers, less a ceding fee as defined by the reinsurance treaties, and acquisition
expenses, premium taxes and loss payments made by the carriers on these risks.

Depository Institutions

We own two depository institutions, Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank. Advanta Bank Corp. is an
industrial bank chartered under the laws of the State of Utah with its principal executive offices located in Draper,
Utah. Advanta Bank Corp.’s principal activity consists of the issuance of our business purpose credit card, the
Advanta Business Card, to small businesses and business professionals.

Advanta National Bank is a national banking association organized under the laws of the United States of
America with its headquarters and sole branch currently located in Wilmington, Delaware. Prior to the closing of the
Mortgage Transaction (as defined herein), we conducted a large portion of our mortgage business through Advanta
National Bank. For the year ended December 31, 2006, Advanta National Bank’s operations were not material to
our consolidated operating results.

Deposit, Savings and Investment Products

We offer a variety of deposit products such as retail certificates of deposit, large denomination (more than $99,000)
certificates of deposit and money market accounts that are insured by the FDIC in accordance with applicable FDIC
regulations and limits. At December 31, 2006, we had total deposits of approximately $1.4 billion at our banks,
compared to approximately $1.1 billion at December 31, 2005. Substantially all of the deposits at December 31,
2006 and 2005 were at Advanta Bank Corp. Advanta Bank Corp. generates retail deposits from repeat deposits from
existing customers and from new depositors attracted by direct mail solicitations, newspaper and other media
advertising, and the internet.

Since 1951, Advanta Corp. and its predecessor, Teachers Service Organization, Inc., have offered senior
unsecured debt securities of the corporation, in the form of RediReserve Variable Rate Certificates and Investient
Notes, to retail investors through our retail note program. Advanta Corp. has sold these debt securities, also referred
to in this Form 10-K as “retail notes,” predominantly on a direct basis in select states. The RediReserve Variable
Rate Certificates are payable on demand and the Investment Notes have maturities that can range from 91 days to
ten years. The RediReserve Variable Rate Certificates and Investment Notes are obligations of Advanta Corp. and
are not insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or by any other public or private entity. We change the interest rates that
we offer frequently, depending on market conditions and our funding needs. The interest rates and other terms of the
retail notes may also vary depending on the size of the investment, state of residence of the investor or other factors.
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At each of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005, approximately $227 million aggregate principal amount of
RediReserve Variable Rate Certificates and Investment Notes was outstanding.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Advanta Leasing Services

Prior to January 23, 2001, Advanta Leasing Services, a business unit of Advanta, offered flexible lease financing
programs to small businesses. On January 23, 2001, we announced that after a thorough review of strategic
alternatives available for our leasing business, we decided to cease originating leases. However, we continued to
service the existing lease portfolio during its wind down period.

We had no lease receivables outstanding as of December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2005, we had lease
receivables of $1.2 million. See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information
regarding gains or losses on the discontinuance of Advanta Leasing Services.

Advanta Morigage

Pursuant to the terms of the purchase and sale agreement, dated January 8, 2001, as amended, by and between
Advanta and Chase Manhattan Mortgage Corporation, a New Jersey corporation (“Chase” or “Buyer”), Advanta
and certain of its subsidiaries transferred and assigned to Buyer and certain of its affiliates substantially all of the
assets and operating liabilities associated with Advanta’s mortgage business. This transaction is referred to
throughout this Form 10-K as the “Mortgage Transaction.” The Mortgage Transaction was consummated on
March 1, 2001, effective as of February 28, 2001 (the “‘Closing Date™).

The assets acquired by Buyer in the Mortgage Transaction consisted of loan receivables, retained interests in
securitizations and other receivables, contractual mortgage servicing rights and other contractual rights, property
and equipment, and prepaid assets. The liabilities assumed by Buyer in the Mortgage Transaction consist primarily
of certain of our contractual obligations and other liabilities that appeared on our balance sheet, as well as specified
contingent liabilities arising out of the operation of the mortgage business before closing that are identified in the
purchase and sale agreement.

Prior to the closing of the Mortgage Transaction, Advanta Morigage, a business unit of Advanta, offered a
broad range of mortgage products and services to consumers throughout the country. Advanta Mortgage originated
and serviced non-conforming credit first and second lien mortgage loans, including home equity lines of credit. In
addition to servicing and managing the loans we originated, Advanta Mortgage serviced the home equity loans of
unaffiliated third parties through our subservicing business. Following the Mortgage Transaction, we no ionger
operate a mortgage business. However, we have retained contingent liabilities, primarily relating to litigation,
arising from our operation of the mortgage business before the Closing Date that were not specifically assumed by
Buyer in the Mortgage Transaction. See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information
regarding gains or losses on the discontinuance of Advanta Mortgage.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

The following discussion sets forth some of the elements of an extensive regulatory framework applicable to banks,
their affiliates and the banking and credit card industries, and provides some specific information that is relevant to
Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries. To the extent that the following information describes statutory provisions and
regulatory provisions and agreements, it is qualified in its entirety by reference to the particular statutory provisions
and regulatory provisions and agreements.

Advanta Corp.

Although Advanta Corp. owns two banking subsidiaries, Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank, it is not
required to register as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the
“BHCA”). Advanta National Bank is a “bank™ as defined under the BHCA, as amended by the Competitive
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Equality Banking Act of 1987 (“CEBA”). However, under grandfathering provisions of CEBA, Advanta Corp. is
not required to register as a bank holding company because Advanta National Bank did not come within the BHCA
definition of the term *bank” prior to the enactment of CEBA.. Also, under CEBA, our other banking subsidiary,
Advanta Bank Corp., is not considered a “bank” for purposes of the BHCA and therefore does not impact Advanta
Corp.’s exempt status under the BHCA. Because Advanta Corp. is not a bank holding company under the BHCA, it
is not subject to examination by the Federal Reserve Board, other than for purposes of assuring continued
compliance with the CEBA restrictions discussed below.

Advanta Corp. is not required to register as a bank holding company as long as it continues to comply with
certain restrictions under CEBA. For example, Advanta National Bank may take demand deposits but may not make
commercial loans. In addition, Advanta Corp. would lose its exemption under CEBA if it were to acquire control of
more than 5% of the stock or assets of an additional “bank” or “savings association,” as these terms are defined in
the BHCA. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial Modernization Act of 1999 (the “GLB Act”), which became
effective on May 12, 2000, includes a provision that gives us the opportunity to cure or remediate an activity that is
out of compliance with applicable CEBA restrictions. Under the GLB Act, if Advanta Corp. or Advanta National
Bank fails to comply with any of the restrictions applicable to them under CEBA, there is a 180-day right to cure
period following receipt of a notice from the Federal Reserve Board. The opportunity to cure or remediate an
activity that is out of compliance with CEBA significantly reduces the risk that Advanta Corp. will be required to
register as a bank holding company under the BHCA.

Registration as a bank holding company is not automatic and, if Advanta Corp. were to register, then it and its
subsidiaries would be subject to examination and regulation by the Federal Reserve Board.

Advanta Bank Corp.
Supervision and Regulation

Advanta Bank Corp. is an industrial bank chartered under the laws of the State of Utah. Under its banking charter,
Advanta Bank Corp. may make consumer and commercial loans and may accept all FDIC-insured deposits other
than demand deposits such as checking accounts, It is a depository institution subject to regulatory oversight and
examination by both the FDIC and the Utah Department of Financial Institutions. Applicable federal and state
regulations relate to a broad range of banking activities and practices, including minimum capital standards,
maintenance of reserves and the terms on which a bank may engage in transactions with its affiliates. In addition, the
FDIC has regulatory authority to prohibit Advanta Bank Corp. from engaging in any unsafe or unsound practice in
conducting its business. _

. Capital Requirements

Advanta Bank Corp. is subject to capital adequacy guidelines issued by the Federal Financial Instituticns
Examination ‘Council (the “FFIEC”). These risk-based capital and leverage guidelines make regulatory capital
requirements rore sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banking organizations and consider off-balance
sheet exposures in determining capital adequacy. Under the rules and regulations of the FFIEC, at least half of a
bank’s total capital is required to be “Tier [ capital,” comprised of common equity, retained earnings and a limited
amount of non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock. The remaining capital, “Tier II capital,” may consist of other
preferred stock, a limited amount of term subordinated debt or a limited amount of the reserve for possible credit
losses. The FFIEC has also adopted minimum leverage ratios for banks, which are calculated by dividing Tier I
capital by total quarterly average assets. Recognizing that the risk-based capital standards principally address credit
risk rather than interest rate, liquidity, operational or other risks, many banks are expected to maintain capital in
excess of the minimum standards. Management believes that at December 31, 2006, Advanta Bank Corp. was in
compliance with the capital adequacy requirements to which it was subject. See Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Prompt Corrective Action

Among other things, the FDIC Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”) requires federal bank regulatory authorities
to take prompt corrective action with respect to FDIC-insured institutions that do not meet certain minimum capital
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requirements. To be “well-capitalized” under the prompt corrective action provisions, a bank must have a ratio of
combined Tier I and Tier II capital to risk-weighted assets of not less than 10%, a ratio of Tier I capital to risk-
weighted assets of not less than 6%, and a ratio of Tier 1 capital to average assets of not less than 5%. At
December 31, 2006, Advanta Bank Corp. met the capital requirements of FDICIA and had capital at levels a bank is
required to maintain to be classified as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to provisions of FDICIA and related regulations with respect to prompt corrective action, FDIC-
insured institutions such as Advanta Bank Corp. may only accept brokered deposits without FDIC permission if
they meet specified capital standards. FDIC-insured institutions are also subject to restrictions with respect to the
interest they may pay on brokered deposits unless they are “well-capitalized.”

Dividends

Advanta Bank Corp. may supply funds to its parent companies or affiliates, subject to certain legal limitations
contained in Utah state law. Under Utah law, an industrial bank may declare a dividend out of net profits after
providing for all expenses, losses, interest and taxes accrued or due and after complying with required transfers to
surplus accounts. In addition, the FDIC has authority under the Financial Institutions Supervisory Act to prohibit an
. industrial bank from engaging in any unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its business. It is possible that the
FDIC, pursuant to its authority under the Financial Institutions Supervisory Act, could claim that a dividend
payment might under some circumstances be an unsafe or unsound practice.

Advanta National Bank
Supervision and Regulation

Advanta National Bank is subject to regulation and periodic examination, primarily by the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC™). The OCC’s regulations relate to-a broad range of banking practices,
including maintenance of reserves, the maintenance of certain financial ratios and the terms on which a bank may
engage in transactions with its affiliates. In addition, the OCC has regulatory authority to prohibit Advanta National
Bank from engaging in any unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its business.

Capital Requirements

Advanta Nationat Bank is subject to the FFIEC capital adequacy guidelines described above. See “— Advanta Bank
Corp. — Capital Requirements.”” Management believes that at December 31, 2006, Advanta National Bank was in
compliance with the capital adequacy requirements to which it was subject. See Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. '

Prompt Corrective Action

Advanta National Bank is subject to the provisions of FDICIA and related regulations with respect to prompt
corrective action and the taking of brokered deposits, as described above. See “— Advanta Bank Corp. — Prompt
Corrective Action.” Presently, pursuant to its agreement with the OCC described below, Advanta National Bank is
required to maintain capital in excess of the minimum regulatory standards. At December 31, 2006, Advanta
National Bank had capital at levels a bank is réquired to maintain to be classified as “well-capitalized” under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. However, Advanta National Bank does not meet the definition
of “well-capitalized” because of the existence of its agreement with the OCC, even though it has achieved the higher
imposed capital ratios required by the agreement with the OCC. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Dividends

There are various legal limitations on the extent to which national banks, including Advanta National Bank, can
supply funds through dividends to their parent companies or affiliates. Generally, national banks are required to
obtain the prior approval of the OCC for a dividend if the total of all dividends declared by the national bank in any
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calendar year exceeds its net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years,
less any required transfers to surplus accounts. In addition, a national bank generally may not pay a dividend in an
amount greater than its undivided profits then on hand after deducting its losses and bad debts. The OCC also has
authority under the Financial Institutions Supervisory Act to prohibit a national bank from engaging in any unsafe
or unsound practice in conducting its business, It is possible that the OCC, pursuant to its authority under the
Financial Institutions Supervisory Act, could claim that a dividend payment might under some circumstances be an
unsafe or unsound practice.

Under Advanta National Bank’s current agreement with the OCC described below, Advanta National Bank is
not eligible to pay any dividends without the OCC’s prior approval.

Regulatory Agreements

In 2000, Advanta National Bank reached'agreemems with its bank regulatory agency, primarily relating to the
bank’s subprime iending operations. The agreements established temporary asset growth limits at Advanta National
Bank, imposed restrictions on taking brokered deposits and required that Advanta National Bank maintain certain
capital ratios in excess of the minimum regulatory standards. In 2001, Advanta National Bank entered into an
additional agreement with the OCC regarding restrictions on new business activities and product lines at Advanta
National Bank after the Mortgage Transaction, and the resolution of outstanding Advanta National Bank liabilities.
The agreement also reduced the capital requirements for Advanta National Bank to a ratio of 12.7% for Tier | and
total capital to risk-weighted assets, and to a ratio of 5% for Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets as defined in the
agreement. In addition, the agreement prohibits the payment of dividends by Advanta National Bank without prior
regulatory approval. Management believes that Advanta National Bank was in compliance with its regulatory
agreements at December 31, 2006.

Transfers of Funds and Transactions with Affiliates

Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and applicable regulations impose restrictions on Advanta Bank
Corp. and Advanta National Bank that limit the transfer of funds by each of these depository institutions to Advanta
Corp. and certain of its affiliates, in the form of loans, extensions of credit, investments or purchases of assets. These
transfers by any one depository institution to Advanta Corp. or any other single affiliate are limited in amount to
10% of the depository institution’s capital and surplus, and transfers to all affiliates are limited in the aggregate to
20% of the depository institution’s capital and surplus. These loans and extensions of credit are also subject to
various collateral requirements. Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and applicable regulations also
require generally that the depository institution’s transactions with its affiliates be on terms no less favorable to the
bank than comparable transactions with unrelated third parties. In addition, in order for Advanta Corp. to maintain
its grandfathered exemption under CEBA, Advanta National Bank is not permitted 10 make any loans to Advanta
Corp. or any of Advanta Corp.’s subsidiaries.

Lending Activities

Our current lending activities are solely focused on business purpose credit for small businesses and business
professionals. Certain aspects of various federal and state laws, including the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the
Truth-in-Lending Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act (the “FCRA™) as amended by the Fair and Accurate Credit
Transactions Act of 2003 (the “FACT Act”), the Federal Trade Commission Act — Unfair or Deceptive Acts and
Practices and the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act, may be interpreted to apply to our lending activities. Provisions
of these statutes and related regulations require that certain disclosures be made to borrowers, prohibit discrim-
inatory practices in extending credit, prohibit sending unsolicited credit cards, prohibit unfair deceptive acts or
practices, provide certain credit protections for activated military borrowers or regulate the dissemination and use of
information relating to a borrower’s creditworthiness.

The FFIEC released Account Management and Loss Allowance Guidance (the “Guidance™) applicable to all
credit card lending of federally regulated financial institutions that generally requires that banks properly manage,
several elements of their credit card lending programs, including line assignments, over-limit practices and
minimum payment and negative amortization. The Guidance provides wide discretion to bank regulatory agencies
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in the application of the Guidance and, as a result, Advanta Bank Corp.'s regulators could require changes to the
bank’s account management or loss allowance practices.

Privacy

The GLB Act contains privacy requirements dealing with the use of nonpublic information about consumer
customers. The GLB Act and its accompanying regulations apply to retail deposit customers of Advanta Bank Corp.
and Advanta National Bank, as well as to investors who purchase Advanta Corp.’s retail notes. The GLB Act is not
preemptive and states may impose different and possibly more burdensome requirements.

Regulation of Non-bank Activities
Insurance

Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to the laws and regulations of, and supervision by, the states in which they are
domiciled or have obtained authority to transact insurance business. These states have adopted laws and regulations
which govern all insurance policy underwriting, rating, licensing, marketing, administration and financial oper-
ations of an insurance company, including dividend payments and financial solvency. In addition, our insurance
subsidiaries must comply with Arizona insurance holding company system laws and regulations which require the
filing of annual registration statements and the disclosure and approval of certain transactions among affiliated
entities.

The maximum dividend that Advanta Insurance Company can distribute to Advanta Corp., its parent, in any
twelve-month period, without pricr approval of the State of Arizona Department of Insurance, is the lesser of: 10%
of Advanta Insurance Company’s statutory surplus; or for any given twelve-month period, its net investment
income. Similarly, the maximum dividend that Advanta Life Insurance Company can distribute to Advanta
Insurance Company, its parent, in any twelve-month period, without prior approval of the State of Arzona
Department of Insurance, is the lesser of: 10% of Advanta Life Insurance Company’s statutory surplus; or for any
given twelve-month period, its net gain from operations.

The State of Arizona has adopted minimum risk-based capital standards for insurance companies, as
developed by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. Risk-based capital is the quantification of
an insurer’s investment, underwriting, reserve and business risks in relation to its total adjusted capital and surplus.
The ratio of an insurer’s total adjusted capital and surplus is compared to various levels of risk-based capital to
determine what intervention, if any, is required by either the insurance company or an insurance depariment. At
December 31, 2006, our insurance subsidiaries met all risk-based capital standards and required no intervention by
any party.

Legislative and Regulatory Developments
State-chartered Industrial Banks

There are legislative initiatives and proposals under consideration at the federal and state levels that could cause
Advanta Bank Corp., as a state-chartered industrial bank, to lose future flexibility in branch locations or limit its
ability to offer new deposit products. For example, Congress is considering legislation that would enhance the
authority for banks to pay interest on business checking accounts and to fully implement interstate banking.
However, both of these legislative proposals also include initiatives that would limit their applicability so that state-
chartered industrial banks, such as Advanta Bank Corp., would be excluded. On the state level, several states are
considering legislation that would limit the ability of industrial banks to branch into these states or acquire local
banks. Two states have already enacted such statutes.

Congress is also considering limiting the ability of commercial firms that are ineligible to own banks under the
BHCA from chartering industrial banks. The definition of “commercial” firms used in the proposed legislation
includes companies such as Advanta Corp. that, although principally engaged in the financial services business,
have not registered with the Federal Reserve Board as a bank holding company or a financial services holding
company. Enactment of this limitation might also restrict Advanta Bank Corp.’s flexibility in the future. Federal
legislation has also been introduced that would limit new industrial bank charters to companies that are principally
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engaged in financial services. If this legislation were to be adopted as proposed, it would not impact Advanta Bank
Corp.’s operations; however, it includes provisions that could increase Advanta Corp.’s reporting requirements to
the FDIC,

Credit Card Industry Practices

Federal and state governments are very focused on the credit card industry and credit card lending and marketing
practices. The Senate Banking Committee held a hearing on January 25, 2007 entitled “Examining the Billing,
Marketing, and Disclosure Practices of the Credit Card Industry, and Their Impact on Consumers.” The Senate
Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations is also conducting an inquiry of credit card lending practices and
disclosures. Last year the Senate Judiciary Committee and House Commerce Committee held hearings on credit
card interchange fees. A number of trade associations representing retailers and gasoline marketers continue to
lobby for hearings on interchange fees but, to date, no legislation has been introduced on the federal level. Several
states are also considering interchange legislation. The proposals range from capping interchange fees on certain
classes of transactions to requiring additional disclosures at point of sale to prohibiting the levying of interchange
fees on the portion of retail transactions that constitutes sales tax. It is expected that the legislative proposals that
will stem from these efforts will be generally directed at consumer transactions; however, it is possible that if any
were to become effective they eould impact small business and other business purpose lending,

Additionally, we expect that Congress and state legislatures as well as government regulatory agencies may
consider legislative and regulatory initiatives related to credit scoring disclosure, minimum monthly payments,
interchange fees and other aspects of credit card lending and marketing. Presently, these initiatives are generally
directed at consumer transactions; however, it is possible that if any were to be enacted in the future they could
impact small business and other business purpose lending. There are other legislative initiatives under consideration
that could impact our business, including the manner in which we conduct our business, such as: proposals to
impose additional anti-money laundering requirements; proposals dealing with data security, notification of
customers in the event of data breach, as well as specific initiatives dealing with identity theft. While we are
highly reguiated by state and federal banking agencies in many of these areas, some of these proposals may extend
to and impact data warchousers, vendors and other third parties with whom we do business.

Future Legislation

The businesses in which we engage are generally the subject of extensive regulation at the state and federat levels.
Numerous legislative and regulatory proposals, such as those described above, are advanced each year which, if
adopted, could affect our profitability or the manner in which we conduct our activities. It is impossible to determine
the extent of the impact of any new laws, regulations or initiatives that may be proposed, or whether any of the
federal or state proposals will become law.

.

COMPETITION

As a marketer of credit products, we face intense competition from numerous financial services providers. The
credit card industry is highly competitive. Within the credit card industry there is increased competitive use of
advertising, target marketing and pricing, including with respect to finance charge rates, rewards programs and
cardholder fees. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and have more capital and other resources than we
do. In addition, there has been a trend toward consolidation among credit card issuers in recent years which has
resulted in even larger competitors. Competition among lenders can take many forms, including convenience in
obtaining a loan, the size of their existing customer base and the ability to cross sell products to that customer base,
intellectual property rights, customer service, rewards programs, size of loans, finance charge rates and other types
of finance or service charges, the nature of the risk the lender is willing to assume and the type of security, if any,
required by the lender. We have chosen not to compete in all areas of the credit card industry, but have focused on
business purpose credit for small businesses and business professionals. We have responded to competition in this
segment by focusing exclusively on the small business market, offering credit cards tailored to the needs of our
customers with competitive pricing that typically includes promotional pricing and competitively structured
rewards programs. We also have responded by developing marketing strategies for our business purpose credit cards
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that are designed to attract and retain high credit quality customers. Although we believe we are generally
competitive in the geographic areas in which we offer our products and services, there can be no assurance that our
ability to market our products and services successfully or to obtain an adequate yield on our business purpose credit
cards will not be impacted by the nature of the competition that now exists or may develop. See “Item 1A. Risk
Factors.”

We fund our operations through, among other things, sales of our retail notes. We face competition from banks,
savings institutions, money market funds, mutual funds, credit unions and a wide variety of private and public
entities that offer and sell debt securities, some of which are publicly traded. Our retail notes are not listed on any
securities exchange. In addition, many of our competitors are larger and have more capital and other resources than
we do. Competition for investment funds relates to matters such as: rate of return; collateral, insurance or guarantees
applicable to the investment, the minimum investment amount; credit ratings, if any, on the debt security;
convenience and the cost to and conditions imposed upon the investor to invest in or liquidate the investment,
including any commissions which must be paid or interest forfeited on funds withdrawn; customer service; service
charges; and the taxability of interest. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2006, we had 952 employees. We believe that we have good relationships with our
employees. None of our employees is represented by a collective bargaining unit.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC™). These filings are available to the public over the internet at the SEC’s web site
at hitp://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC’s public reference room
located at 100 F Street NE, Room 1580, Washingion, DC 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the public reference room.

Qur principal internet address is hitp://fwww.advanta.com. We make our annual, quarterly and current reports,
and amendments to those reports, available free of charge on or through http://www.advanta.com as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.

In addition, you may request a copy of these filings (excluding exhibits) at no cost by writing or telephoning us
at the following address or telephone number: Investor Relations, Advanta Corp., Welsh & McKean Roads,
F.O. Box 844, Spring House, Pennsylvania 19477, telephone: (215) 444-5335.

We have adopted, and posted on our website, a Code of Ethics that applies to, among others, our Chief
Executive Officer and senior financial officers (including the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer,
Controller and persons performing similar functions).
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION
REFORM ACT OF 1995

We have included or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K statements that may constitute
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”}. In addition, other written or oral communications provided by Advanta from time
to time may contain “forward-looking statements.” Forward-looking statements are not historical facts but'instead
are based on certain assumptions by management and represent only our belief regarding future events, many of
which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside our control. These statements include statements other
than historical information or statements of current condition and may relate to, among other things, anticipated
earnings per share; anticipated growth in receivables outstanding and credit card accounts; anticipated net interest
margins; anticipated operating expenses and employment growth; the level of new account acquisitions, customer
spending and account attrition; anticipated payment rates of outstanding loans; anticipated marketing and other
operating expense; estimated values of and anticipated cash flows from our retained interests in securitizations;
industry trends; our ability to replace existing credit facilities and securitization financing when they expire or
terminate with appropriate levels of funding on similar terms and conditions; the value of the investments that we
hold; anticipated delinquencies and charge-offs; realizability of net deferred tax asset; anticipated outcome and
effects of litigation and other future expectations of Advanta. Forward-looking statements are often identified by
words or phrases such as “is anticipated,” “are expected to,” “are estimated to be,” “intend 10,” “believe,” “will likely
result,” “projected,” “may,” or other similar words or phrases. The cautionary statements provided below are being
made pursuant to the provisions of the Act and with the intention of obtaining the benefits of the “safe harbor”
provisions of the Act for any such forward-looking information.

RN
]

Forward-looking statements are subject to various assumptions, risks and uncertainties which change over
time, and speak only as of the date they are made. We undertake no obligation 1o update any forward-looking
information. However, any further disclosures made on related subjects in our subsequent reports filed with the
SEC, including our Reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K, should be consulted. We caution readers that any
forward-looking statement provided by us is not a guarantee of future performance and that actual results may be
materially different from those in the forward-looking information. In addition, future results could be materially
different from historical performance. See “ltem 1 A. Risk Factors™ for further discussion of important factors that
could cause actual results to differ from those in the forward-looking statements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We may make changes in the terms of our business credit card accounts that could negatively affect our
results of operations and profitability. We have the right to change the terms of our agreements with our
customers, including the finance charge rates and the other fees and charges that are applicable from time to time on
the accounts, the applicable minimum monthly payment required on the accounts and various other terms. We may
decide to increase or decrease finance charge rates or other fees and charges for existing accounts, or to take actions
that would otherwise change the terms of the accounts, as a result of: changes in applicable law or regulations;
changes in the marketplace; changes in the economic, political or regulatory environments; prudent business
practice; or other reasons. Changes in the terms of our business credit card accounts may cause account attrition or
changes in customer behavior, such as credit card use, payment patterns and rates of delinquencies and charge-offs,
which could negatively affect our results of operations and profitability. Changes in the finance charges and the
other fees and charges assessed on the accounts and changes in minimum monthly payments required may affect the
effective yield on the accounts and could negatively impact our results of operations and profitability.

Marketing with low introductory or promotional rates may result in account attrition when these rates
expire. A portion of our business credit card accounts have introductory or promotional finance charge rates which
are generally at low levels during an initial or other specified period and which generally increase to higher rates
after the initial or other specified period expires. Accounts with these introductory or promotional rate features are
subject to a risk that customers who were attracted by the low introductory or promotional rates will transfer account
balances or shift credit card spending to credit card accounts with other credit card providers when our introductory
or promotional rate period expires. There can be no assurance that our efforts to retain these customers will be
successful and that there will not be significant attrition in these accounts.
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Changes in our product offerings, including changes in product features or services, could negatively affect
our ability to originate and retain customer relationships and may reduce our profitability. The product
offerings we use in our marketing campaigns are competitively priced and typically include promotional pricing
and rewards. Changes to our product offerings, including changes in rewards program terms, changes in intro-
ductory and promotional pricing levels or changes to other product features or services, may result in changes in
customer behavior, such as levels of credit card use and payment patterns, that could negatively impact our
_profitability. In addition, changes to our product offerings, including changes in product features or services such as
those described above, may negatively affect our ability to attract and retain high credit quality customers.

If we are unable to develop, introduce or offer new or competitive products and services, our ability to
generate new accounts and compete effectively could be adversely affected. Many factors could prevent us from
developing, introducing or offering new or competitive products and services, including our inability to obtain
licenses for intellectual property rights or to obtain them at acceptable costs, the failure of or delay in customers’
acceptance of our products or services, losses associated with the testing and implementation of new products or
services or financial, legal or other difficulties arising in the course of implementing new products or services. If we
are unable to successfully develop, acquire, produce, test, market and offer new or competitive products and
services, it could adversely affect our competitive position, including our ability to generate new accounts and to
generate receivables in existing accounts. '

Our strategic and contractual relationships with third parties expose us to risks that may disrupt our
business operations and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. We rely on third
parties to provide services that are critically important to our business credit card business. For example, we rely on
third parties to perform certain administrative functions associated with servicing our business credit card accounts,
and to supply FICO scores and other credit-related data and information about our potential and existing customers.
In addition, from time to time we partner, contract with or invest in third parties to establish relationships that are
intended to benefit our business operations and financial condition, including outsourcing and other initiatives to
enhance our productivity and operational efficiency.

These arrangements with third parties expose us to a number of risks, such as the following:

« If any third party providing services critical to our business were to fail or become insolvent, or if we were
unable to renew expiring agreements with such parties on mutually acceptable terms, our business
operations, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely impacted.

+ To the extent these third party relationships involve or depend on the transfer of knowledge related to our
business for their success, we may be exposed to risks associated with misappropriation or misuse of
intellectual property or confidential information. including information that is proprietary to us or to our
customers.

» If the third parties do not perform as anticipated or if they default on their obligations, we may not realize the
intended benefits of these relationships, including the expected productivity, cost or expense improvements.

« In the event of a default or termination, our agreements with third parties may take an extended period of
time to unwind or resolve and, under certain circumstances such as early termination, may require us to pay
substantial termination fees, which could adversely affect our business operations, results of operations and
financial condition.

We face intense competition in the credit card industry which could negatively impact our ability to generate
new accounts and receivables. Advanta Business Cards competes in the highly competitive credit card industry.
Within the credit card industry there is highly competitive use of advertising, target marketing and pricing,
including with respect to finance charge rates, rewards programs and cardholder fees. Many of our competitors are
substantially larger and have more capital and other resources than we do. In addition, there has been a trend toward
consolidation among credit card issuers in recent years which has resulted in even larger competitors. Competition
among lenders can take many forms, including convenience in obtaining a loan, the size of their existing customer
base, the ability to cross-sell products to that customer base, intellectual property rights, customer service, rewards
programs, size of loans, finance charge rates and other types of finance or service charges, the nature of the risk the
lender js willing to assume and the type of security, if any, required by the lender. These competitive pressures may
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increase and could negatively impact our ability to market our products and services effectively, our ability to
generate new business credit card receivables and our profitability. See “Itemn 1. Business — Competition” for
further discussion.

If we are unable to attract and retain talented employees our business could be adversely affected. Our success
depends on our ability to attract and retain talented employees. Competition for talented personnel is intense. If we
are less successful in our recruiting efforts, or if we are unable to retain key employees, our ability to develop and
deliver our products and services may be adversely affected. :

Legislative, regulatory and other legal developments may affect our business operations and ability to
generate new accounts. Banking, finance and insurance businesses, in general, and banks, including industrial loan
banks such as Advanta Bank Corp., are the subject of extensive regulation at the state and federal levels. Numerous
legislative and regulatory proposals are advanced each year which, if adopted, could affect our profitability or the
manner in which we conduct our activities. '

The credit card industry is also highly regulated by federal and state laws. These laws affect how loans are
made, enforced and collected. The United States Congress and state legislatures may pass new laws, or may amend
existing laws, to regulate further the credit card industry or to reduce finance charges or other fees applicable to
credit card accounts. This coutd make it more difficult for us to change the terms of our existing business credit card
accounts or to collect business credit card receivables and could decrease our income and profitability.

In recent years certain industry groups and consumers have expressed concerns about interchange rates related
to Visa® and MasterCard® credit and debit transactions and about increases in the interchange rates. In some other
countries, regulators have taken actions to challenge or reduce interchange rates and certain other fees banks charge
on transactions. While there is no specific imminent regulatory action pending to restrict interchange rates in the
United States, interchange rates have also been the topic of increased Congressional and regulatory interest. Also in
the United States, several suits have been filed by various merchants alleging that the establishment of interchange
rates violates the antitrust laws. Any restriction on or reduction in interchange rates would reduce the amount of
interchange paid to us and could have an adverse effect upon our results of operations and financial position.

Federal and state legislatures as well as government regulatory agencies are considering legislative and
regulatory initiatives related to enhanced credit scoring disclosure, interchange rates, data security, penalty pricing,
minimum monthly payments and other aspects of credit card lending, marketing and operations. While many of
these initiatives are generally directed at consumer transactions, it is possible that if any were to become effective
they could impact small business lending and, accordingly, could make compliance more difficult and expensive
and could negatively affect our operating results and the manner in which we conduct our business.

Changes to statutes, regulations or regulatory policies, guidance or interpretations could adversely affect us,
including by limiting the types of products and services we may offer and the amounts of finance charge rates or
other fees we may charge. It is impossible to determine the extent of the impact of any new laws, regulations or
initiatives that may be proposed, or whether any of the federal or state proposals will become law. See “Item 1.
Business — Government Regulation” for further discussion.

Actions by bank regulatery authorities could atfect the manner in which we conduct our business and our
financial condition. We conduct our business credit card business through Advanta Bank Corp., a Utah chartered
industrial bank that is subject to regulatory oversight and examination by both the FDIC and the Utah Department of
Financial Institutions. We also own Advanta National Bank, a national banking association that is subject to
regulatory oversight primarily by the OCC. Both banks are subject to provisions of federal law that regulate their
activities and require them to operate in a safe and sound manner. The effects of, and changes in, the level of
regulatory scrutiny, regulatory requirements and initiatives, including mandatory and possible discretionary actions
by federal and state regulators, restrictions and limitations imposed by laws applicable to industrial loan banks and
national banks, examinations, audits and possible agreements between the bank and its regulators may affect the
operations of the bank and our financial condition. See “Ttem 1. Business — Government Regulation” for further
discussion.

We have procedures to comply with applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations and we
believe that we comply in all material respects with these requirements. We incur substantial costs and expenses in
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connection with our compliance programs and efforts. Changes in or the adoption of additional or more restrictive
laws, rules and regulations applicable to us could make compliance more difficult and expensive. Failure to comply
with applicable statutory and regulatory requirements can lead to, among other remedies, class action lawsuits and
administrative enforcement actions. :

Legal proceedings'against us may result in adverse outcomes. We are now and in the future may become subject
to a variety of legal proceedings, including class action lawsuits, other litigation and claims arising in the ordinary
course of business or discontinued operations. The costs we incur in defending ourselves or associated with settling
any of these proceedings, as well as a material final judgment, injunction or decree against us, could materially
adversely affect our financial condition or our ability to conduct our business. The results of litigation are difficult to
predict and there can be no assurance that legal proceedings will not have a material adverse impact on our results of
operations or financial condition. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings” and Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements for further discussion. ’

Changes in accounting may affect our reported earnings and results of operations. U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and accompanying accounting pronouncements, implementation guidelines, interpretations
and practices for many aspects of our business are complex and involve subjective judgments, such as accounting
for the allowance for receivable losses, securitization income, rewards programs and income taxes. Changes in these
estimates or changes in other accounting rules and principles, or their interpretation, could significantly change our
reported earnings and operating results, and could add significant volatility to those measures. See “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates” and Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

If third parties claim we infringe their intellectual property rights it could negatively impact our business and
financial position. From time to time we receive notices from others claiming we infringe their intellectual
property rights. In recent years, the number of patent claims assertions has increased generally in the United States
and the number of these claims that others may assert against us could grow. Regardless of the merit of these claims,
they could be time consuming and could result in costly litigation. Responding to these claims may require us to:

. * enter into royalty and licensing agreements on less favorable terms;
* develop non-infringing products, services or business methods or operations; or
* pay damages or satisfy indemnification commitments under contractual provisions.
If we are required to do any of these things, our operating results and financial position may be negatively impacted.

Changes in tax laws and outcomes of tax audits may affect our tax liabilities, tax assets and financial
condition. We are subject to federal income taxes as well as income and other business taxes in certain state and
local jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining our provision for income and other business
taxes. In the ordinary course of our business, there are circumstances where the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Qur tax returns and filings are regularly under audit or examination by tax authorities. Although we
believe our tax estimates are appropriate, the final determination of tax audits or examinations, and any related
litigation, as well as changes in tax laws, rates, regulations and policies, or interpretations of any of the foregoing,
could materially affect our tax liabilities, tax assets and financial condition.

Changes in interest rates may reduce our profitability. Fluctuations in interest rates, whether caused by changes
in economic conditions or other factors, may affect our profitability. Qur cost of funding our business is influenced
by market interest rates because the interest rates we pay on our publicly-offered debt securities, business credit card
securitizations and bank deposit products are influenced by market interest rates. A portion of our business credit
card receivables are effectively at a fixed rate because of the nature of the pricing of the accounts or because the
customer pays the balance in full each month. Therefore, an increase in market interest rates could reduce our net
interest income and/or our securitization income. Changes in interest rates can also affect the value of our assets and
liabilities. '

QOur business and business prospects could be negatively impacted if our reputation is damaged. We are
exposed to risk to our reputation which can result from alleged conduct in a number of areas, including marketing,
lending and pricing practices, corporate governance and actions taken by legislators, regulators, customers or
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parties with whom we have a business relationship. Our reputation could also be harmed by even the appearance of
not adequately addressing these or other similar potential issues that may arise. If these or other similar issues were
to arise we could face increased risk of litigation, fines or penalties as well as increased costs and expenses to
address the issues, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition or our
ability to conduct our business.

Social, economic, environmental and geographic factors can affect levels of customer spending, credit card
payments and other customer behaviors in ways that could negatively impact our asset qualify and
profitability. A variety of social, economic, environmental and geographic factors can adversely affect customer
behaviors, such as levels of credit card use and payment patterns. Social factors include changes in confidence
levels and attitudes toward incurring debt, the public’s perception of the use of credit cards and the stigma of
bankruptcy. Economic factors include the rates of inflation, the unemployment rates and the relative interest rates
offered for various types of loans. In addition, acts of terrorism in the United States and the political and military
response to any such events may have an adverse effect on general economic or environmental conditions, business
confidence and spending, and general market liquidity. Geographic factors may include adverse changes in
economic and environmental conditions in states where customers are located which could have a direct impact on
the customers’ use of our credit cards as well as on the timing and amount of payments on the accounts. Any of these
factors could negatively impact the performance of our business credit card portfolic and our profitability through,
among other things, lower new account originations, lower credit card use. increases in delinquencies, increases in
the number of customers seeking protection under the banksuptcy laws and increases in credit losses.

Market conditions and other factors beyond our control could negatively impact the availability and cost of

funding for our operations. We fund our operations through diversified sources, including securitizations, deposits _
at our bank subsidiaries and sales of unsecured debt securities. Currently our unsecured debt is rated below

investment grade. Non-investment grade ratings of our unsecured debt from rating agencies could make it more

difficult and more costly for us to sell debt or equity securities in the capital markets. Continuation of our below

investment grade ratings or a down-grade of any of the ratings of our unsecured debt may negatively affect, among

other things, our ability to borrow or raise funds on terms that we consider favorable to us. If we are unable to obtain

funding on favorable terms, it may negatively impact our ability to fund our operations.

To generate cash for the funding of our operations we also rely on our ability to combine and sell business
credit card receivables as asset-backed securities through transactions known as securitizations. At December 31,
2006, off-balance sheet securitized receivables represented 63% of our funding. Our ability to complete
securitizations depends upon: )

» general conditions in the securities markets;

* specific conditions in the asset-backed securities markets;

¢ the quality of our business credit card portfolio; and

* the ratings on the asset-backed securities sold in the securitizations.

Adverse changes in these market conditions, the quality of our loan portfolio or any down-grade of the ratings
on the asset-backed securities may disrupt the timing of our securitization transactions and impair our ability to
complele securitizations on terms that are satisfactory to us. Although securitizations are not our only source of cash
to fund our operations, any substantial reduction in our ability to complete securitizations could negatively impact
our results of operations and financial condition.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

At December 31, 2006, Advanta had no owned real property and total leased office space was approximately
337,000 square feet. The significant properties that Advanta leases for its business operations are described below.
Advanta leases approximately 110,000 square feet in Spring House, Pennsylvania for its principal executive and
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corporate offices and for use by Advanta Business Cards. In Horsham, Pennsylvania, Advanta leases approximately
110,000 square feet in one building for Advanta Business Cards operations and certain Advanta Bank Corp. and
corporate staff functions, and approximately 12,000 square feet in a second building for storage space. Advanta also
leases approximately 12,000 square feet of office space in Gibbsboro, New Jersey for Advanta Business Cards
operations. In Wilmington, Delaware, Advanta leases approximately 19,000 square feet of office space for Advanta
National Bank and for corporate and Advanta Business Cards operations. Advanta alSo leases approximately
72,000 square feet of office space in Draper, Utah for Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta Business Cards operations.
In addition to these leased properties, Advanta has four additional leases for approximately 2,000 square feet of
office space.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Since June 20, 2001, Advanta Mortgage Corp. USA (“AMCUSA”™) and Advanta Mortgage Conduit Services, Inc.
(“*AMCSI™), subsidiaries of Advanta Corp., have been involved in arbitration before the American Arbitration
Association in San Francisco, California brought by Goodrich & Pennington Mortgage Fund, Inc. (“GPMF?), a
participant in one of the programs of our former mortgage business. GPMF's asserted claims in the arbitration
included allegations that AMCUSA and AMCSI failed to provide information and documentation under the former
mortgage program and various claims conceming GPMF's relationship with AMCUSA and AMCSI. After several
interim awards, on January 24, 2006, the arbitrator issued a final award in favor of AMCUSA and AMCSI rejecting
all of GPMF’s claims. The arbitrator further held that AMCUSA and AMCSI were the prevailing parties in the
arbitration and that AMCUSA and AMCSI are entitled to recover their reasonable attorney fees and costs. GPMF
filed a petition in California state court seeking to vacate the arbitration final award and requesting a new arbiiration
hearing. On March 8, 2006, AMCUSA and AMCSI opposed GPMF’s petition to vacate and filed a cross-petition to
confirm the arbitration award as a judgment. On April 6, 2006, the California state court denied GPMF’s petition to
vacate and granted the cross-petition to confirm. The court then entered judgment in conformance with the
arbitration award. GPMF is currently appealing that judgment. In a related matter, on July 5, 2005, GPMF filed an
action in California state court against the American Arbitration Association seeking damages relating to the
arbitrator’s fees and injunctive relief to prevent entry of the arbitrator’s ruling and award in favor of AMCUSA and
AMCSI. On April 19, 2006, the court dismissed GPMF's claims against the American Arbitration Association with
prejudice. GPMF is appealing that judgment. We do not expect these matters to have a material adverse effect on our
financial position or results of operations.

In addition to the matters described above, Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries are involved in class action
lawsuits, other litigation, claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business or discontinued
operations.

Management believes that the aggregate loss, if any, resulting from existing litigation, claims and other legal
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations based on our
current expectations regarding the ultimate resolutions of these existing actions after consultation with our
attorneys. However, due to the inherent uncertainty in litigation and since the ultimate resolutions of our litigation,
claims and other legal proceedings are influenced by factors outside of our control, it is reasonably possible that
actual results will differ from our estimates.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The applicable Board of Directors elected each of the executive officers of Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries listed
below, o serve at the pleasure of the Board in the capacities indicated.

Name Age Office Date Elected
Dennis Alter 64  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 1972
William A. Rosoff 63  Vice Chairman of the Board and President 1996
Philip M. Browne 46  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 1998
Christopher J. Carroll 47  Chief Credit Officer 2001
John F. Moore 35  President, Advanta Bank Corp. 2004
David B. Weinstock 42 Vice President and Chief Accounting Ofﬁcer 2001

Mr. Alter became Executive Vice President and a Director of the Company’s predecessor organization in 1967,
He became President and Chief Executive Officer in 1972, and Chairman of the Board of Directors in August 1975.
Mr. Alter has remained as Chairman of the Board since August 1975. In February 1986, he relinquished the title of
President, and in August 1995 he relinquished the title of Chief Executive Officer. In October 1997, Mr. Alter
reassumed the title of Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Rosoft joined the Company in January 1996 as a Director and Vice Chairman. In October 1999, Mr. Rosoff
became President as well as Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Rosoff
was a long time partner of the law firm of Wolf, Block, Schorr and Solis-Cohen LLP, the Company’s outside
counsel, where he advised the Company for over 20 years. While at Wolf, Block, Schorr and Solis-Cohen LLP he
served as Chairman of its Executive Committee and, immediately before joining the Company, as a member of its
Executive Committee and Chairman of its Tax Department.

MET. Browne joined Advanta Corp. in June 1998 as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Prior to
joining Advanta Corp., he was an Audit and Business Advisory Partner at Arthur Andersen LLP where, for over
sixteen years, he audited public and private companies and provided business advisory and consulting services to
financial services companies. Mr. Browne is a director of The Bon-Ton Stores, Inc., a publicly held corporation. He
serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee for The Bon-Ton Stores, Inc.

Mr. Carroll joined Advanta Corp. in 2001 as Chief Credit Officer. Prior to joining Advanta Corp., Mr: Carroll
was a consultant with The Secura Group for two years where he assisted clients, including Advanta, with bank
regulatory issues in areas such as credit risk management, credit policy and process management, regulatory
compliance, due diligence, and consclidation and conversion projects. Prior to that, he held a variety of positions in
credit management and administration at First Interstate Bancorp. (now Wells Fargo), where he spent 11 years as a
consumer and commercial lender, credit administrator, regulatory liaison and credit risk manager,

Mt. Moore joined Advanta Corp. in 1986 as Assistant Treasurer. In addition to serving as Assistant Treasurer,
from January 2001 until January 2004, Mr. Moore also served as Advanta Corp.’s Managing Director, Retail
Funding; and from January 1995 until June 2005, Mr. Moore also served as Vice President of Advanta National
Bank. In June 2002, Mr. Moore was elected as a Director of Advanta National Bank. In January 2004, Mr. Moore
was elected President of Advanta Bank Corp.

Mr. Weinstock joined Advanta Corp. in 1998 and became Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer in
March 2001. From October 1999 to January 2005, Mr, Weinstock also served as Vice President of Investor
Relations. Prior to that, from April 1999 to October 1999 he served as Controller. Prior to joining Advanta Corp,,
Mr. Weinstock served as a Senior Manager at Arthur Andersen LLP from 1996 to 1998, where he audited public and
privaté companies and provided business advisory and consulting services to financial services companies.
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PART 11
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securifies
Common Stock Price Ranges and Dividends

Advanta Corp.’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbols ADVNA
(Class A voting common stock) and ADVNB (Class B non-voting common stock).

Following are the high, low and closing prices and cash dividends declared for the last two years as they apply
to each class of stock:

Cash
Dividends

Quarter Ended: High  Low Close  Declared
Class A: '

March 31, 2005 $22.80 $20.23  $2030  $0.0945
June 30, 2005 27,19 2049 25.89 0.1134
September 30, 2005 28.75 2434 26.06 0.1134
December 31, 2005 3130 22.62  30.13 0.i134
March 31, 2006 $34.74  $28.82  $34.09  $0.1134
June 30, 2006 3824 3152 3279 0.2125
September 30, 2006 © 3499 2916 3397 0.2125
December 31, 2006 4263 3352  39.81 0.2125
Class B:

March 31, 2005 $24.70  $21.84 $23.00  $0.1134
June 30, 2005 2044 2248  28.16 0.1361
September 30, 2005 3096  26.65 28.23 0.1361
December 31, 2005 33.06 2476 32.44 0.1361
March 31, 2006 : $37.44  $30.84  $36.87 $0.1361
June 30, 2006 41.74 34350 3595 0.2550
September 30, 2006 38.25 3192 36.90 0.2550
December 31, 2006 46.71 36.51 43.63 0.2550

At February 1, 2007, Advanta Corp. had approximately 188 holders of record of Class A Common Stock and
328 holders of record of Class B Common Stock.

In March 2006, our Board of Directors approved an increase in the regular quarterly cash dividends on Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock beginning with the dividend paid in the second quarter of 2006. As a
result of this increase, quarterly dividends declared for Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
increased to and are currently 21.25 cents per share of Class A Common Stock and 25.50 cents per share of Class B
Common Stock. Although we anticipate that cash dividends will continue to be paid in the future, the payment of
future dividends by Advanta will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend on numerous factors
including Advanta’s cash flow, financial condition, capital requirements, restrictions on the ability of subsidiaries to
pay dividends to Advanta Corp. and such other factors as the Board of Directors deems relevant. See “Part 1, Item 1.
Govemnment Regulation,” “Part I, Item 1 A. Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity, Capital Resources and Analysis of Financial Condition.”
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

($ in thousands, except per share amounts}

Year Ended December 31,

2006'" 2005 2004 2003 200
Summary of Operations'® '
Interest income $ 169,755 § 139,601 $ 106,709 $ 108,361 § 103,604
Interest expense 75,310 57,586 45,577 48,308 47,580
Noninterest revenues 337,955 290,840 287,841 268,541 240,101
Provision for credit losses 38,600 40,297 42,368 45,423 40,906
Operating expenses 256,812 243,058 234,298 225,165 201,741
Minority interest in income of consolidated
subsidiary'® 0 0 0 8,880 8,880
Gain (loss) on transfer of consumer credit
card business 0 67,679 0 0 (43,000
Income from continuing operations before
income taxes 136,988 157,179 72,307 49,126 1.598
Income (loss) from continuing operations 84,248 116,689 44,273 30,213 (15572)
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of
mortgage and leasing businesses, net of
tax 738 (6,260) 468 (1,968) (8,610
Net income (loss) 84,986 110,429 44,741 28,245 (24,182)
Per Common Share Data
Basic income (loss) from continuing
operations:
Class A b 300 % 43 1.69 % 1.19 3§ (0.69)
Class B 3.18 4.47 1.80 1.29 (0.59)
Combined*” 3.12 4.43 1.76 1.25 (0.63)
Diluted income (loss) from continuing
operations:
Class A 2.32 3.99 1.57 116 (0.69)
Class B 2.88 4.04 1.62 1.23 (0.59)
Combined” 2.86 4.02 1.60 1.21 (0.63)
Basic net income (loss):
Class A 3.04 4.11 1.71 111 (1.03)
Class B 321 4.23 1.82 1.21 (0.94)
Combined” 3.15 4.19 1.78 1.17 0.97)
Diluted net income {loss):
Class A 2.84 3.77 1.58 1.08 (1.03)
Class B 2.91 3.82 1.64 i.lé (0.94)
Combined™’ 2.89 3.81 1.62 1.13 (0.97)
Cash dividends declared:
Class A 0.7509 0.4347 0.3465 0.2520 0.2520
Class B 0.9011 0.5217 0.4158 0.3024 0.3024
Book value-combined 20.65 18.74 14.90 13.87 13.11
Closing stock price:
Class A 39.81 30.13 22.62 12.93 8.08-
Class B 43,63 32.44 24.27 12.72 3.39
Financial Condition at Year End .
Investments™’ § 745,108 $ 574,839 $ 482917 § 480935 $ 503479
Gross business credit card receivables: . :
Owned : 1,133,132 879,468 730,483 518,040 445,083
Securitized 4,073,128 2,880,401 2,564,147 2,463,747 2,149,147
Managed™ 5,206,260 3,759,869 3,204,630 2,981,787 2,594,230
Total owned assets 2,413,138 2,127,403 1,602,924 1,698,444 1,681,613
Deposits 1,365,138 1,070,572 825,273 672,204 714,028
Debt 227,126 226,856 265,759 314,817 315,886
Subordinated debt payable to preferred
securities trust 103,093 103,093 103,093 103,003 ]
Trust preferred securities 0 0 0 0 100,000
Stockholders’ equity 567,161 515,437 392,194 341,207 321,313
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($ in thousands, except per share amounts) Year Ended December 31,

2006"" 2005 2004 2003 2002
Selected Financial Ratios
Return on average assets 3.79% 5.61% 2.81% 1.45% (1.50)%
Return on average commen equity 15.80 23.06 12.18 8.59 (6.74)
Return on average total equity 15.80 23.04 12.19° 8.61 (6.68)
Equity/owned assets 23.50 24.23 23.17 20.09 19.11
Equity/managed assets'” 8.94 10.52 9.44 8.38 8.34
Dividend payout® 27.70 12.32 23.79 26.78 NM
As a percentage of owned business credit
card receivables:
Total receivables 30 days or more
delinquent at year end 2.30 2.68 3.87 488 5.26
Net principal charge-offs 3.19 5.37 6.38 7.42 7.92

(1) Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified prospective
method and began recognizing compensation expense for equity-based compensation arrangements, including
stock options, using a fair value based method. ’

(2) The results of the mortgage and leasing businesses are reported as discontinued operations in all periods
presented.

(3) Our adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No. 51, as revised, resulted in the deconsolidation of the subsidiary
trust that issued our trust preferred securities effective December 31, 2003. As aresult of the deconselidation of
that trust beginning December 31, 2003, the balance sheets include subordinated debt payable to preferred
securities trust and an equity investment in the trust rather than the trust preferred securities. Also, the

- consolidated income statements include interest expense on subordinated debt payable to preferred securities
trust beginning January 1, 2004 as compared to periods through December 31, 2003 that included payments on
the trust preferred securities classified as minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiary.

(4) Combined represents net income (loss) allocable to common stockholders divided by the combined total of
Class A and Class B weighted average common shares outstanding.

(5} Includes federal funds sold and investments available for sale.

(6) Managed statistics are non-GAAP financial measures and represent the sum of owned (GAAP) business credit
card statistics and securitized business credit card statistics. We believe that performance on a managed basis
provides useful supplemental information to investors because we retain interests in the securitized receivables

- and, therefore, we have a financial interest in and exposure to the performance of the securitized receivables.

(7) See “Liquidity, Capital Resources and Analysis of Financial Condition” in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for a reconciliation of managed assets 1o on-balance
sheet assets and a description of why management believes the ratio of equity to managed assets is useful to
investors.

(8) The dividend payout ratio for the year ended December 31, 2002 is negative and, therefore, not meaningful,

N/M — Not Meaningful
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

Qur Advanta Business Cards segment issues (through Advanta Bank Corp.) business purpose credit cards to small
businesses and business professionals in the United States. Our business credit card accounts provide approved
customers with unsecured revolving business credit lines. Advanta Business Cards revenue is generated through
interest earned on outstanding balances, interchange income, balance iransfer fees, cash usage fees and other fees.
Through the first quarter of 2001, we had two additional lending businesses, Advanta Mortgage and Advanta
Leasing Services. In the first quarter of 2001, we completed our exit from the mortgage business, announced the
discontinuance of our leasing business, and restructured our corporate functions to a size commensurate with our
ongoing businesses. Changes in estimate related to our exit from the mortgage business and discontinuance of the
leasing business are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented. The results of our ongoing
businesses are reported as continuing operations for all periods presented.

Our strategy in Advanta Business Cards is 1o maximize long-term profits by attracting and retaining high credit
quality customers and deepening our customer relationships. Our marketing campaigns are designed to achieve our
strategy by utilizing competitively-priced product offerings that typically include promotional pricing and rewards.
We have designed our recent credit card product offerings to be the best combinations of pricing, rewards, features
and customer service for small businggses and business professionals. We use a targeted approach to market
segments, aiming to anticipate the needs of various small businesses and business professionals, and to offer
products and services that are useful to them. Qur strategy also involves strengthening and deepening our
relationships with our existing customers through our rewards programs, tailored promotional offers, on-line
account management tools and a high level of customer service.

Our primary competitors are among the largest issuers of credit cards in the United States. We believe our sole
focus on the small business market, as well as our experience in serving this market, provide us with a competitive
advantage as compared to these larger competitors, Small business credit cards generally represent a less significant
portion of our competitors’ businesses as compared to their consumer credit card portfolios. We belicve that our
focus and size enable us to quickly respond to the market environment. The small business credit card market has
grown significantly in the past several years. We expect the migration of small businesses to business credit cards
from consumer credit cards, increased usage of business credit cards as a payment vehicle and the increase in the
number of small businesses to generate continued growth.

While the current market environment presents opportunities for us, it also presents us with inherent and
specific challenges. The intense competition in the credit card industry may affect our ability to altract and retain
high credit quality customers and deepen our customer relationships. The general economic environment in the
United States may also affect our results. We believe that a strong U.S. economy could favorably impact the credit
quality of our receivables and increase customer activity, while deterioration in the U.S. economy could negatively
impact the credit quality of our receivables and decrease customer activity. Increased competition or additional
improvement in the U.S. economy could result in lower net interest margin that we believe could be partially offset
by increases in customer activity and further improvements in the credit quality of our receivables. In response to
these challenges, we continue to develop and refine our product offerings, services and strategies to assist us with
originating and retaining profitable relationships with high credit quality customers. As part of our response, we
may continue to test new means of marketing to complement our direct mail offers and develop additional product
offerings to meet and anticipate the needs of small businesses and business professionals.
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Income from continuing operations includes the following business segment results for the years ended
December 31:

($ in thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004
Pre;lax income {loss):

Advanta Business Cards $135587 § 88,905 $75,182
Other'" 1,401 68.274  (2,875)
Total pretax income 136,988 157,179 72,307
Income tax expense , 52,740 40,490 28,034
Income from continuing operations $ 84248 $116,689 $44,273
Per combined common share, assuming dilution $ 28 $ 402 § 1.60

(1) Other for 2005 includes a $67.7 million pretax gain on transfer of consumer credit card business.

Our Advanta Business Cards segment offers business credit cards that are competitively priced and typically
include promotional pricing and rewards. We design our product offerings to selectively attract and retain high
credit quality customers and to respond to the competitive environment. We experience the benefits of high credit
quality customers through lower delinquency and credit loss rates and increases in transaction volume. Advanta
Business Cards pretax income increased for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, each as compared to the
prior year, due primarily to growth in average owned and securitized receivables, higher transaction volume,
improved asset quality resulting in decreases in credit loss rates on owned and securitized receivables, and decreases
in operating expenses as a percentage of owned and securitized receivables. These favorable impacis were partially
offset by higher cost of funds on securitized receivables and a decline in yields on owned and securitized receivables
as a result of our competitively-priced product offerings and an increase in the percentage of customers in the
receivable portfolio with competitive and promotional pricing in 2006 as compared to 2005 due 10 a higher rate of
receivables growth. ’

Pretax income from continuing operations in each reporting period also includes venture capital investment
realized and unrealized gains or losses reflecting the market conditions for our venture capital investments in each
respective period. The estimated fair value of our venture capital investments was $1.0 million at December 31,
2006 and $1.2 million at December 31, 2005. In recent years, we have limited our new venture capital investment
activity and we presently do not expect to make significant additional venture capital investments. Pretax income
from continuing operations includes operating expenses related to venture capital of $1.0 million in 2004. These
types of expenses were minimal in subsequent periods.

Pretax income for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes a $67.7 million pretax gain on transfer of
consumer credit card business relating to our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America Corp. (“Bank of
America”). See “Gain on Transfer of Consumer Credit Card Business” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for further discussion.

Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses was comprised of the following
components for the years ended December 31:

($ in thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004

Mortgage business pretax gain (loss) on discontinuance $500 - $(13.762) $(3,270)
Leasing business pretax gain on discontinuance 700 3,500 4,035
Income tax (expense) benefit (462) 4,002 (297}
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses $738 % (62600 $ 468
Per combined common share, assuming dilution $0.03 $ (0.21) $ 0.02

In each of the periods presented, we revised our estimates related to the exit from the mortgage business and
discentinuance of the leasing business and recognized pretax gains or losses on discontinuance as shown in the table
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above. See “Discontinued Operations” in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations for further discussion.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are
inherently subjective and are susceptible 1o significant revision as more information becomes available. Changes in
estimates could have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations. We have identified the
following as our most critical accounting policies and estimates because they require management’s most difficult,
subjective or complex judgments as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matiers thai are
inherently uncertain. We have discussed the development, selection and disclosure of the critical accounting
policies and estimates with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. Where management has provided
sensitivities below, they depict only certain possibilities out of a large set of possible scenarios. These sensitivities
do not reflect management’s expectations of changes and are for demonstrative purposes only.

Allowance for Receivable Losses

Receivables on the consolidated balance sheets are presented net of the allowance for receivable losses. We
establish the allowance for receivable losses as losses are estimated to have occurred through provisions charged to
earnings. We report provisions for credit losses, representing the portion of receivable losses attributable to
principal, separately on the consolidated income statements. We record provisions for interest and fee receivable
losses as direct reductions to interest and fee income. The allowance for receivable losses is evaluated on a regular
basis by management and is based upon management’s review of the collectibility of receivables in light of
historical experience by receivable type, the nature and volume of the receivable portfolio, adverse situations that
may affect the borrowers’ ability to repay and prevailing economic conditions. Since our business credil card
receivable portfolio is comprised of smaller balance homogeneous receivables, we generally evaluate the receiv-
ables collectively for impairment through the use of a migration analysis as well as the consideration of other factors
that may indicate increased risk of loss, such as bankrupt accounts, overlimit accounts or accounts that have been re-
aged or entered a workout program. A migration analysis is a technique used to estimate the likelihood that a
receivable or a pool of receivables will progress through various delinquency stages and charge off. The allowance
evaluation is inherently subjective as il requires estimates that are susceplible to significant revision as more
information becomes available. Changes in economic conditions, the composition and risk characteristics of the
receivables portfolio, bankruptcy laws or regulatory policies could impact our credit losses. A 10% change in the
allowance for business credit card receivable losses at December 31, 2006 would impact the allowance for
receivable losses and pretax income of the Advanta Business Cards segment by $5.0 million. See Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements for a rollforward of the allowance for receivable losses including provisions and
charge-offs in each reporting period.

Securitization Income

A significant portion of our funding for the Advanta Business Cards segment is through securitizations. Retained
interests in securitizations are included in accounts receivable from securitizations on the consolidated balance
sheets. These assets are carried at estimated fair value and the resulting unrealized gain or loss from the valuation is
included in securitization income on the consolidated income statements. We estimate the fair value of retained
interests in securitizations based on a discounted cash flow analysis if quoted market prices are not available. We
estimate the cash flows of the retained interest-only strip as the excess of the weighted average interest yield on the
pool of the receivables sold over the sum of the interest rate earned by noteholders, the servicing fee and an estimate
of future credit losses over the life of the existing receivables. We discount cash flows from the date the cash is
expected to become available to us using an interest rate that management believes a third party purchaser would
demand. The discounted cash flow analysis requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more
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information becomes available. Changes in economic conditions, market interest rates and pricing spreads, changes
in the level of payments on securitized receivables, the composition and risk characteristics of the securitized
receivables, bankruptcy laws or regulatory policies could cause actual cash flows from the securitized receivables to
vary from management’s estimates. Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements summarizes the key assump-
tions used to estimate the fair value of retained interests in securitizations during each of the reporting periods and at
December 31, 2006 and 2005. It also includes a sensitivity analysis of the valuations of retained interests in
securitizations, assuming two changes in each of those assumptions at December 31, 2006.

Rewards Programs

We offer rewards programs with most of our business purpose credit cards. Under our rewards programs, customers
may carn either cash back rewards or business rewards that can be redeemed for travel, gift certificates or
merchandise. We estimate the costs of future reward redemptions and record a liability at the time cash back rewards
or business rewards are earned by the customer. These costs of future reward redemptions are recorded as a
reduction of other revenues on the consolidated income statements. Estimates of the costs of future reward
redemptions require management to make predictions about future customer behavior, including assumptions
regarding the percentage of earned rewards that customers will ultimately redeem and the cost of business rewards.
We base the assumptions on historical experience, consideration of changes in portfolio composition and changes in
the rewards programs, including redemption terms. It is reasonably possible that actual results will differ from our
estimates or that our estimated liability for these programs may change. If either the estimated percentage of earned
rewards that customers will ultimately redeem for each program or the estimated cost per redeemed reward point
increased by 10% at December 31, 2006, other revenues of the Advanta Business Cards segment would decrease
$3.1 million and other liabilities would increase by the same amount.

We revised our estimated costs of future reward redemptions in each of the three years ended December 31,
2006 based on changes in experience in redemption rates and the costs of business rewards redeemed, and/or
changes in the rewards programs. The changes in estimated costs of future reward redemptions increased other
revenues $500 thousand in the year ended December 31, 2006 and decreased other revenues $1.2 million in 2005
and $2.7 million in 2004,

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate is based on expected income, statutory tax rates, current tax law and tax planning opportunities
available to us in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Management judgment is required in determining
our effective tax rate and in evaluating our tax positions. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the
timing of reselution of any particular tax matter, we believe that our income tax accruals reflect the probable
outcome of known tax contingencies.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences
between the book and tax bases of the various assets and liabilities and give current recognition to changes in tax
rates and laws. Changes in tax laws, rates, regulations and policies, or the final determination of tax audits or
examinations, could materially affect our tax estimates and are outside of our control, We evaluate the realizability
of the deferred tax asset and recognize a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more
likely than not that some portien or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. When evaluating the
realizability of the deferred tax asset, we consider estimates of expected future taxable income, existing and
projected book/tax differences, tax planning strategies available, and the general and industry specific economic
outiook. Estimates of expected future taxable income are based on forecasts for continuing operations over a
reasonable forecasting horizon and the general and industry specific economic outlook. This realizability analysis is
inherently subjective, as it requires management to forecast the business credit card market and the competitive and
general economic environment in future periods.

Changes in estimates of deferred tax asset realizability or effective tax rates may impact the income tax
expense of our Advanta Business Cards segment, other continuing operations not attributable to segments or
discontinued operations; depending on the circumstances associated with the change in estimate. The net deferred
tax asset is included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets. A 10% decrease in the estimated realizability
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of our net deferred tax assets would decrease deferred tax assets and increase income tax expense by $3.9 million at
December 31, 2006. A 100 basis peint increase in our effective tax rate would increase our income tax expense by
$1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

In January 2005, we received the Internal Revenue Service’s final approval of the settlement of tax disputes in
our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America. The settlement resulted in a reduction of our deferred tax asset
related to net operating loss carryforwards and a reduction in the valuation allowance in 2005. See “Income Taxes”
in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for further discussion.

Advanta Business Cards

Advanta Business Cards originates new accounts directly and through the use of third parties. The following table
provides key statistical information on our business credit card portfolio for the years ended December 31. Credit
quality statistics for the business credit card portfolio are included in the “Provision and Allowance for Receivable
Losses” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Average owned receivables $ 1,059,566 § 835,093 $ 626,383
Average securitized receivables $ 3,337,888  $2,675906  $2,524,547
Customer transaction volume $12,342,149  $9,830,979  $8,256,352
New account originations 370,564 237,005 130,563
Average number of active accounts'" 713,302 598,839 582,625
Ending number of accounts at December 31 1,126,083 877,114 777,943

(1) Active accounts are defined as accounts with a balance at month-end. Active account statistics do not include
charged-off accounts. The statistics reported above are the average number of active accounts for the years
ended December 31.

The increases in new account originations for years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are due to enhanced
product offerings resulting in improved effectiveness in account acquisition campaigns as well as the size and
number of account acquisition campaigns. Based on our current marketing plans and strategies, we expect to
originate over 300 thousand new accounts in the year ending December 31, 2007, and we expect owned and
securitized business credit card receivables to grow by between 20% and 25% for the year ending December 31,
2007.

The components of pretax income for Advanta Business Cards for the years ended December 31 were as
follows:

{($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Net interest income on owned interest-earning assets $ 97505 $ 85670 $ 63415
Noninterest revenues 332,924 284,556 285.610
Provision for credit losses (38,650) (40,315) (42,486)
Operating expenses (256,192)  (241,006) (231,357
Pretax income $ 135587 § 88905 $ 75182

Net interest income on owned interest-earning assets increased $11.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 as compared to 2005 and increased $22.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004.
The increases in both years were due primarily to increases in average owned business credit card receivables,
partially offset by decreases in the average yield earned on our business credit card receivables as a result of our
competitively-priced product offerings and an increase in the percentage of customers in the receivable portfolio
with competitive and promeotional pricing in 2006 as compared to 2005 due to a higher rate of receivables growth.
Average owned business credit card receivables increased $224 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 as
compared to 2005, and increased $209 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004.
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Noninterest revenues include secunitization income, servicing revenues, interchange income and other
revenues, and are reduced by rewards costs. Noninterest revenues increased $48.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 due primarily to higher transaction volume that resulted in higher
interchange income and increased volume of securitized receivables that resulted in higher servicing fees, partially
offset by higher rewards costs. Securitization income also increased for 2006 as compared to 2005 due to increased
volume of securitized receivables and decreases in the net principal charge-off rates on securitized receivables,
partially offset by an increase in the floating interest rates earned by noteholders and a decrease in yields on
securitized receivables. Noninterest revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 include a $2.4 million
investment gain on MasterCard Incorporated’s redemption of a portion of our shares related to their initial public
offering. Noninterest revenues decreased $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004.
The most significant components of the $1.1 million variance were a decrease in securitization income, an increase
in interchange income resulting from higher transaction volume, and an increase in rewards costs. The decrease in
securitization income for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004 was due primarily to increases in
the floating interest rates earned by noteholders, partially offset by increased volume of securitized receivables and
decreases in charge-off rates on securitized receivables. Noninterest revenues also include the impact of changes in
estimated costs of future reward redemptions in each reporting period. See further discussion in the “Other
Revenues” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The decrease in provision for credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 was due
primarily to lower bankruptcy petition filings and improved credit quality of the portfolio, partially offset by
increases in average owned business credit card receivables. The decrease in provision for credit losses for the year
ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004 was due primarily to a reduction in the estimate of losses inherent in
the portfolio based on delinquency and charge-off trends and the composition of the portfolio that included more
high credit quality customers, partially offset by growth in average owned business credit card receivables. The
reduction in the estimate of losses in 2005 was further offset by additional provisions related to potential
incremental exposures from increases in the number of customers filing for bankruptcy protection before the
change in bankruptcy law on October 17, 2005 and from the 2005 hurricanes. See “Provision and Allowance for
Receivable Losses” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for more detailed discussion and a table of credit quality data.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased as compared to 2005 due primarily to
higher amortization of deferred origination costs related to the increases in new account originations, and higher
business credit card marketing expenses related 1o incremental customer acquisition costs, Operating expenses
increased for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004 due primarily to higher amortization of
deferred origination costs resulting from the increase in new account originations.

Interest Income and Expense

Interest income increased $30.2 million to $169.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to
2005, and increased $32.9 million to $139.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004,
The increases in interest income for both 2006 and 2005 were due primarily to increases in average owned business
credit card receivables and federal funds sold, and an increase in average yields earned on our federal funds sold and
investments, partially offset by decreases in the average yield earned on our business credit card receivables. The
decrease in the average yield on our business credit card receivables for 2005 as compared to 2004 was the result of
our competitively-priced product offerings. The decrease in the average yield on our business credit card
receivables for 2006 was primarily the result of an increase in the percentage of customers in the receivable
portfolio with competitive and promotional pricing as compared to 2005 due to a higher rate of receivables growth
in 2006. Based on expected levels of receivables growth in 2007 and ptanned marketing strategies, we expect the
average vield earned on business credit card receivables for 2007 to continue to decrease as compared to 2006, but
the amount of decrease in average yield is expected to be less than the amount of decrease experienced in 2006 as
compared 10 2005.

Interest expense increased $17.7 million to $75.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared
to 2005 and increased $12.0 mitlion to $57.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004,
The increases in interest expense were due primarily to increases in deposits outstanding and increases in the
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average cost of funds on deposits resulting from the interest rate environment. Average deposits increased
$206 miilion for the year ended Decémber 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 and increased $284 million for the
vear endéd Decemnber 31, 2005 as compared to 2004. Average deposits for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 were higher due to the funding of higher levels of on-balance sheet assets as a result of growth in receivables
and securitizations in their accurnulation perieds in those years.

The following table provides an analysis of interest income and expense data, average balance sheet data, net
interest spread and net interest margin. The net interest spread represents the difference between the yield on
interest-earning assets and the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities. The net interest margin represents the
difference between the yield on interest-earning assets and the average rate paid to fund interest-earning assets.
Interest income includes late fees on business credit card receivables. .

Interest Rate Analysis and Average Balances

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Average Average Average Average Average Average
($ in thousands) Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest " Rate Balance Interest Rate
Interest-earning assets:
Owned receivables;
Business credit cards" $1.059,566 $125,580  11.85% $ 8350m3 $106,888  1280% 3 626383 § 82,054  13.10%
Other receivables 7,656 375 450 8,987 475 _5.29 11,406 525 _4.60
Total receivables 1,067,222 125,955 11.80 844,080 107,363 12.72 637,789 82,579 12.95
Federal funds sold 396,835 20,003 5.04 372,389 12,067 3.24 279,952 3,824 1.37
Restricted interest-bearing
deposits 1.321 50 379 1,806 37 2.05 10,045 100 1.00
Tax-free investments™’ 576 3t 538 968 59 6.10 806 45 5.58
Taxable investments 126,119 5,568 4.41 166,578 5,287 317 169,618 3,037 1.79
Retained interests in
securilizations - 203,921 18,158 8.90 168,907 14,809 8.77 151,770 17,140 11.29
Interest-earning assets of
discontinued operations 0 0 0.00 7,724 677 8.76 40,624 4,207 10.36
Total interest-earning assets"’ 1,795,994  $169,765 9.45% 1,562,452 $140,299 8.98% 1,290,604 $110,932 8.650%
Noninferest-eamning assets 444,984 406,943 301,726
Total assets $2,240,978 $1,969,395 $1,592,330
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Money market savings $ 47835 § 2253 471% % 1610 $ 218 286% % 2962 % 85 2.838%
Time deposits under .
$100,000 428,192 18,867 4.41 401,641 14,146 3.52 338,547 9,715 2.37
Time deposits of $100,000
or more 705,203 31,159 442 565,694 19,381 3.43 348,957 10,120 _230
Total deposits 1,181,230 52,279 443 974,945 33,745 3.46 690,466 19,920 2.39
Debt 216,364 13,818 6.39 241,482 14,877 6.16 281,973 17,445 6.19
Subordinated debt payable to '
preferred securities trust 103,093 9,167 8.89 103,093 9,158 8.88 103,093 9,158 8.38
Qnher bomrowings 850 46 342 61 2 378 145 2 138
Total interest-bearing -
liabilities 1,501,537 $ 75,310 5.02% 1,319,581 % 57,782 438% 1075677 § 46,525 4.33%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities 201,443 170,484 149,535
Total liabilities 1,702,980 1,490,065 1,225,212
Stockholders' equity 537,998 479,330 367,118
Total liabilities and
stockhelders’ equity $2,240,978 . $1,969,395 $1,592,330
Net interest spread 4.43% ) 4.60% _A427%
5.26% 5.28% 4.9%

Net interest margin

(1) Interest income includes late fees for owned business credit card receivables of $8.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, $7.1 million for 2005, and $5.8 million for 2004. '

(2) Interest and average rate for tax-free securities are computed on a tax equivalent basis using a statutory rate of
35%. -

(3) Includes assets held and available for sale and nonaccrual receivables.

(4) Includes funding of assets for both continuing and discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2004.
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Interest Variance Analysis

The following table presents the effects of changes in average volume and interest rates on individual financial
statement line items on a tax equivalent basis using a statutory rate of 35%. The effects on individual financial
statement line items are not necessarily indicative of the overall effect on net interest income. Total interest income
includes income from assets held and available for sale.

2006 vs. 2005 . 2005 vs, 2004
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
Changes Changes  Changes Total Changes Changes  Changes Total
‘ in in in Rate/ Increase in in in Rate/ - Increase
($ in thousands) Volume'”  Rate”  Volume  (Decrease) Volume'™  Rate™  Volume™  (Decrease)
Interest income from:
QOwned receivables:
Business credit cards $28.733 $(7,933) $(2,108) $18,692 $27.341 $(1,879) § (628) $24,834
Other receivables (€[] (35) 5 (100) (111 79 (18) (50}
- Federal funds sold 792 6,703 441 7.936 1,266 5,235 1,742 8,243
Restricted interest-bearing :
deposits (1 31 (8) 13 (82) 105 (86) (63}
Tax-free investments 24) (N 3 (28) 9 4 1 14
Taxable investments (1,283) 2,066 (502) 281 54) 2,341 (37 2,250
Retained interests in
securitizations 3,0M 220 58 3,349 1,935 (3,825) (441 (2,331)
Interest-earning assets of
discontinued operations (677} 0 .0 (677 (3,408) (650) 528 (3,530)
Total interest income $30,532 $ 1,045 32111 $29,4566 $26,896 31410 $1,061 $29,367
Interest expense on: -
Deposits:
Money market savings $ 1150 $ 141 $ 744 $ 2,035 § 134 M $ 0 $ 133
Time deposits under
$100,000 935 3,578 211 4,721 1,811 2,201 419 4,431
Time deposits of
$100,000 or more 4,785 5,600 1,393 11,778 6,285 1,849 1,127 9,261 |
Debt (1,547) 555 &N (1,059 (2,506) (85) 23 (2,568)
Subordinated debt payable
to preferred securities
trust 0 9 0 9 0 0 0 0
Other borrowings 30 1 13 44 (D 3 (2) 0
Total interest expense 5,353 - 03881 2,294 17,528 5,723 3,967 1,567 11,257
Net interest income $25,179 $(8,836) $(4,405) $11,938 521,173 $(2,557) $ (506) $18,110

(1) Equals change in volume multiplied by prior year rate.
(2) Equals change in rate multiplied by prior year volume.
(3) Equals change in rate multiplied by change in volume.

Provision and Allowance for Receivable Losses

For the year ended December 31, 2006, provision for credit losses on a consolidated basis decreased $1.7 million to
$38.6 million as compared to 2003, and the provision for interest and fee losses on business credit card receivables,
which is recorded as a direct reduction to interest and fee income, decreased $440 thousand to $8.8 million as
compared to 2005. The decreases in provisions were due primarily to lower bankruptcy petition filings and
improved credit quality of the portfolio, pariially offset by an increase in average owned business credit card
receivables of $224 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005. The improved credit
quality is evident in lower delinquency and charge-off rates. Charge-off rates in both 2005 and 2006 were impacted
by the change in bankruptcy law on October 17, 2005 that resulted in receipt of a significantly higher than average
number of bankruptcy filings in September through November 2005, as borrowers rushed to file their petitions
before the new bankruptcy law took effect. We estimated that the surge in bankruptcy petition filings in 2005
principally reflected an acceleration of losses that we otherwise would have expected to occur in later periods,
including the first half of 2006. Subsequent to periods impacted by the 2005 acceleration, we experienced tower
levels of monthly bankruptcy petition filings as compared to the months preceding the surge in 2005. The
acceleration of bankruptcy charge-offs into 2005, the subsequent reduction in bankruptcy petition filings and
improved credit quality each contributed to the lower level of charge-offs for the year ended December 31, 2006 as
compared to 2003.
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For the year ended December 31, 2005, provision for credit losses on a consolidated basis decreased
$2.1 million to $40.3 million as compared to 2004, and the provision for interest and fee losses, which is recorded
as a direct reduction to interest and fee income, decreased $444 thousand to $9.3 million as compared to 2004, The
decreases in provision for credit losses and provision for interest and fee losses were due primarily to a reduction in
the estimate of losses inherent in the portfolio based on delinquency and charge-off trends and the composition of
the portfolio that included more high credit quality customers, partially offset by growth in average owned business
credit card receivables of $209 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004. The reduction in
the estimate of losses in 2005 was further offset by additional provisions related to potential incremental exposures
from increases in the number of customers filing for bankruptcy protection and from the 2005 hurricanes.

The allowance for receivable losses on business credit card receivables was $49.7 million as of December 31,
2006, or 4.39% of owned receivables, which was lower as a percentage of owned receivables than the allowance of
$44.3 million, or 5.04% of owned receivables, as of December 31, 2005. Owned business credit card receivables
increased to $1.1 billion at December 31, 2006 from $879 million at December 31, 2003. The decrease in allowance
as a percentage of owned receivables reflects a reduction in the estimate of losses inherent in the portfolio based on
improvements in delinquency and net principal charge-off rates reflecting the composition of the portfolio that
included more high credit quality customers. The decrease also reflects a reduction in our estimate of potential loss
exposure related to customers affected by the 2005 hurricanes, based on subsequent experience.

In December 2006, the federal financial institutions regulatory agencies issued the Interagency Policy
Statement on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses that replaces the banking agencies’ previous policy
statement on allowance for loan and lease losses. The policy statement was revised to ensure consistency with
GAAP and describes the responsibilities of the board of directors, management and bank examiners regarding the
allowance for loan and lease losses. In accordance with the guidance in the policy statement, management
implemented enhancements to the allowance process and documentation as of December 31, 2006 that had no
impact on our reported results. Management is currently evaluating the implementation of additional process and
documentation enhancements in accordance with the policy statement. We do not expect the implementation to
have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Our charge-off and re-age policies conform to the Uniform Retail Credit Classification and Account Man-
agement Policy, as well as the Credit Card Lending Guidance, issued by the federal financial institutions regulatory
agencies. Our charge-off policy for contractually delinquent business credit card accounts is to charge-off an unpaid
receivable no later than the end of the month in which it becomes and remains past due 180 cumulative days from
the contractual due date. Our charge-off policy for bankrupt business credit card accounts is to charge-off the unpaid
receivable within 60 days of receipt of notification of filing from the bankruptcy court or within the timeframes
adopted in the Uniform Retail Credit Classification and Account Management Policy, whichever is shorter.
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The following table provides credit quality data as of and for the year-to-date periods indicated for our owned
receivable portfolio, including a summary of allowances for receivable losses, delinquencies, nonaccrual receiv-
ables, accruing receivables past due 90 days or more, and net principal charge-offs. Consolidated data includes
business credit cards and other receivables. Accounts previously reported as delinquent that have been re-aged after
meeting prescribed criteria and are not reported in delinquency statistics were $6.4 million at December 31, 2006
and $7.7 million at December 31, 2005. Gross interest income that would have been recorded for nonaccrual
receivables, had interest been accrued throughout the year in accordance with the assets’ original terms, was
approximately $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $3.8 million for 2005 and $2.9 million for 2004.
Prior to October 1, 2002, the billing and recognition of interest and fees was discontinued when the related
receivable became 90 days past due or when the account was classified as fraudulent, bankrupt, deceased, hardship
or workout. Effective October 1, 2002, we continue to bill and recognize interest and fees on accounts when they
become 90 days past due, and an additional allowance for receivable losses is estabhshed for the additional billings
estimated to be uncollectible through a provision for interest and fee losses.

December 31,

($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Consolidated — Owned
Allowance for receivable losses $50,926  $45,589 $50,478 348454  $46,159
Receivables 30 days or more delinquent 26,053 23,646 28,369 25,413 25,197
Receivables 90 days or more delinquent 12,632 10,837 13,638 . 12,808 12,755
Nonaccrual receivables 10,524 11,476 11,393 7,978 5,525
Accruing receivables past due 90 days or more 11,302 9.479 12,233 11,320 10,535
As a percentage of gross receivables:

Allowance for receivable losses 4.46% 5.14% 6.81% 9.06%" 9.81%

Receivables 30 days or more delinquent 228 2.66 3.33 4.75 .35

Receivables 0 days or more delinquent 1.11 1.22 1.84 2.39 271

Nonaccrual receivables 0.92 1.29 1.54 1.49 1.17

Accruing receivables past due 90 days or more 0.99 1.07 1.65 2.12 224
Net principal charge-offs $33,780 $44,870 $39,943  $43,704 $37.416
As a percentage of average gross recewables

Net principal charge-offs 3.17% 5.32% 6.26% 7.18% 7.49%
Business Credit Cards — Owned
Allowance for receivable losses $49,715  $44,323  $49,190 $47,04]1  $44,466
Receivables 30 days or more delinquent 26,053 23,595 28,287 25,301 23,406
Receivables 90 days or more delinquent 12,632 10,837 13,638 12,696 11,959
Nonaccrual receivables 10,524 11.476 11,393 7.866 4,729
Accruing receivables past due 90 days or more 11,302 9,479 12,233 11,320 10,535
As a percentage of gross receivables: :

Allowance for receivable losses 4.39% 5.04% 6.73% 9.08% 9.99%

Receivables 30 days or more delinquent 2.30 2.68 3.87 4.88 526

Receivables 90 days or more delinquent 1.11 1.23 1.87 2.45 2.69

Nonaccrual receivables 0.93 1.30 1.56 1.52 1.06

Accruing receivables past due 90 days or more 1.00 1.08 1.67 2.19 2.37
Net principal charge-offs $33,775 544,865 $39.936 $43,670 $37,400
As a percentage of average gross receivables:

Net principal charge-offs 3.19% 5.37% 6.38% 7.42% 7.92%
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Securitization Income

We sell business credit card receivables through securitizations accounted for as sales under GAAP. We continue to
own and service the accounts that generate the securitized receivables. Securitizations impacted the following line
items on the consolidated income statements for the years ended December 31:

{$ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Securitization income ' $114,938  $109,051  $124,769
Interest income (discount accretion) 18,158 14,809 17,140
Interchange income 155,160 126,056 112,568
Servicing revenues 63.726 51,079 49,516

Total $351,982  $300.995  $303,993

Qur retained interests in securitizations entitle us to the excess spread on the securitized receivables. Excess
spread represents income-related cash flows on securitized receivables net of noteholders’ interest, servicing fees
and credit losses. Fair value estimates used in the recognition of securitization income include cash flow estimates
of interest income on securitized receivables in excess of interest expense (interest earned by noteholders), servicing
fees and credit losses on securitized receivables.

Securitization income increased for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 due to increased
volume of securitized receivables and decreases in the net principal charge-off rates on securitized receivables,
partially offset by an increase in the floating interest rates earned by noteholders and a decrease in the yields on
securitized receivables. Yields on securitized receivables decreased for the year ended December 31, 2006 as
compared to 2005 as a result of an increase in the percentage of customers in the receivable portfolio with
competitive and promotional pricing in 2006 as compared to 2005 due to a higher rate of receivables growth. The
increase in the floating interest rates earned by noteholders for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to
2005 resulted from the rising interest rate environment. The decrease in charge-off rates on securitized receivables
for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 was due to lower bankrupicy petition filings, improved
asset quality of the portfolio and the impact of the change in bankrupicy law in 2003 discussed in the “Provision and
Allowance for Receivable Losses” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations. We estimate that the increase in bankruptcy charge-offs in 2005 principally reflected an
acceleration of losses that we otherwise would have expected to occur in later periods, including the first half of
2006. As a result of lower yields, higher floating interest rates earned by noteholders, the impact of the timing of
bankruptcy charge-offs and our expectations regarding future charge-off rates, our estimate of future cash flows
over the three-month weighted average life of the existing securitized receivables decreased in the year ended
December 31, 2006 as compared to the estimates as of December 31, 2005, which resulted in an unfavorable
valuation adjustment to the retained interest-only strip of $3.5 million in 2006. Our future expectations for yields on
securitized receivables are similar to those in owned business credit card receivables as discussed in the “Interest
Income and Expense” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

The decrease in securitization income for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004 was due
primarily 1o increases in the floating interest rates earned by noteholders resuiting from the rising interest rate
envirenment, partially offset by increased volume of securitized receivables and a decrease in charge-off rates on
securitized receivables. The decrease in charge-off rates on securitized receivables was due to the composition of
the portfolio that included more high credit quality customers, partially offset by an increase in bankruptcy charge-
offs resulting from the impact of the change in bankruptcy law in 2005. The acceleration of bankruptcy charge-offs
in 2005 lowered our estimate of future credit losses over the life of the existing receivables, which resulted in a
$3.5 million favorable valuation adjustment to the retained interest-only strip as of December 31, 2005,

Managed Receivable Data

In addition to evaluating the financial performance of the Advanta Business Cards segment under GAAP, we
evaluate Advanta Business Cards’ performance on a managed basis. Our managed business credit card receivable
portfolio is comprised of both owned and securitized business credit card receivables. We believe that performance
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on a managed basis provides useful supplemental information to investors because we retain-interests in the
securitized receivables and, therefore, we have a financial interest in and exposure to the performance of the
securitized receivables. Revenue and credit data on the managed portfolio provides additional information useful in
understanding the performance of the retained interests in securitizations.

The following tables provide managed data for Advanta Business Cards and a reconciliation of the managed
data to the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures:

Managed Financial Measures and Statistics

»

Advanta Business Securitization Advanta Business

($ in thousands) Cards GAAP GAAP Ratio™” Adjustments Cards Managed Managed Ratio'"
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Net interest income $ 97505 7.72% 3 260,319 $ 357,824 8.14%
Provision for credit losses 38,650 3.06 119,727 158,377 3.60
Noninterest revenues 332,924 26.35 (140,592) 192,332 437
Average business credit card interest-

earning assets 1,263,487 3,133,967 4,397,454
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Net interest income $ 85670 8.53% $ 280,021 $ 365,691 10.42%
Provision for credit losses 40,315 4.02 152,118 192,433 5.48
Noninterest revenues 284,556 28.34 (127,903) 156,653 4,46
Average business credit card interest-

earning assets 1,004,000 2,506,999 3,510,999
Year Ended December 31, 2004
Net interest income $ 63415 8.15% $ 310,509 $ 373,924 11.87%
Provision for credit losses 42,486 5.46 170,024 212,510 6.75
Noninterest revenues 285,610 36.70 (140,485) 145,125 4.61
Average business credit card interest-

earning assets 778,153 2,372,177 3,150,930
As of December 31, 2006
Ending business credit card receivables $1,133,132 $4,073,128 $5,206,260
Receivables 30 days or more

delinquent 26,053 2.30% 108,159 134,212 2.58%
Receivables 90 days or more

delinquent 12,632 1.11 52,279 64,911 125
As of December 31, 2005
Ending business credit card receivables $ 879,468 $2,880,401 $3,759,869
Receivables 30 days or more

delinquent 23,595 2.68% 87,610 111,205 2.96%
Receivables 90 days or more

delinquent 10,837 1.23 40,223 51,060 1.36

(1) Ratios are as a percentage of average business credit card interest-earning assets except delinquency. ratios
which are as a percentage of ending business credit card receivables.

(2) Includes the amount by which the credit losses would have been higher had the securitized receivables
remained as owned and the provision for credit losses on securitized receivables been equal to actual reported
charge-offs. The year ended December 31, 2006 includes a $3.5 million unfavorable valuation adjustment to
retained interests in securitizations as an increase to provision for credit losses. The year ended December 31,
2005 includes a $3.5 million favorable valuation adjustment to retained interests in securitizations as a
reduction to provision for credit losses,
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Servicing Revenues

Servicing revenues were $63.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $51.1 million for 2005 and
$49.5 million for 2004. The increases in servicing revenues in 2006 and 2005 were due to increased volurne of
securitized business credit card receivables.

Other Revenues
Year Ended December 31,

($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Interchange income $203,369 $164.853 $140,534
Cash back rewards (45,845) (33,581 (24,713
Business rewards (22,216) (20,140) (16,513)
Balance transfer fees 7,848 5,561 4,572
Investment securities gains (losses), net 5,508 780 (1,498)
Other business credit card fees 3,545 3,283 2911
Cash usage fees 3,487 3,199 3,097
Earnings on investment in Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. 1,246 1,948 2,545
Other, net 2,349 4,807 2,621
Total other revenues, net $159,291  $130,710 $113,556

Interchange income includes interchange fees on both owned and securitized business credit cards. The increases in
interchange income for years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, each as compared to the prior year, were due
primarily to higher merchandise sales transaction volume. The average interchange rates were 2.2% for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 as compared to 2.1% for 2004. The average interchange rates are impacted by
the interchange fees established by MasterCard®” in April of each year.

The increase in cash back rewards for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 was due
primarily to higher merchandise sales transaction volume and a higher average number of business credit card
accounts in the cash back rewards programs. The increase in cash back rewards for the year ended December 31,
2005 as compared to 2004 was due primarily to higher merchandise sales transaction volume, higher average
business credit card accounts in the cash back rewards programs and higher costs of rewards programs. The
increases in business rewards for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, each as compared to the prior year,
were due primarily to higher merchandise sales transaction volume, partially offset by changes in estimates of costs
of future reward redemptions. Each of the three years ended December 31, 2006 includes changes in estimates of
costs of future reward redemptions based on changes in experience in redemption rates and the costs of business
rewards redeemed, and/or changes in the rewards programs. Changes in estimates increased other revenues $500
thousand in the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to a decrease of $1.2 million in 2005 and a decrease of
$2.7 million in 2004.

The increase in balance transfer fees for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 was due
primarily to a higher volume of balance transfers resulting from higher new account originations. The increase in
balance transfer fees for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004 was due primarily to an increase in
average owned business credit card receivables, partially offset by the impact of an increase in life of balance
promotional offers that generally do not have a transaction fee but carry a higher interest rate than offers with a
transaction fee.

Investment securities gains (losses), net, include realized and unrealized gains and losses on venture capital
investments reflecting the market conditions for our investments in each respective period, as well as realized gains
and losses on the sale of other investments. We had gains of $1.4 million on venture capital investments for the year
ended December 31, 2006, as compared to a net gain of $593 thousand for 2005 and a net loss of $1.5 million for

* MasterCard® is a federally registered service mark of MasterCard International, Inc.
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2004. Realized gains on other investments in 2006 include a $2.4 million gain on MasterCard Incorporated’s
redemption of a portion of our shares related to their initial public offering.

As a result of our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America and the combination of Bank of America’s
and Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P.’s consumer credit card businesses, our partnership interest in Fleet Credit Card
Services, L.P. represents an interest in the combined business. Subsequent to the date of the agreement with Bank of
America, we have accounted for our investment in Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. using the cost method and have
recognized dividend distributions from net accumulated earnings as income. Prior to the date of the agreement, we
recognized earnings allocable to our partnership interest using the equity method.

Gain on Transfer of Consumer Credit Card Business

On May 28, 2004, Advanta Corp. and certain of its subsidiaries and Bank of America signed an agreement to resolve
all outstanding litigation, including partnership tax disputes, between Advanta and Fleet Financial Group, Inc.
(“Fleet”), which was acquired by Bank of America, relating to the transfer of our consumer credit card business to
Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. in 1998. The agreement was subject to the Internal Revenue Service’s final approval
of the settlement of the tax disputes. We received the final approval of the Internal Revenue Service in January 2005
and, as a result, we received $63.8 million in cash from Bank of America in February 2005, representing a return of
the payments that we made to Fleet in the Delaware state court litigation in February 2004. Consistent with the
terms of our agreement with Bank of America, all outstanding litigation between Advanta and Fleet was dismissed
in February 2005. The overall impact of the agreement with Bank of America, including the cash received,
settlement of the tax disputes and reevaluation of the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets, was a pretax gain of
$67.7 million, tax expense of $5.6 million and an increase in additional paid-in capital of $6.0 million in the year
ended December 31, 2005. See “Income Taxes” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations for further discussion of the income tax impact of our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank
of America.

Operating Expenses _ .
Year Ended December 31,

($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Salaries and employee benefits , $ 96371 % 96,012 $ 92,863
Amortization of deferred origination costs, net 48,285 41,729 33,508
External processing 25,072 21,216 20,267
Marketing - 23,193 20,560 21,014
Professional fees , 11,907 12,236 14,043
Equipment 9,942 10,954 11,173
Occupancy 9,102 8,180 8,605
Credit 5,140 5,064 5,781
Other 27,800 27,107 26,954
Total operating expenses $256,812  $243.058  $234,298

Salaries and employee benefits for the year ended December 31, 2006 include an increase in expense related to
employee stock options resulting from the adopticn of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, discussed below. Salaries and employee benefits for the year ended December 31,
2005 include $2.9 million of expense associated with a separation agreement with a former executive in the first
quarter of 2005, and a reduction in staffing levels implemented in the second quarter of 2005 as part of productivity
and efficiency initiatives that resulted in $2.1 million of severance and related costs. Salaries and employee benefits
for the year ended December 31, 2004 include $1.6 million of expense associated with executive compensation
incurred in connection with changes in senior management and venture capital personnel severance costs.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R that addresses accounting for equity-based compensation
arrangements, including employee stock options. Entities are required to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for awards of equity instruments at the grant date of the award using a fair value based method.
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Prior to January 1, 2006, we used the intrinsic value based method of accounting for employee stock options
permitted by SFAS No. 123 Accounting for Stock Based Compensation, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, and, as a result, had not recognized compensation
expense for options granted to employees that had no intrinsic value at grant date. We adopted SFAS No. 123R on
January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method, and recognized $3.8 million of salaries and employee
benefits expense related to employee stock options for the year ended December 31, 2006. As of December 31,
2006, total unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding stock options was $8.9 million and the
expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years.

Amounts paid to third parties to acquire business credit card accounts and certain other origination costs are
deferred and netted against any related business credit card origination fee, and the net amount is amortized on a
straight-line basis over a privilege period of one year. Amortization of deferred origination costs, net, increased for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, each as compared to the prior year, due primarily to an increase in
new account originations, partially offset by a decrease in our average acquisition cost per account due to enhanced
product offerings resulting in improved effectiveness in account acquisition campaigns.

External processing expense increased for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 due
primarily to an increase in the number of accounts and higher transaction volume,

Marketing expense increased for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005 due primarily to
incremental customer acquisition costs largely associated with new prospect lists, partially offset by a reduction in
sponsorship and advertising costs associated with cultural and tennis events. Marketing expense decreased for the
year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004 due primarily to higher costs in 2004 related to our
development of alliances with other organizations serving segments of the small business market and amortization
expense on marketing rights related to certain of these alliances. Partially offsetting this decrease were increased
costs in 2005 associated with sponsorship activities relating to cultural events and the development of programs to
originate new customers as compared to the same period of 2004.

Professional fees decreased for the year ended December 31, 2005 as compared to 2004 due primarily to
decreases in the use of external consultants for marketing initiatives.

Occupancy expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes approximately $571 thousand of expense
relating to lease commitments associated with the closure in the first quarter of 2004 of an operational location
previously used for venture capital operations. :

In 2007, we plan to pilot new outsourcing initiatives, including offshoring, involving certain of our business
processes and information technology, functions and to pursue other re-engineering opportunities. We currently
anticipate incurring approximately $5 million of incremental operating expenses in 2007 related to these activities.

Litigation Contingencies

Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries are involved in class action lawsuits, other litigation, claims and legal
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business or discontinued operations. Management believes that
the aggregate loss, if any, resulting from existing litigation, claims and other legal proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations based on our current expectations regarding
the ultimate resolutions of these existing actions after consultation with our attorneys. However, due to the inherent
uncertainty in litigation and since the ultimate resolutions of our litigation, claims and other legal proceedings are
influenced by factors outside of our control, it is reasonably possible that actual results will differ from our
estimates,

Income Taxes

Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations was $52.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
$40.5 million for 2005 and $28.0 million for 2004. Our effective tax rate was 38.5% for 2006, 25.8% for 2005 and
38.8% for 2004,
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In January 2005, we received the Internal Revenue Service’s final approval of the settlement of tax disputes in
our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America and in February 2005, we received $63.8 million in cash from
Bank of America. See “Gain on Transfer of Consumer Credit Card Business” in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for further discussion. Excluding the impact of the Bank
of America agreement and reevaluation of the valuation allowance discussed below, our effective tax rate would
have been 39.0% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The settiement of the tax disputes resulted in an allocation
of $381 million of the disputed partnership tax deductions to Fleet, which was acquired by Bank of America, and
$617 thousand of the disputed $47 million partnership taxable gain to Advanta. The impact to us of the tax
deduction and gain allocation was a reduction in our deferred tax asset related to net operating loss carryforwards of
$133.4 million and a corresponding reduction in our valuation allowance on deferred tax assets of $133.4 million,
both in the year ended December 31, 2005. Upon receipt of the Internal Revenue Service's approval of the
settlement of the tax disputes, the remaining valuation allowance of $12.4 million was evaluated, and management
determined that it was more likely than not that the remaining deferred tax asset was realizable and therefore, no
valuation allowance was needed, resulting in a $6.4 million reduction in tax expense and a $6.0 million increase in
additional paid-in capital in the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in additional paid-in capital
represented the portion of the valuation allowance that had been related to tax benefits from stock-based
compensation. The gain associated with the original transfer of assets to Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. in
1998 was not subject to income tax, and therefore, a substantial portion of the February 2004 payment to Fleet was
not tax-deductible. A substantial portion of the $63.8 million payment received in February 2005 was not taxable
since it is a return of our payment to Fleet in February 2004, As of December 31, 2006, the cumulative gain on
transfer of consumer credit card business and our deficit capital account in Fleet Credit Card Services L.P. on a tax
basis for which no deferred taxes have been provided is approximately $650 million, as the transaction structure
remains nontaxable under current tax law. See Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the third quarter of 2006, we completed the preparation and filing of our 2005 U.S. federal income tax return
and recognized a current tax benefit and deferred tax provision to reflect a reduction in current taxes payable and
deferred tax assets from the amounts previously estimated. These results were due to changes in the timing of
certain deductions and recognition of certain revenues in the 2005 tax return and had no net impact on our effective
tax rate or total income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2006,

At December 31, 2006, we have $4.3 million of capital loss carryforwards that are scheduled to expire in the
year ending December 31, 2009, $7.4 million that are scheduled to expire in the year ending December 31, 20190,
and $7.3 million that are scheduled to expire in the year ending December 31, 2011.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. The statement provides a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken ina
tax return. In accordance with the statement, before a tax benefit can be recognized, a tax position is evaluated using
a threshold that it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination. When evaluating
the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the interpretation provides that a company should presume the tax
position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. If
the tax position meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, it is initially and subsequently measured as
the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon vltimate settlement. The
interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition. Based on our current assessment and subject to changes that may result from
additional guidance issued by the FASB on this statement, we do not expect the adoption of this statement effective
January 1, 2007 to have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Discontinued Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded a net after-tax gain on the discontinuance of our mortgage and
leasing businesses of $738 thousand. The components of the net gain included a $500 thousand prelax gain on the
discontinuance of the mortgage business, a $700 thousand pretax gain on the discontinuance of the leasing business,
and tax expense of $462 thousand. The gain on the discontinuance of the mortgage business represented changes in
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estimates of legal expenses and related insurance reimbursements, and other favorable changes in estimate related
to a former mortgage insurance product. The gain on the discontinuance of the leasing business represented changes
in estimated leasing operating results of the leasing segment over the wind down period. The largest components of
the change in leasing estimate in 2006 were favorable credit recoveries and equipment realization rates based on
recent performance trends.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded a net after-tax loss on the discontinuance of our mortgage
and leasing businesses of $6.3 million. The components of the net loss included a $13.8 million pretax loss on the
discontinuance of the mortgage business, a $3.5 million pretax gain on the discontinuance of the leasing business,
and a tax benefit of $4.0 million. The loss on the discontinuance of our mortgage business included a $25.5 million
loss resulting from the court ruling in the July 26, 2001 litigation with Chase Manhattan Mortgage Corporation
{“Chase”), a $3.1 million gain on the settlement with Chase of separate litigation that commenced during 2004, and
an $8.6 million gain representing a change in estimate of costs of mortgage business-related contingent liabilities.
The change in estimate of costs of mortgage business-related contingent liabilities was due primarily to recoveries
from insurance reimbursements for past and ongoing legal expenses, partially offset by increased litigation reserves
and reserves for legal costs based on developments in litigation prior to the resolution of the Chase matters. The gain
on the discontinuance of the leasing business represented a change in estimated leasing operating results of the
leasing segment over the remaining life of the lease portfolio based on performance trends. including favorable
credit performance, sales tax refunds and reduced estimates of certain operating expenses, partially offset by a
reduction in our estimated realization rate on equipment residuals.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded a net after-tax gain on the discontinuance of our mortgage
and leasing businesses of $468 thousand. The components of the net gain included a $3.3 million pretax loss on the
discontinuance of the mortgage business, a $4.0 million pretax gain on the discontinuance of the leasing business,
and tax expense of $297 thousand. The loss on the discontinuance of the mortgage business was the result of an
increase in our estimated future costs of mortgage business-related contingent liabilities, due primarily to disputes
related to one of our former mortgage programs and litigation with Chase, partially offset by an insurance
settlement. The gain on the discontinuance of the leasing business was principally associated with favorable
performance in revenues and credit losses and an insurance settlement, partially offset by increased operating
expenses due to a lengthening of the anticipated timeframe over which we expected to incur certain operating
expenses related to the lease portfolio.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Off-Balance Sheet Securitizations

Off-balance sheet business credit card securitizations provide a significant portion of our funding and they are one
of our primary sources of liquidity. At December 31, 2006, off-balance sheet securitized receivables represented
63% of our funding. Our credit risk in the securitized receivables is limited to the amount of our retained interests in
securitizations. We had securitized business credit card receivables of $4.1 billion at December 31, 2006 and
$2.9 billion at December 31, 2005.

We generally retain an interest in securitized receivables in the form of subordinated trust assets, cash reserve
accounts and retained interest-only strips. Subordinated trust assets represent an ownership interest in the

securitized receivables that is subordinated to the other noteholders’ interests. Retained interests in securitizations -

serve as credit enhancement to the noteholders’ interests in the securitized receivables. We had $234.1 million of
retained interests in securitizations at December 31, 2006 and $183.4 million at December 31, 2003. The fair values
of retained interests in securitizations are dependent upon the performance of the underlying securitized receiv-
ables. Our retained interests in securitizations entitle us to the excess spread on the receivables. Excess spread
represents income-related cash flows on securitized receivables (interest, interchange and fees) net of noteholders’
interest, servicing fees and credit losses. If the income-related cash flows on securitized receivables do not exceed
the other components of the excess spread, the value of our retained interests will decline, potentially to zero.
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The following table summarizes

December 31:
($ in thousands)

securitization data including income and cash flows for the years ended

Average securitized receivables

Securitization income
Discount accretion
Interchange income
Servicing revenues

Proceeds from new securitizations
Proceeds from collections reinvested in revolving-period

securitizations

Cash flows received on retained interests

2006 2004
$3,337.888  $2,675906  $2,524,547
114,938 109,051 124,769
18,158 14,809 17,140
155,160 126,056 112,568
63,726 51,079 49,516
2,160,674 1,248,066 131,641
7,553,476 6,023,825 6,557,489
332,439 301,531 264,391

See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for the key assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
retained interests in securitizations during each reporting period and at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Our
accounting policies related to securitization transactions are discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements and the “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” section of Management's Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The revolving periods of our securitizations extend to thé following dates:

Noteholder
Principal
Balance at Scheduled End of Extended End of
{$ in thousands) December 31, 2006 Coupon Type Revolving Period Revolving Period
Series 1997-A $206,718 Floating June 2007 N/A”
Series 2001-A 300,000 Floating July 2007 N/A
AdvantaSeries:
2006-A1 200,000 Fixed February 2007 September 2007
2005-A4 150,000 Fixed May 2007 December 2007
2005-A1 250,000 Floating " August 2007 N/A
2005-D1 20,000 Floating September 2007 N/A
2005-C1. 100,000 Floating December 2007 N/A
2005-A3 250,000 Fixed February 2008 N/A
2006-A2 250,000 - Floating May 2008 N/A
2005-D2 25,000 Floating July 2008 N/A
2005-A5 200,000 Floating August 2008 N/A
2006-A3 250,000 Fixed September 2008 N/A
2006-B1 100,000 Floating November 2008 N/A
2004-C1 100,000 Floating January 2009 N/A
2004-D1 10,000 Floating January 2009 N/A
2006-A5 200,000 Fixed January 2009 N/A
2006-D3 30,000 Floating January 2009 N/A
2006-A7 200,000 Floating February 2009 N/A
2005-B1 100,000 Floating June 2009 N/A
2005-A2 225,000 Floating September 2009 N/A
2006-A6 250,000 Floating January 2010 N/A
2006-D1 15,000 Floating May 2010 N/A
2006-A4 300,000 Floating August 2010 N/A
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Noteholder

;E:lzgas:l Scheduled End of Extended End of

($ in thousands) December 31, 2006'" Coupon Type Revolving Period Revolving Period
AdvantaSeries (continued):

2006-D2 25,000 Floating September 2010 N/A

2006-B2 125,000 Floating October 2010 N/A

2006-C1 140,000 Floating February 2011 N/A

(1) A portion of the noteholder principal balance of securitized receivables as of December 31, 2006 was owned by
Advanta and included in accounts receivable from securitizations on the consolidated balance sheet. The
principal balances owned by Advanta are subordinated to the other noteholders’ interests.

In addition to noteholder principal balance, our securitized business credit card receivables included billed
interest and fees of $51.4 million on those accounts at December 31, 2006.

When a securitization is in its revolving period, principal collections on securitized receivables allocated to
that securitization are used to purchase additional receivables to replenish receivables that have been repaid. In
contrast, when a securitization starts its accumulation peried, principal collections are held in the trust until the
payment date of the notes. As principal is collected on securitized receivables during an accumulation period of a
securitization, we need to replace that amount of funding. The revolving periods for each securitization, except
Series 1997-A, may be extended for up to seven months past the scheduled end of the revolving period if the
payment rates on the receivables in the trust meet certain thresholds. We expect to replace the funding of
accumulating securitizations through additional securitizations with similar terms and conditions as our recent
securitizations. The level of investment-grade notes outstanding at December 31, 2006 issued as part of the
AdvantaSeries de-linked securitization structure, and our ability to issue and hold additional AdvantaSeries non-
investment grade notes, provides additional capacity for future securitization issuances in excess of our expected
securitization funding needs through December 31, 2007. The de-linked structure provides flexibility to issue
different classes of asset-backed securities with varying maturities, sizes, and terms based on our funding needs and
prevailing market conditions.

The following securitizations had noteholder principal payment dates in 2006:

Noteholder

Principal End of Noteholder
(3 in thousands) Balance Revolving Period Payment Date
Series 2003-A $400,000 November 2005 February 2006
Series 2003-B 300,000 March 2006 June 2006
Series 2003-D 400,000 August 2006 November 2006

Accounts receivable from securitizations and amounts due to the securitization trust at December 31, 2006
have decreased as compared to December 31, 2005 because noteholders had been paid and amounts due from the
trust had been collected as of December 31, 2006 for all securitizations that ended their revelving period in 2006. At
December 31, 2005, accounts receivable from securitizations included amounts due from the securitization trust
associated with principal collections of receivables that had been allocated to the Series 2003-A securitization
during its accumulation period.

Our Series 1997-A secunitization represents a $200 million committed commercial paper conduit facility that
provides off-balance sheet funding. This facility was fully utilized at December 31, 2006. Upon the expiration of the
Series 1997-A facility in June 2007, management expects to obtain the appropriate level of replacement funding
under similar terms and conditions.

The securitization agreements contain conditions that would trigger an early amortization event. An early
amortization event would result in the end of the revolving period prior to the expected dates, which would require
us to find an alternate means of funding new receivables generated on existing business credit card accounts. The
conditions to trigger an early amortization event include the failure to make payments under the terms of the
agreement, or the insolvency or other similar event of Advanta Bank Corp. An early amortization event would also
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be triggered for the Series 1997-A or Series 2001-A securitization if the three-month average excess spread
percentage was not maintained at a level greater than 0% for that securitization. An early amortization event for the
AdvantaSeries would be triggered if the three-month average excess spread amount was not maintained at a level
greater than $0. At December 31, 2006, our three-month average excess spread percentage for the Series 1997-A
and Series 2001-A securitizations was at least 6.69%. For the AdvantaSeries, our three-month average excess
spread amount was $18.0 million. Based on the current and forecasted levels of excess spread, our financial position
and other considerations, management believes that it is unlikely that the trust or any individual securitization will
have an early amortization event. The securitization agreements do not have any provisions or conditions involving
the debt rating of Advanta Corp.

In August 2005, the FASB issued a revised exposure draft, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets — An
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 140. The statement provides guidance for determining whether financial assets
must first be transferred to a qualifying special-purpose entity (“QSPE”) to be derecognized, determining additional
permitted activities for QSPEs, eliminating prohibitions on QSPEs’ ability to hold passive derivative financial
instruments, and requires that interests related to transferred financial assets held by a transferor be initially
recorded at fair value. In November 2006, the FASB reported that it expects to issue a final statement in the second
quarter of 2007, Management will evaluate any potential impact of the final statement when it is available.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments.
This statement amends SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instrumenis and Hedging Activities, and
SFAS No. 140 and eliminates the guidance in SFAS No. 133 Implementation Issue No. D1, Application of
Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets, which provided that beneficial interests in
securitized financial assets are not subject to SFAS No. 133. Under the new statement, an entity may irrevocably
elect to measure a hybrid financial instrument that would otherwise require bifurcation at fair value in its entirety on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The statement clarifies which interest-only strips are not subject to the
requirements of SFAS No. 133, establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to
identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded
derivative requiring bifurcation, and amends SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special
purpose enlity from holding certain derivative financial instruments. The statement is effective for all financial
instruments that we acquire or issue after January 1, 2007. We do not expect the adoption of this statement to have a
material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, that amends
SFAS No. 140. The statement clarifies when an gbligation to service financial assets should be separately
recognized as a servicing asset or a servicing liability, requires that a separately recognized servicing asset or
servicing liability be initially measured at fair value, if practicable, and permits an entity with a separately
recognized servicing asset or servicing liability to choose either the amortization method or fair value method for
subsequent measurement. We do not expect the adoption of this statement effective January 1, 2007 to have a
material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Obligations under Guarantees

In the normal course of business, including discontinued operations, we enter into agreements pursuant to which we
may be obligated under specified circumstances to indemnify the counterparties with respect to certain matters.
These indemnification obligations typically arise in the context of agreements entered into by us to, among other
things, purchase or sell assets or services, finance our business and business transactions, establish alliances or other
strategic business relationships, service assets (including for unaffiliated third parties), buy or lease real property
and license intellectual property. The agreements we enter into in the normal course of business, including
discontinued operations, generally require us to pay certain amounts to the other party associated with claims or
losses if they result from our breach of the agreement, including the inaccuracy of representations or warranties. The
agreements we enter into may also contain other indemnification provisions that obligate us to pay certain amounts
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as the negligence or willful misconduct of our employees or
infringement of third party intellectual property rights. Under these typical indemnification provisions, payment
by us is generally conditioned upon the other party making a claim pursuant to the procedures specified in the
particular agreement, and the procedures typically allow us to challenge the other party’s claims. Further, our
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indemnification obligations may be limited in time and/or amount, and in some instances, we may have recourse
against third parties for certain payments made by us under an indemnification agreement. Also, in connection with
the securitization of receivables, we enter into agreements pursuant to which we agree to indemnify other parties to
these transactions. The agreements contain standard representations and warranties about the receivables that are
securitized and include indemnification provisions under certain circumstances involving a breach of these
representations or warranties. In connection with the securitization transactions we also include indemnifications
that protect other parties to the transactions upon the occurrence of certain events, such as violations of securities
laws and certain tax matters. Contingencies triggering material indemnification obligations have not occurred
historically and are not expected to occur. Maximum exposure to loss is not possible to estimate due to the
conditional nature of our obligations and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement.
The nature of the indemnification provisions in the various types of agreements described above are low risk and
pervasive, and we consider them to have a remote risk of loss. There are no amounts on the consolidated balance
sheets related to these indemnifications.

In connection with our exit from certain businesses, we have entered into agreements that include customary
indemnification obligations to the other parties. In general, the agreements we have entered into in connection with
our disposition of assets, liabilities and/or businesses provide that we will indemnify the other parties to the
transactions for certain losses relating to the assets, liabilities or business acquired by them. The obligations to
indemnify are transaction and circumstance specific, and in most cases the other party must suffer a minimum
threshold amount of losses before our indemnification obligation is triggered. Under the indemnification provi-
sions, payment by us is generally conditioned upon the other party making a claim pursuant to the procedures
specified in the particular agreement, and the procedures typically allow us to challenge the other party’s claims. It
is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount of future payments under these or similar arrangernents
due to the conditional nature of our obligations and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular
agreement. We previously had litigation relating to indemnification provisions of transaction agreements governing
the transfer of the consumer credit card business and our exit from the mortgage business. Outstanding litigation
relating to both of these transaction agreements was resolved prior to December 31, 2005. There are no amounts on
the consolidated balance sheets related to these indemnifications.

See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of parent guarantees of subsidiary
obligations.

Preferred Securities Trust

We own 100% of a statutory business trust that issued $100 million of trust preferred securities, representing
preferred beneficial interests in the assets of the trust. The trust was deconsolidated from our balance sheet effective
December 31, 2003, in connection with our adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No. 51, as revised. We established the trust in 1996 as a financing
vehicle and we used the proceeds from the issuance of the trust preferred securities for general corporate purposes.
The assets of the trust consist of $103 million of 8.99% junior subordinated debentures issued by Advanta Corp.,
due December 17, 2026. The trust preferred securities are subject to mandatory redemption upon the optional
prepayment by Advanta Corp. of the junior subordinated debentures at any time on or after December 17, 2006 at an
amount per trust preferred security equal to 104.495% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid distri-
butions. This amount declines ratably on each December 17 thereafter to 100% on December 17, 2016. Dividends
on the trust preferred securities are cumulative and payable semi-annually in arrears at an annual rate of 8.99%%. The
trust has no operations or assets separate from its investment in the junior subordinated debentures.

Advanta Corp. provides a full and unconditional guarantee of payments of distributicns and other amounts due
on the trust preferred securities. At December 31, 2006, the maximum amount of the undiscounted future payments
that Advanta Corp. could be required to make under this guarantee was $280 million, representing the amount of
trust preferred securities outstanding of $100 miilion at December 31, 2006 and future dividends of approximately
$9 million per year through December 2026. Qur consolidated balance sheets reflect the subordinated debt payable
to the trust of $103 million.
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ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
Market Risk Sensitivity

Market risk is the potential for loss or diminished financial performance arising from adverse changes in market
forces including interest rates and market prices. Market risk sensitivity is the degree to which a financial
instrument, or a company that owns financial instruments, is exposed to market forces. Fluctuations in interest rates,
changes in economic conditions, shifts in customer behavior, and other factors can affect our financial performance.
Changes in economic conditions and shifts in customer behavior are difficult to predict, and our financial
performance generally cannot be completely insulated from these forces.

We are exposed to equity price risk on the equity securities in our investments available for sale portfolio. We
typically do not attempt to reduce or eliminate the market exposure on equity investments. A 20% adverse change in
equity prices would result in an approximate $2.0 miilion decrease in the fair value of our equity investments at
December 31, 2006. A 20% adverse change would have resulted in an approximate $2.1 million decrease in fair
value at December 31, 2005.

Financial performance variability as a result of fluctvations in interest rates is commonly called interest rate
risk. Interest rate risk generally results from mismatches in the timing of asset and liability repricing (gap risk} and
from differences between the repricing indices of assets and liabilities (basis risk). We regularly evaluvate our
interest rate risk profile and attempt to minimize the impact of interest rate risk on net interest income on owned
assets and net interest income on securitized receivables. In managing interest rate risk exposure, we may
periodically securitize receivables, sell and purchase assets, alter the mix and term structure of our funding base
or change our investment portfolio.

Risk exposure levels vary continuously, as changes$ occur in our asset/liability mix, market interest rates and
other factors affecting the timing and magnitude of cash flows. We attempt to analyze the impact of interest rate risk
by regularly evaluating the perceived risks inherent in our asset and liability structure. We use simulations to
generate expected financial performance in a variety of interest rate environments. We analyze those results to
determine if we need to take actions to mitigate our interest rate risk.

We measure our interest rate risk using a rising rate scenario and a declining rate scenario. We estimate net
interest income using a third party software mode! that uses standard income modeling techniques. We measure the
effect of interest rate risk on our managed net interest income, which includes net interest income on owned assets
and net interest income on securitized receivables. The measurement of managed net interest income in addition to
net interest income on owned assets is meaningful because our securitization income fluctuates with yields on
securitized receivables and interest rates earned by securitization noteholders. Both increasing and decreasing rate
scenarios assume an instantaneous shift in interest rates and measure the corresponding change in expected net
interest .income as compared to a base case scenario that includes management’s current expectations of future
interest rate movements. As of December 31, we estimated that our net interest income would change as follows
over a twelve-month period:

2006 2005

Estimated percentage increase (decrease) in net interest income on owned assets:

Assuming 200 basis point increase ‘ 12% 13%

Assuming 200 basis point decrease ©)y% ()%
Estimated percentage increase {decrease) in net interest income on securitized receivables:

Assuming 200 basis point increase &Y% (D%

Assuming 200 basis point decrease 5% 12%
Estimated percentage increase (decrease} in net interest income on managed assets: '

Assuming 200 basis point increase 3% (%

Assuming 200.basis point decrease 10% 5%

Our managed net interest income decreases in a rising rate scenario due to the variable rate funding of the
majority of our off-balance sheet securitized receivables and the portion of the business credit card portfolio that is
effectively at a fixed rate because of the nature of the pricing of the accounts or because the customer pays their
balance in full each month. Our business credit card receivables include interest rate floors that cause our managed

-
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net interest income to increase in the declining rate scenario. Changes in the composition of our balance sheet, the
interest rate environment, business credit card pricing terms and securitization funding strategies have also
impacted the results of the net interest income sensitivity analyses as of December 31, 2006 as compared to
the results as of December 31, 2005.

’

The above estimates of net interest income sensitivity alone do not provide a comprehensive view of our
exposure 1o interest rate risk and are not necessarily indicative of potential changes in our owned, securitized and
managed net interest income. Additional factors such as changes in the portfolio, customer behavior, marketing
strategies and funding strategies also affect owned, securitized and managed net interest income and accordingly,
actual results may differ from these estimates. The quantitative risk information is limited by the parameters and
assumptions utilized in generating the results. These analyses are useful only when viewed within the context of the
parameters and assumptions used. The above rate scenarios do not reflect management’s expectation regarding the
future direction of interest rates, and they depict only two possibilities out of a large set of possible scenarios.

Liquidity, Capital Resources and Analysis of Financial Condition

At December 31, 2006, we had a high level of liquidity including $35.1 million of cash and $547.6 million of federal
funds sold. At December 31, 2006, we also had receivables held for sale and investments available for sale that
could be sold to generate additional liquidity. At December 31, 2006, we had $133.7 million of subordinated trust
assets held at non-bank subsidiaries that were rated BB by Standard & Poor’s and Ba2 by Moedy's Investor Service
that could be sold or borrowed against to generate additional liquidity.

As shown on the statements of cash flows, our operating activities generated $131.7 million of cash in the year
ended December 31, 2006 due primarily to excess spread and servicing revenues related to securitized receivables,
interchange income, and interest and fee income on owned receivables, partially offset by operating expenses,
interest expense and costs of rewards programs. Our operating activities generated $8.1 million of cash in the year
ended December 31, 2005 and were impacted by an increase in accounts receivable from securitizations in the
period. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the net use of cash flows from operating activities of $92.3 million
was due primarily to the increase in receivables held for sale in excess of proceeds from receivables sold in the
period due to the timing of securitization transactions.

Our access to unsecured, institutional debt is limited since Advanta Corp.’s debt rating is not investment grade.
However, we do have access to a diversity of funding sources. Our components of funding were as follows at
December 31:

2006 2005
($ in thousands) Amount o Amount %o
Off-balance sheet securitized receivables'" $3,932,732  63% $2,771.505  59%
Deposits ' 1,365,138 22 1070572 23
Debt 227,126 4 226,856 5
Subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust 103,093 2 103,003 - 2
Equity 567,161 9 515,437 11
Total $6,195,250 100% $4,687,463 100%

(1) Excludes our ownership interest in the noteholder principal balance of securitizations (subordinated trust
assets) that are held on-balance sheet and classified as retained interests in securitizations.

Qur ratio of equity to on-balance sheet assets was 23.50% at December 31, 2006 as compared to 24.23% at
December 31, 2005. The ratio of equity and subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust to on-balance
sheet assets was 27.78% at December 31, 2006 as compared to 29.07% at December 31, 2005, In managing our
capital needs, we also consider our ratio of equity to managed assets to be useful because our on-balance sheet assets
include retained interests in securitizations that serve as credit enhancement to the noteholders’ interests in the
securitized receivables. Our ratio of equity to managed assets was 8.94% at December 31, 2006 as compared to
10.52% at December 31, 2005. The ratio of equity and subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust to
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managed assets was 10.56% at December 31, 2006 as compared to 12.63% at December 31, 2005. We calculate
managed assets as follows at December 31:

(% in thousands) 2006 . 2005

Total on-balance sheet assets : $2,413,138  $2,127,403
Off-balance sheet securitized receivables 3,032,732 2,771,505
Managed assets $6,345,870  $4,898,908

Off-Balance Sheet Securitized Receivables

As shown in the components of funding table, off-balance sheet securitizations provide a significant portion of our
funding and are one of our primary sources of liquidity. See “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements™” section in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for further discussion of
off-balance sheet securitizations and their impact on our liquidity, capital resources and financial condition.

Deposits, Debt and Equity

We offer a variety of deposit products at Advanta Bank Corp. We also offer unsecured debt securities of Advanta
Corp., in the form of RediReserve Variable Rate Certificates and Investment Notes, to retail investors through our
retail note program. We change the interest rates we offer on deposits and debt securities frequently depending on
market conditions and our funding needs.

In March 2006, the Board of Directors of Advanta Corp. approved an increase in the regular quarterly cash
dividends on Class A and Class B Common Stock beginning with the dividend paid in the second quarter of 2006.
The quarterly dividend increased for Class A Common Stock from $0.1134 to $0.2125 per share and for Class B
Common Stock from $0.1361 to $0.2550 per share. We funded the increase in dividends with sources of operating
cash flows.

In May 2006, we repurchased 995 thousand shares of Class B Common Stock beneficially owned by Advanta
Corp.’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for $38.5 million. The purchase price was funded with existing
liquidity. The stock repurchase and material terms were authorized by Advanta Corp.’s Audit Commitiee and Board
of Directors (with the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer abstaining). Also in May 2006, in connection with the
vesting of shares related to the 2005 performance year for our management incentive program, we withheld
132 thousand vested shares with a market value of $5.0 million from certain employees (including officers) to meet
our minimum statutory tax withholding requirements. We funded tax withholding payments with existing liquidity.

Litigation

Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries are involved in litigation, class action lawsuits, claims and legal proceedings
arising in the ordinary course of business or discontinued operations. Management believes that the aggregate loss,
if any, resulting from existing litigation, claims and other legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect
on our liquidity or capital resources based on our current expectations regarding the ultimate resolutions of these
actions. However, due to the inherent uncertainty in litigation and since the ultimate resolutions of these
proceedings are influenced by factors ouiside of our control, it is reasonably possible that the estimated cash
flow related to these proceedings may change or that actual results will differ from our estimates.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations at December 31, 2006 by period.
’ Payments Due by Period

Less than
or equal 1.3 3-5 After 5
($ in thousands) Total to 1 year years years years
Time deposits $1,287,724  $854.336  $403,824 $29.564 % 0
Debt 227,126 92,140 95,414 19,396 20.176
Subordinated debt payable to preferred '
securities trust 103,093 0 0 0 103,093
Operating leases 23,328 6,313 12,271 4,744 0
Purchase obligations 58,142 22,368 20,302 14,567 905
Supplemental executive retirement plan
obligations : 1,594 0 0 0 1.594
Total : $1,701,007  $975,157 $531,811 $68,271 $125.768

We expect to fund commitments related to operating leases, purchase obligations and supplemental executive
retirement plan obligations with operating cash flows. Sources of operating cash flows include securitization of
receivables, excess spread and servicing revenues related to securitized receivables, interchange income, and
interest and fee income on owned receivables, Uses of cash in operations include funding of receivables, operating
expenses, interest expense and costs of rewards programs. Management expects to fund our deposit and debt
obligations with replacement deposits or debt having similar terms and conditions. The subordinated debt payable
to preferred securities trust is not due until 2026. Payments related to supplemental executive retirement plan
obligations in the table above represent the present value of vested future benefits payable and are based on service
rendered through December 31, 2006. ’

We have commitments to purchase goods and services that are purchase obligations. These agreements are
legally binding, specify all significant terms about the transaction, including fixed or minimum quantities and fixed,
minimum or variable ptice provisions, and may be renewable or cancelable without notice or penalty. Certain
agreements are cancelable with a specified notice period or penalty; however, all contracts are reflected in the table
above as if they will be performed for the full term of the original agreement without regard to such notice period.

We have a contract with a third party to perform certain administrative functions associated with the servicing
of our business credit card portfolio. The five year agreement is effective until December 31, 2011 and we are
obligated to pay the greater of $7 million or 80% of the fees paid in the previous year on an annual basis. We can
terminate the contract without penalty at our discretion as of December 31, 2009. If the contract had been
terminated on December 31, 2006, the liquidated damages upon termination would have been approximately
$8.3 million plus any costs incurred for programming in order to convert to a new third party service provider.

In addition to these obligations, we have commitments to extend credit to our business credit card customers,
representing unused lines of credit, of $11.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and $8.9 billion at December 31, 2005.
Total lines of credit on our customers’ business credit cards were $16.7 billion at December 31, 2006 and
$12.7 billion at December 31, 2005. We believe that our Icustomers’ utilization of their lines of credit wiil continue
to be substantially less than the amount of the commitments, as has been our experience to date. We expect to fund
the commitments to extend credit with the various components of funding described above, similar to the funding of
other new receivables.

Restrictions at Subsidiaries and Undistributed Earnings of Limited Partnership Interest

Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank are subject to regulatory capital requirements and other regulatory
provisions that restrict their ability to lend and/or pay dividends to Advanta Corp. and its affiliates. Advanta Bank
Corp. issues and primarily funds our business purpose credit cards. Prior to our exit from the mortgage business in
the first quarter of 2001, Advanta National Bank issued and funded a large portion of cur mortgage business.
Advanta National Bank’s operations were not material to our consolidated operating results in the three years ended
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December 31, 2006. Our insurance subsidiaries are also subject to certain capital and dividend rules and regulations
as prescribed by state jurisdictions in which they are authorized to operate. See “Part 1. Item 1 — Government
Regulation.”

Advanta Bank Corp. paid $75 million in cash dividends to Advanta Corp. in 2006. In 2005, Advanta Bank
Corp. paid $35 million in cash dividends to Advanta Corp. In 2004, Advanta Bank Corp. paid $32 million in cash
dividends and a $3 million noncash dividend to Advanta Corp. Advanta National Bank paid no dividends to
Advanta Corp. in the three years ended December 31, 2006. There were no dividends from insurance subsidiaries to
Advanta Corp. in the three years ended December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2006, Advanta Bank Corp.’s combined total capital ratio (combined Tier [ and Tier I1 capital
to risk-weighted assets) was 21.37% as compared to 21.82% at December 31, 2005. At both dates, Advanta Bank
Corp. had capital in excess of levels a bank is required to maintain to be classifted as weli-capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.

Total stockholders’ equity of our banking and insurance subsidiaries was $491 million at December 31, 2006,
of which $338 million was restricted. At January 1, 2007, $153 million of stockholders’ equity of our bank and
insurance subsidiaries was available for payment of cash dividends in 2007 under applicable regulatory guidelines
without prior regulatory approval. ‘

In addition to dividend restrictions at banking and insurance subsidiaries, one of our other subsidiaries is
subject to a minimum equity requirement as part of a transaction agreement. The total minimum equity requirement
of this subsidiary was $10 million at December 31, 2006 and the subsidiary was in compliance with its minimum
equity requirement. We also have an investment in a limited partnership, Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P., and
estimated undistributed partnership earnings included in our retained earnings were $12.1 miltion at December 31,
2006.

Management believes that the restrictions, for bank, insurance and other subsidiaries and undistributed
earnings of our limited partnership interest, will not have an adverse effect on Advanta Corp.’s ability to meet its
cash obligations due to the current levels of liquidity and diversity of funding sources.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Under
the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2006. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006 has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Advanta Corp.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Advanta Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company’’) maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Com-
mission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluvating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. '

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2006 and 20035, and the related
consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated February 26, 2007, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 26, 2007
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information called for by this Item is incorporated by reference to “Item 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Asset/Liability Management.”

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Advanta Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Advanta Corp. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”} as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material missiatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” effective January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{Unitegd States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committece of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 26, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal controls over financial
reporting.

fst KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 26, 2007
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Advanta Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

(In thousands, except share amounts) 2006 2005
ASSETS
Cash $ 35055 § 34109
Federal funds sold 547,631 355,057
Restricted interest-bearing deposits 1,211 1,333
Investments available for sale 197,477 219,782
Receivables, net:

Held for sale 568,456 474,881

Other 546,553 389,012
Total receivables, net 1,115,009 863,893
Accounts receivable from securitizations 334,486 450,001
Premises and'equipment (at cost, less accumulated depreciation of $33,120 in

2006 and $33,029 in 2005) 16,715 16,901
Other assets 165,554 186,327
Total assets $2.413,138  $2.127.403
LIABILITIES
Deposits $1,365,138  $1,070,572
Debt 227,126 226,856
Subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust 103,093 103,093
Other liabilities 150,620 211,445
Total liabilities 1,845,977 1,611,966
Commitments and contingencies
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Class A preferred stock, $1,000 par value:

Autherized, issued and outstanding — 1,010 shares in 2006 and 2005 1,010 1,010
Class A voting common stock, $.01 par value:

Authorized — 200,000,000 shares; issued — 10,041,017 shares in 2006 and

2005 100 100

Class B non-voting common stock, $.01 par value: )

Authorized — 200,000,000 shares; issued — 23,425,609 shares in 2006 and

21,918,569 shares in 2005 ' 234 219

Additional paid-in capital 308,219 276,231
Nonvested shares 0 (1,148)
Unearmmed ESOP shares (9,204) (9,622)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (288) (678)
Retained earnings 359,813 298,472
Treasury stock at cost, 434,155 Class A common shares in 2006 and 2005;

4,290,789 Class B common shares in 2006 and 3,162,019 Class B common

shares in 2005 (92,723) (49,147)
Total stockholders’ equity 567,161 315,437
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2.413,138 32,127,403

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Advanta Corp. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Income S;atements

Year Ended December 31,

{In thousands, except per share amounts) 2006 2005 2004
Interest income:
Receivables $125955 $107,363 % 82,579
Investments 25,642 17,429 6,990
Other interest income 18,158 14,809 17,140
Total interest income 169,755 139,601 106,709
Interest expense:
Deposits 52,279 33,619 19,261
Debt and other borrowings 13,864 14,809 17,158
Subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust 9,167 9,158 9,158
Total interest expense 75,310 57.586 45,577
Net interest income 94,445 82,015 61,132
Provision for credit losses 38,600 40),297 42,368
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 55,845 41,718 18,764
Noninterest revenues:
Securitization income 114,938 109,051 124,769
Servicing revenues 63,726 51,079 49,516
Other revenues, net 159,291 130,710 113,556
Gain on transfer of consumer credit card business (See Note 17) 0 67,679 0
Total noninterest revenues 337,955 358,519 287,841
Operating expenses 256,812 243,058 234,298
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 136,988 157,179 72,307
Income tax expense 52,140 40,490 28,034
Income from continuing operations 84,248 116,689 44,273
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses,
net of tax 738 (6,260) 468
Net income $ 384986 $110429 § 44,741
Basic income from continuing operations per common share
Class A . $ 301 $ 434 3% 169
Class B 3.18 447 1.80
Combined 3.12 4.43 1.76
Diluted income from continuing operations per commen share
Class A $ 282 % 399 $ 157
Class B 2.88 4.04 1.62
Combined 2.86 4.02 1.60
Basic net income per common share
Class A $ 304 $ 41 § 17N
Class B 3.21 4.23 1.82
Combined 3.15 4.19 1.78
Diluted net income per common share
Class A $ 284 % 377 & 158
Class B 2.91 3.82 1.64
Combined 2.89 3.81 1.62
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding
Class A 8,858 8,825 8,798
Class B 18,064 17,512 16,225
Combined 26,922 26,337 25,023
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding
Class A . 8,858 8,825 8.798
Class B 20,530 20,160 18,750
Combined 29,388 28,985 27,548

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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dvanta Corp. and Subsidiaries

i

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Nonvested Other
Comprehensive Class A Class A Class B Additional ~ Shares &  Comprehensive Total
Income Preferred Common Common . Paid-In Unearned Income Retained  Treasury  Stockholders'
($ in thousands) (Laoss) Stock Stock Stock Capital  ESOP Shares {Loss) Farnings Stock Equity
Balance at December 31, 2003 $1,010  S$100 3206 $245295 $(23.629) § 63 $167,783 $(49.,621) $341,207
Net income $ 44,741 ' 44,741 44,741
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of
investments, net of tax benefit {expense) of
$175 (324) (324) (324)
Comprehensive income ¥ 44417
Preferred and common c¢ash dividends declared ) (10,752) (10,752)
Exercise of stock options 8 8,489 8,497
Modification of stock options 196 196
Stock option exchange program stock i
distribution 146 146
Stock-based nonemployee compensation
expense 482 482
Issuance of nonvested shares 3 5427 (5,430} 0
Amortization of nonvested shares 7,740 7.740
Forfeitures of nonvested shares 2) (1,887) 1,473 (416}
ESOP shares committed to be released 221 456 677
| Balance at December 31, 2004 $1,010  $100  $215 $258,223  5(19,390) §(261)  $201,772 $(49.475) $392,194
Net income $110,429 110,429 110,429
| Other comprehensive income (loss):
 Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of
investments, net of tax benefit (expense) of
3224 (417) 417 417
Comprehensive income $110,012
Preferred and common cash dividends declared (13,729 (13,729)
Exercise of stock options 5 6,100 6,105
Stock option exchange program stock
distribution 328 328
Stock-based nonemployee compensation
expense 124 124
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation and ESOP 12,800 12,300
Issuance of nonvested shares 222 (222) 0
Amortization of nonvested shares 7.633 7.633
Forfeitures of nonvested shares n (1,811} 900 (912)
ESOP shares committed to be released 573 309 882
Balance at December 31, 2005 $1,010  $100  $219  $276,231 ${(10,770) S(678)  $298.472 $(49.147) $515437
Net income $ 84,986 84,986 84,986
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of
investments, net of tax benefit (expense}
of ($210) 390 390 390
Comprehensive income $ 85,376
Preferred and common cash dividends declared (23,645) (23,645)
Exercise of stock optiens 9 10,499 10,508
Stock-based nonemployee compensation
expense 238 238
Stock-based employee compensation expense 3,842 3,842
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation and ESOP 12,149 12,149
| Issuance of nonvested shares 7 €))] 0
| Amortization of nonvested shares 5.953 5,953
Forfeitures of nonvested shares () (359) (360)
Reclassification of nonvested shares (1,148) 1,148 0
Treasury stock acquired (See Note 12} (43,576) (43,576)
ESOP shares committed to be released §21 418 . 1,239
Balance at December 31, 2006 $1,010  $100  $234  $308,219 § (9,204) $(288)  $359.813 $(92,723) $567,161

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Advanta Corp. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
OPERATING ACTIVITIES — CONTINUING. OPERATIONS
Net income $ B498 $ 110429 § 44,741
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
(Gain) loss, net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses,
_ net of tax (738) 6,260 (468)
Investment securities {gains) losses, net (5,508) (780) 1,498
Depreciation and amortization 5,785 7.184 9,666
Stock-based compensation expense - 9,673 6,845 3,002
Provision for credit losses - 38,600 40,297 42368
Provision for interest and fee losses 8,830 9,270 92,714
Change in deferred origination costs, net of deferred fees (3,123) (6,262) 3,466
Change in receivables held for sale (2,254,249) (1,345,789) (299,496}
Proceeds from sale of receivabtes held for sale 2,160,674 1,248,066 137,002
Change in accounts receivable from securitizations 115,515 (205,639) 25
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (12,149) 0 0
Change in other assets and other liabilities (16,607) 138,189 (28,737)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 131,689 8,070 (92,269)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES — CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Change in federal funds sold and restricted interest-bearing deposits (192,452) (54,767) 34,560
Purchase of investments available for sale (768,031) 543,157y  (593,03()
Proceeds from sales of investments available for sale 710,185 428,436 572,300
Proceeds from sales of other investments 2.440 0 0
Proceeds from maturing investments available for sale 83,818 79,318 27,108
Change in receivables not held for sale (201,848) (103,445) (93,31
Purchases of premises and equipment, net (5,584) (6,070) (5,977)
Net cash used in investing actlivities (371,472) (199,685) (28,341)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES — CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Change in demand and savings deposits 56,614 11,720 875
Proceeds from issuance of time deposits 735,309 482,612 539,954
Payments for maturing time deposits (517,854) (263,294)  (393,736)
Proceeds from issuance of debt 31,886 23,311 29,319
Payments on redemption of debt (39973) (70,805) (90,625)
Change in cash overdraft and other borrowings 16,222 6,283 (4,596)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 10,508 6,105 8,497
Cash dividends paid (23,645) (13,729} (10,752)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 12,149 -0 0
Treasury stock acquired (43,576) 0 0
Net cash provided by financing activities ' 237,640 182,203 78,936
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net cash provided by operating aclivities of discontinued operations 3,089 7,956 50,298
Net increase (decrease) in cash 946 (1,456) 8,624
Cash at beginning of year 34,109 35,565 26,941
Cash at end of year $ 35055 § 34,109 S 35565

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
($ in thousands except per share amounts, unless otherwise noted)

(LYY

In these notes to consolidated financial statements, “Advanta”, “we”,
subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires.

us”, and “our” refer to Advanta Corp. and its

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Qur Advanta Business Cards segment is one of the nation’s largest credit card issuers (through Advanta Bank Corp.)
in the small business market. Advanta’s exclusive focus on this market, as well as our size, experience and
commitment to developing meaningful product offerings and a high level of service tailored to the needs of small
businesses, differentiate us from other issuers. Founded in 1951, Advanta has long been an innovator in developing
and introducing many of the marketing techniques that are common in the financial services industry today. We own
two depository institutions, Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank. Advanta Business Cards is primarily
funded and operated through Advanta Bank Corp., which offers a variety of deposit products, such as retail and
large denomination certificates of deposits and money market savings accounts that are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. At December 31, 2006, we had 1.1 million business credit card accounts and had
owned business credit card receivables of $1.1 billion and securitized business credit card receivables of $4.1 billion.
Certain administrative functions associated with the servicing of our business credit card accounts are performed by
a single third party vendor. ’

Through the first quarter of 2001, we had two additional lending businesses, Advanta Mortgage and Advanta
Leasing Services. In the first quarter of 2001, we completed our exit from the mortgage business, Advanta
Mortgage, through a purchase and sale agreement with Chase Manhattan Mortgage Corporation as buyer (the
“Mortgage Transaction”), announced the discontinuance of our ieasing business, and restructured our corporate
functions to a size commensurate with our ongoing businesses. Changes in estimate related to our exit from the
mortgage business and discontinuance of the leasing business are reported as discontinued operations for all periods
presented. The results of our ongoing businesses are reported as continuing operations for all periods presented.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Advanta Corp. and its consolidated subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly
susceptible to significant changes in the near term relate to the accounting for the allowance for receivable losses,
securitization income, rewards programs and income taxes.

Investments Available for Sale

Investments available for sale include securities that we sell from time to time to provide liquidity and in response to
changes in the market. Debt and equity securities classified as available for sale are reported at fair value and
unrealized gains and losses on these securities are reported in other comprehensive income, net of income taxes. The
fair values of investments available for sale are based on quoted market prices, dealer quotes or estimates using
quoted market prices for similar securities. Declines in the fair values of investments available for sale below their
cost that are deemed to be other than temporary, if any, are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating
other than temporary impairment losses, we consider (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has
been less than cost, (2) the financial condition of the issuer, and (3) our intent and ability to retain the investment for
a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

Our venture capital investments are included in investments available for sale at estimated fair value.
Management makes fair value determinations based on quoted market prices, when available, and considers ¢ach
investee’s financial results, conditions and prospects and overall market liquidity, when market prices are not
available. In accordance with the specialized industry accounting principles of venture capital investment com-
panies, the unrealized and realized gains and losses on these investments are included in other revenues rather than
other comprehensive income and the equity method of accounting for investments is not applied.

We recognize purchase premiums and discounts in interest income using the interest method over the term of
the securities. Gains and losses on the sales of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the
specific identification method.

Receivables Held for Sale

Receivables held for sale represent receivables currently on the balance sheet that we intend to sell or securitize
within the next six months. We report these assets at the lower of aggregate cost or fair market value by receivable
type. We recognize net unrealized losses, if any, through a valuation allowance by charges to income.

Allowance for Receivable Losses

We establish the allowance for receivable losses as losses are estimated to have occurred through provisions charged
to earnings. Business credit card receivables are comprised of principal amounts due from customers for purchase
activities, balance transfers and cash usage, and amounts due from customers relating to billed interest and fees. We
report provisions for credit losses, representing the portion of receivable losses attributable to principal, separately
on the consolidated income statements. We record provisions for interest and fee receivable losses as direct
reductions to interest and fee income as described below in “Interest and Fee Income on Receivables.”” The
allowance for receivable losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management’s
review of the collectibility of receivables in light of historical experience by receivable type, the nature and volume
of the receivable portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrowers’ ability to repay and prevailing
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to
significant revision as more information becomes available. Since our business credit card receivable portfolio is
comprised of smaller balance homogeneous receivables, we generally evaluate the receivables collectively for
impairment through the use of a migration analysis as well as the consideration of other factors that may indicate
increased risk of loss, such as bankrupt accounts, overlimit accounts or accounts that have been re-aged or entered a
workout program. Accordingly, we do not separately identify individual receivables for impairment disclosures. A
migration analysis is a technique used to estimate the likelihood that a receivable or pool of receivables will progress
through various delinquency stages and charge off.

Our charge-off and re-age policies for business credit card accounts conform to the Uniform Retail Credit
Classification and Account Management Policy, as well as the Credir Card Lending Guidance, issued by the federal
financial institutions regulatory agencies. Qur charge-off policy for contractually delinquent business credit card
accounts is to charge-off an unpaid receivable no later than the end of the month in which it becomes and remains
past due 180 cumulative days from the contractual due date. Our charge-off policy for bankrupt business credit card
accounts is to charge-off the unpaid receivable within 60 days of receipt of notification of filing from the bankruptcy
court or within the timeframes adopted in the Uniformn Retail Credit Classification and Account Management
Policy, whichever is shorter. Subsequent recoveries are credited to the allowance for receivable losses.

Our charge-off policy for other receivables is to charge-off the unpaid receivable when manageme;n believes
the uncollectibility of a receivable balance is confirmed.
Interest and Fee Income on Receivables

We accrue interest income on the unpaid balance of receivables. Interest income includes late fees billed on business
credit card receivables. Fee income is recognized when billed to the customer, with the exception of origination fees
as discussed in “Origination Costs and Fees” below. We continue to bill and recognize interest and fees on accounts

58




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

when they become 90 days past due, and an additional allowance for receivable losses is established for the
additional billings estimated to be uncollectible through a provision for interest and fee losses. We discontinue the
billing and recognition of interest and fees when the account is classified as fraudulent, bankrupt, deceased,
hardship or workout. Provisions for interest and fee losses are recorded as direct reductions to interest and fee
income. The accrued interest and fee portion of charged-off receivables is charged against the allowance for
receivable losses. All subsequent recoveries of charged-off receivables are classified as principal recoveries, since
any amounts related to accrued interest and fees are de minimus.

Origination Costs and Fees

We engage untelated third parties to solicit and originate business credit card account relationships. Amounts paid
to third parties to acquire business credit card accounts and certain other origination costs are deferred and netted
against any related business credit card origination fee, and the net amount is amortized on a straight-line basis over
a privilege period of one year. These costs represent the cost of acquiring business credit card account relationships,
and the net amortization is included in operating expenses. A substantial portion of amounts paid to acquire new
business credit card accounts are paid to a single third party vendor.

Securitization Income

A significant portion of our funding for Advanta Business Cards is through off-balance sheet securitizations using a
securitization trust. The securitization trust was created 1o hold the collateral (the securitized receivables) and issue
notes to primarily institutional investors. The securitization trust is a qualifying special-purpose entity as defined by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”™) No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125, and therefore, is
not consolidated as part of Advanta’s consolidated financial statements. We do not provide any guarantee of the
notes issued by the special-purpose entity and our recourse in the transactions is limited to the value of our interests
in securitizations that serve as credit enhancement to the noteholders’ interests in the securitized receivabies.

We sell business credit card receivables through securitizations with servicing retained. Also, during the
revolving period of each securitization, we sell new receivables to the securitization trust to replenish the
noteholders’ interest in securitized receivables that have been repaid by the business credit card customers. When
we sell receivables to the securitization trust, we surrender control over the transferred assets and account for the
transaction as a sale when we receive consideration other than beneficial interests in the transferred assets in
exchange. We allocate the previous carrying amount of the securitized receivables between the assets sold and the
retained interests based on their relative estimated fair values at the date of sale. We recognize securitization income
at the time of a sale equal to the excess of the fair value of the assets obtained (principally cash) over the allocated
cost of the assets sold and transaction costs. Fair value estimates used in the recognition of securitization income
require assumptions of discount rates, payment rates, credit loss rates, and interest rates and yields.

On a menthly basis, income-related cash flows on securitized receivables (interest, interchange and fees) are
used to pay both interest to noteholders and servicing fees, and any excess cash flow serves as credit enhancement to
cover credit losses in that month.

Accounts Receivable from Securitizations

Accounts receivable from securitizations include retained interests in securitizations, accrued interest and fees on
securitized receivables, amounts due from the securitization trust related to the sale of new receivables or amounts
due during the accurnulation period, and amounts due from the securitization trust for one month’s servicing fee and
one month’s income-related cash flows in excess of that month’s notehelders’ interest, servicing fees and credit
losses,

Retained interests in securitizations include cash reserve accounts, retained interest-only strips and subor-
dinated trust assets. Subordinated trust assets represent an ownership interest in the securitized receivables that is
subordinated to the other noteholders’ interests. Retained interests in securitizations serve as credit enhancement to
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the noteholders’ interests in the securitized receivables. We account for retained interests in securitizations as
trading securities. These assets are carried at estimated fair value and the resulting unrealized gain or loss from the
valuation 1s included in securitization income.

We estimate the fair value of retained interests in securitizations based on a discounted cash flow analysis if
quoted market prices are not available. We estimate the cash flows of the retained interest-only strip as the excess of
the weighted average interest yield on the pool of the receivables sold over the sum of the interest rate earned by
noteholders, the servicing fee and an estimate of future credit losses over the life of the existing receivables. We
discount cash flows from the date the cash is expected to become available to us using an interest rate that
management believes a third party purchaser would demand. The discounted cash flow analysis is inherenily
subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.
We recognize interest income over the life of the retained interests in securitizations by applying the discount rate
used in the valuation.

We adjust accrued interest and fees on securitized receivables for amounts estimated to be uncollectible. The
estimate is based on the same methodology as that used for on-balance sheet receivables that is described above in
“Allowance for Receivable Losses” and “Interest and Fee Income on Receivables.” Provisions for interest and fee
losses on securitized receivables are recorded as a reduction of securitization income.

Servicing Assets

We do not recognize servicing assets associated with securitization transactions because the benefits of servicing
are not expected to be more or less than adequate compensation for performing the servicing.

Premises and Equipment

Premises, equipment, computer hardware and software are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. We amortize leasehold improvements over the shorter
of the lives of the leases or estimated service lives of the leasehold improvements.

Investment in Limited Partnership

On February 20, 1998, we completed a transaction with Fleet Financial Group, Inc. (“Fleet”) to contribute
substantially all of our consumer credit card receivables, subject to liabilities, to a newly formed entity controlled by
Fleet that is now known as Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. As of the consummation of the transaction on
February 20, 1998, our ownership interest in the newly formed entity was 4.99% and the carrying value of the
investment was $20.0 million. Qur ownership interest at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately 1.3%. As
a result of our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America Corp. (“Bank of America”) and the combination of
Bank of America’s and Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P.'s consumer credit card businesses, our partnership interest
in Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. represents an interest in the combined business.

Subsequent to the date of the agreement with Bank of America, we have accounted for our investment in Fleet
Credit Card Services, L.P. using the cost method and have recognized dividend distributions from net accumulated
earnings as income. Prior to the date of the agreement with Bank of America, we recognized earnings allocable to
our partnership interest using the equity method in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-46,
Accounting for Limited Partnership Interests. The partnership interest is included in other assets on the consolidated
balance sheets and earnings on the partnership interest are included in other revenues on the consolidated income
statements. We received distributions from the partnership of $1.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2006,
$1.9 million in 2005 and $2.4 million in 2004,
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Rewards Programs

We offer rewards programs with most of our business purpose credit cards. Under our rewards programs, customers
may earn either cash back rewards or business rewards that can be redeemed for travel, gift cerificates or
merchandise. Eligible customers earn cash back rewards or business rewards based on net purchases charged on
their business credit card accounts. We estimate the costs of future reward redemptions and record a liability at the
time cash back rewards or business rewards are earned by the customer. These costs of future reward redemptions
are recorded as a reduction of other revenues on the consolidated income statements. Estimates of the costs of future
reward redemptions include assumptions regarding the percentage of earned rewards that customers will ultimately
redeem and the cost of business rewards. It is reasonably possible that actual results will differ from our estimates or
that our estimated liability for these programs may change.

1
Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

We account for securities sold under agreements to repurchase as secured borrowings because we maintain effective
control over the transferred assets. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of
cash received in connection with the transaction. We may be required to provide additional collateral based on the
fair value of the underlying securities.

Interchange Income

Interchange income represents fees paid to us by merchant banks through the credit card interchange network based
on the purchase activity of our customers as partial compensation for taking credit risk, abserbing fraud losses and
funding credit card receivables for a limited period prior to account billing. Interchange income includes
interchange fees on both owned and securitized business credit cards.

-

Stock-Ba:eed Compensatioﬁ

SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”) addresses accounting for equity-based compensation
arrangements, including employee stock options, and requires entities to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for awards of equity instruments at the grant date of the award using a fair value based method.
We adopted SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method. Awards that are
granted, modified, or settled after January 1, 2006 are measured and accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R and expense is recognized for the unvested portion of awards that were granted prior to January 1,
2006 based upon the fair value determined at the grant date under SFAS No. 123 Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure (“SFAS No. 123”). We estimate the fair value of each option grant on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. We recognize compensation expense on stock options and nonvested shares
over the vesting period of the award. .

Prior to our adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we recognized the effect of nonvested share forfeitures as they
occurred. Nonvested shares were previously referred to as restricted stock. Under SFAS No. 123R, we are required
to estimate forfeitures and to eliminate previously recognized compensation cost, net of related tax effects, for those
nonvested shares as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle effective January 1, 2006. We
determined that the compensation expense previously recognized in income as of December 31, 2005 related to
outstanding nonvested shares that may forfeit prior 1o vesting was not material. Prior to our adoption of
SFAS No. 123R, we classified nonvested shares as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. In accordance
with SFAS No. 123R, on Januvary 1, 2006, we reclassified nonvested shares to additional paid-in capital on the
consolidated balance sheet. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, we presented excess tax benefits from stock-
based compensation as an operating cash flow. SFAS No. 123R requires that cash flows resulting from tax
deductions in excess of recognized stock-based compensation costs be reported as a financing cash flow. Excess tax
benefits from stock-based compensation were $12.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2006 and $12.8 million
in 2005. Excess tax benefits in 2004 were not recognized in that period due to our net operating loss carryforward
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position. We have clected the aiternative transition method in Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB")
Staff Position No. FAS 123R-3, Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Bused
Payment Awards to calculate the pool of excess tax benefits available to absorb tax deficiencies recognized
subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we used the intrinsic value based accounting methodology prescribed by Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (“Opinion”) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, as permitted by
SFAS No. 123, whereby compensation expense was the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the stock
at the grant date or other measurement date over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock, and
compensation expense was recognized over the vesting period of the award. We also provided pro forma disclosures
of compensation expense for options granted to employees under our stock option plans, net of related tax effects,
net income and earnings per share, as if the fair value-based method of accounting had been applied. See Note 13 for
these pro forma disclosures for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,

The impact of recognizing stock-based compensation expense for employee stock options in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R instead of Opinion No. 25 in the year ended December 31, 2006 was as follows:

Decrease in income from continuing operations before income taxes 3(3,842
Income tax benefit ) l ' 1,479
Decrease in income from continuing operations (2,363)
Decrease in net income (2,363)
Decrease in basic earnings per combined share $ 0.09)
Decrease in diluted earnings per combined share (0.08)

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate is based on expected income, statutory tax rates, current tax law and tax planning opportunities
available to us in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Management judgment is required in determining
our effective tax rate and in evaluating our tax positions. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
using the asset and liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, we determine the net deferred tax asset or
liability based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the various assets
and liabilities and give current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws. Changes in tax laws, rates, regulations
and policies, or the final determination of tax audits or examinations, could materially affect our tax estimates and
are outside of our control. We evaluate the realizability of the deferred tax asset and recognize a valuation allowance
if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized. When evaluating the realizability of the deferred tax asset, we consider estimates of
expécted future taxable income, existing and projected book/tax differences, tax planning strategies available, and
the general and industry specific economic outlook. This realizability analysis is inherently subjective, as it requires
management to forecast the business credit card market and the competitive and general economic environment in
future periods. Changes in estimate of deferred tax asset realizability, if applicable, are included in income tax
expense on the consolidated income statements.

Discontinued Operations

Our exit from the mortgage business and discontinuance of the leasing business represent the disposal of business
segments following Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.
Accordingly, results of these segments are classified as discontinued operations in all periods presented. Our
accounting for discontinuance of the mortgage and leasing businesses was not impacted by the issuance of
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, since its provisions for disposal
groups of long-lived assets are effective for disposal activities initiated after January 1, 2002. We use estimates of
future cash flows in the accounting for discontinued operations, including estimates of the future costs of mortgage
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business-related litigation and estimates of operating results of the leasing segment over the wind down period. As
all estimates used are influenced by factors outside of our control, there is uncertainty inherent in these estimates,
making it reasonably possible that they could change. Changes in estimates related to discontinued operations are
included in gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses on the consolidated income
statements.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per common share is computed by dividing net income available to common stackholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Net income available to common
stockholders is computed by deducting preferred stock dividends from net income. Diluted earnings per common
share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the sum of weighted average
common shares outstanding plus dilutive common shares for the period. Potentially dilutive commeon shares include
stock options and nonvested shares. Since the cash dividends declared on our Class B Common Stock were higher
than the dividends declared on the Class A Common Stock, basic and diluted earnings per common share have been
calculated using the “two-class” method. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that determines
earnings per share for each class of common stock according to dividends declared and participation rights in
undistributed earnings. Both classes of our common stock share equally in undistributed earnings. We have also
presented combined earnings per common share, which represents net income available to common stockholders
divided by the combined total of Class A and Class B weighted average common shares outstanding.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In August 2005, the FASB issued a revised exposure draft, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets — An
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 140. The statement provides guidance for determining whether financial assets
must first be transferred to a qualifying special-purpose entity (“QSPE”) to be derecognized, determining additional
permitted activities for QSPEs, eliminating prohibitions on QSPEs’ ability to hold passive derivative financial
instruments, and requires that interests related to transferred financial assets held by a transferor be initially
recorded at fair value. In November 2006, the FASB reported that it expects to issue a final statement in the second
quarter of 2007. Management will evaluate any potential impact of the final statement when it is available.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments. This
statement amends SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instniments and Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 140
and eliminates the guidance in SFAS No. 133 Implementation Issue No. D1, Application of Statemenr 133 to
Bencficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assers, which provided that beneficial interests in securitized financial
assets are not subject to SFAS No. 133. Under the new statement, an entity may irrevocably elect to measure a
hybnd financial instrument that would otherwise require bifurcation at fair value in its entirety on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The statement clarifies which interest-only strips are not subject to the requirements of
SFAS No. 133, establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests
that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative
requiring bifurcation, and amends SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special purpose entity
from holding certain derivative financial instruments. The statement is effective for all financial instruments that we
acquire or issue after January 1, 2007. We do not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material impact on
our financial position or results of operations.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, that amends
SFAS No. 140. The statement clarifies when an obligation to service financial assets should be separately
recognized as a servicing asset or a servicing liability, requires that a separately recognized servicing asset or
servicing liability be initially measured at fair value, if practicable, and permits an entity with a separately
recognized servicing asset or servicing liability to choose either the amortization method or fair value method for
subsequent measurernent. We do not expect the adoption of this statement effective January 1, 2007 to have a
material impact on our financial position or results of operations.
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In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. The statement provides a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. In accordance with the statement, before a tax benefit can be recognized, a tax position is evaluated using
a threshold that it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination. When evaluating
the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the interpretation provides that a company should presume ‘the tax
position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. If
the tax position meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, it is initially and subsequently measured as
the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The
interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition. Based on our current assessment and subject to changes that may result from
additional guidance issued by the FASB on this statement, we do not expect the adoption of this statement effective
January 1, 2007 to have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. The statement defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The statement also establishes a framework for measuring
fair value by creating a three-level fair value hierarchy that ranks the quality and reliability of information used to
determine fair value, and requires new disclosures of assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on their level
in the hierarchy. We do not expect the adoption of this statement effective January 1, 2008 to have a material impact
on our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans — An Amendment of FASB Sratements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R) (“SFAS No. 158").
This statement requires an employer to recognize the funded status of a defined benefit pian on the balance sheet,
recognize changes in the funded status of a defined benefit plan in comprehensive income in the year in which the
changes occur, measure plan assets and obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year end and provide
additional disclosures. The requirements regarding financial statement recognition and disclosures are effective for
Advanta as of December 31, 2006. We have one benefit plan within the scope of SFAS No. 158, a supplemental
executive retirement plan, which is an unfunded plan. The adoption of this interpretation on December 31, 2006 did
not impact our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements (“SAB 108™). This guidance was issued to resolve diversity in current practice among registrants. The
bulletin establishes that registrants must quantify the impact of correcting all misstatements on the financial
statements by using both the rollover and iron curtain approaches to evaluate the errors. The rollover approach
quantifies the misstatement based on the amount of the error originating in the current year income statement and
the iron curtain approach quantifies a misstatement based on the amount of the error existing in the balance sheet at
the end of the fiscal year. The bulletin contains guidance on correcting errors under the dual approach and transition
guidance. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. This statement provides entities with an irrevocable option to report most financial assets and liabilities
at fair value, with subsequent changes in fair value reported in earnings. The election can be applied on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The statement establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to
facilitate comparisons between entities that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and
liabilities. The statement is effective for Advanta on Januvary 1, 2008. Management is currently evaluating the
impact that this statement may have on our financial position or results of operations.
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. Cash Flow Reporting

Cash paid for interest was $40.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $31.9 million for 2005 and
$28.9 million for 2004. In addition, interest expense includes interest credited directly to the accounts of deposit
customers and retail note program investors of $28.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $22.9 for 2005
and $18.2 million for 2004.

Cash paid for taxes was $21.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $18.8 million for 2005 and
$13.9 million for 2004, Tax refunds received were $10.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $1.7 million
for 2005 and $339 thousand for 2004.

Note 3, Investments Available For Sale

Investments available for sale consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2005 2004

Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrcalized Unrealized  Fair  Amortized Unreslized Unrealized  Falr  Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Value

U.S. Treasury and

government agency

securities $21008 §$0 $(158) $20940 $51399 $0 § (722) §$ 50677 $69402 § O $(485) § 68917
State and municipal

securities 13,247 65 70 13,242 4,730 31 (43) 4,716 3,329 46 (5) 3370
Commercial paper 6,944 0 {3 6,941 1] 0 )] 1] 0 0 \] 0
Corporate bonds 8,488 0 (124) 8364 10,593 0 (148 10445 12,308 0 (49) 12,259
Asset backed

securitiest!” 46,214 82 (100) 46,196 39,352 28 (1148) 39266 4,358 87 47} 4,398
Equity securitiest®’ 10,118 0 (135) 9983 10371 0 73y 10,301 14,626 51 0 14,677
Money market funds 91,771 0 0 91,771 104272 )] 0 104272 80,509 0 0 80,509
Other 40 0 0 40 105 0 0 105 110 0 0 110

Total investments
available for sale 5197920  $147 $(590) §197.477 $220.825 $59 $(1,102) $219.782 $184.642  $1B4 $(586) $184,240

(1) Includes mortgage-backed securities.

(2) Includes venture capital ipvestments of $1.0 million at December 31, 2006, $1.2 million at December 31, 2005
and $5.3 million at December 31, 2004. The amount shown as amertized cost represents fair value for these
investments.

Distributions from money market funds were $1.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2006, $2.2 million
in 2005 and $1.2 million in 2004, and were included in interest income on the consolidated income statements.

Maturities of investments available for sale at December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
Due in 1 year ' £ 26,544 % 26,388
Due after 1 but within 5 years 10,301 10,177
Due after 5 but within 10 years 10,104 10,074
Due after 10 years 2,868 2,888
Subtotal 49,817 49,527
Asset-backed securities 46,214 46,196
Equity securities ’ 10,118 5,983
Money market funds . 91,771 91,771
Total investments available for sale - ' $197.920 $197.477
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Net realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are included in other revenues on the consolidated
income statements. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments available for sale were as follows for the years

ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Gross realized gains $4,559  $1452 $1,179
Gross realized losses (755) 0
Net realized gains $4,559 % 697 $1,179

The fair value of investments available for sale in an unrealized loss position and the related unrealized losses

were as follows:

Less Than 12 Months
12 Months in an or Longer in an
Unrealized Loss Unrealized Loss
Position Position Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2006 Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value
U.S. Treasury and government agency
securities (10 $ 37031 $(148) $16,402 $(158) $20,103
State and municipal securities (34) 5,771 (36) 1,839 70 7,610
Commercial paper 3 6,941 0 0 3) 6,941
Corporate bonds 0 0 (124) 8,364 (124) 8,304
Asset-backed securities (13 3,000 &7 1,992 (100) 4,992
Equity securities 0 0 (135) 7,165 (135) 7.165
Total $(60) $19.413 $(530) $35,762 $(590) $55,175
Less Than 12 Months
12 Months in an or Longer in an
Unrealized Loss Unrealized Loss
Position Position Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
December 31, 2005 Amount VYalue Amount Value Amount Value
U.S. Treasury and government agency
securities $ (39 $10,157 $(683) $40,520 $ (722) $50,677
State and municipal securities (12) 1,838 (33) 887 45) 2,725
Corporate bonds (140) 8,450 (8) 0 (148) 8,450
Asset-backed securities (45) 22,800 (69) 3,426 (114) 26,226
Equity securities (73) 7,227 0 0 (73) 7,227
Total $(309) $50,472 $(793) $44.833 $(1,102) $95,305

There were no declines in the fair value of investments available for sale below their cost that were deemed to
be other than temporary at December 31, 2006 or 2005. At December 31, 2006, we held nine investrments in
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities in an unrealized loss position, thirty-two investments in other debt
securities in an unrealized loss position and one equity investment in an unrealized loss position. The range of
unrealized losses per individual debt security at December 31, 2006 was $] thousand to $110 thousand. The
maximum length of time an investment was in an unrealized loss position was thirty-three months as of
December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2005, we held eighteen investments in U.S. Treasury and government
agency securities in an unrealized loss position, twenty-five investments in other debt securities in an unrealized
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loss position and one equity investment in an unrealized loss position. The range of unrealized losses per individual
debt security at December 31, 2005 was $1 thousand to $193 thousand. The maximum length of time an investment
was in an unrealized loss position was twenty-one months as of December 31, 2005. The unrealized losses at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 were not deemed to be other than temporary impairments based upon the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, review of the current interest rate environment, the
underiying credit rating of the issuers, anticipated volatility in the market, and our intent and ability to retain the
investments for a period of time sufficient to allow for recovery in fair value, which may be maturity, The unrealized
losses on debt securities at both dates resulted from increases in interest rates, not from deterioration in the
creditworthiness of the issuers. In addition, the U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, state and
municipal securities, corporate bonds and commercial paper have contractual terms which do not permit the
issuer to setile the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the investment.

The fair value of investments deposited with insurance regulatory authorities to meet statutory requirements or
held by a trustee for the benefit of primary insurance carriers was $6.3 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
Note 4. Receivables

Receivables on the balance sheet, including those held for sale, consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
Business credit card recei\:ables $1,133,132 $879,468
Other receivables 7,673 8,007
Gross receivables 1,140,805 887,475
Add: Deferred origination costs, net of deferred fees ) 25,130 22,007
Less: Allowance for receivable losses
Business credit cards (49,715) (44,323}
Other receivables (1,211) {1,266)
Total allowance for receivable losses (50,926)  (45,589)
Receivables, net $1,115.009 $863,893

We had commitments to extend credit to our credit card customers, representing unused lines of credit, of
$11.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and $8.9 billion at December 31, 2005. Lines of credit on our customers’
business purpose credit cards totaled $16.7 billion at December 31, 2006 and $12.7 billion at December 31, 2005.
We believe that our customers’ utilization of their lines of credit will continue to be substantially less than the
amount of the commitments, as has been our experience to date.

See Note 6 for information on geographic concentrations for owned business credit card receivables. Also see
Note 6 for statistical information on owned receivables 30 days or more delinquent, 90 days or more delinquent, on
nonaccrual status, accruing receivables past due 90 days or more, and net principal charge-offs.
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Note 5. Allowance For Receivable Losses

The following table displays five years of allowance history for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Balance at January 1 $45589 $50478 $48454 §$46,159 341971
Provision for credit losses 38,600 40,297 42,368 45,423 40,906
Provision for interest and fee lossest" 8,830 9,270 9,714 11,623 6,889
Gross principal charge-offs:
Business credit cards (36,777)  (48,552) (42,991} (46,597) (41,660)
Other receivables (5 (5 (11) (34) (16)
Total gross principal charge-offs (36,782) (48,357  (43,002) (46,631) (41,676)
Principal recoveries: _
Business credit cards 3,002 3,687 3,055 2,927 <260
Other receivables 0 0 4 0 0
Total principal recoveries 3,002 3,687 3,059 2,927 4,260
Net principal charge-offs (33,780)  (44,870)  (39,943) (43,704) (37.416)
Interest and fee charge-offs:
Business credit cards (8,313) (9,586) (10,115 (11,047) (6,191)
Balance at December 31 $50926 $45589 $50478 $48454 § 46,159

(1) Prior to October 1, 2002, the billing and recognition of interest and fees was discontinued when the related
receivable became 90 days past due or when the account was classified as fraudulent, bankrupt, deceased,
hardship or workout. Effective October 1, 2002, we continue to bill and recognize interest and fees on accounts
when they become 90 days past due, and an additional allowance for receivable losses is established for the
additicnal billings estimated to be uncollectible through a provision for interest and fee losses.

Note 6. Securitization Activities

Accounts receivable from securitizations consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
Retained interests in securitizations , $234,054 $183,391
Accrued interest and fees on securitized receivables, net'" 64,713 . 53,844
Amounts due from the securitization trust 35,719 212,766
Total accounts receivable from securitizations $334,486  $450,001

(1) Reduced by an estimate for uncollectible interest and fees of $8.7 million at December 31, 2006 and
$7.0 million at December 31, 2005.

~
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The following represents securitization data for the years ended December 31, and the key assumptions used in
estimating the fair value of retained interests in securitizations at the time of each new securitization or
replenishment if quoted market prices were not available.

2006 2005 2004

Average securilized receivables _ $3,337,888 $2.675,906 $2,524,547
Securitization income 114,938 109,051 124,769
Discount accretion 18,158 14,809 17,140
Interchange income 155,160 126,056 112,568
Servicing revenues 63,726 51,079 49,516
Proceeds from new securitizations 2,160,674 1,248,066 131,641
Proceeds from collections reinvested in revolving-

period securitizations ) 7.553,476 6,023,825 6,557,489
Cash flows received on retained interests 332,439 301,531 264,391
Key assumptions:

Discount rate 871% - 1043%  8.22%-11.27%  9.79% - 14.33%

Monthly payment rate 21.29% -25.00% 21.77% - 25.00% 20.63% - 22.65%

Loss rate 370% - 4.90% 4.25%- 679% 590%- 8.47%

Interest yield, net of interest earned by noteholders  7.30% - 9.95% 9.95%-11.28% 11.28% - 13.84%

There were no purchases of delinquent accounts from the securitization trust in the three years ended
December 31, 2006.

We used the following assumptions in measuring the fair value of retained interests in securitizations at
December 31. The assumptions listed represent weighted averages of assumptions used for each securitization. The
monthly payment rate assumptions used at both December 31, 2006 and 2005 result in cash flow projections over a
three month weighted average life of existing receivables for the retained interest-only strip valuation.

2006 2005
Discount rate 8.82% - 9.84% 871%- 9.81%
Monthly payment rate 21.29% -23.10%  23.37% - 25.00%
Loss rate 3.70% - 4.07%  4.25%- "4.68%
Interest yield, net of interest earned by noteholders 7.30% 9.95%

In addition to the assumptions identified above, management also considered qualitative factors when
assessing the fair value of retained interests in securitizations such as the potential volatility of the current market
for similar instruments and the impact of the current economic environment on the performance of the receivables
sold.

We have prepared sensitivity analyses of the valuations of retained interests in securitizations that were
estimated using the assumptions identified above. The sensitivity analyses show the hypothetical effect on the
estimated fair value of those assets of two unfavorable variations from expected levels for each key assumption,
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independently from any change in another key assumption. Set forth below are the results of those sensitivity
analyses on the valuation at December 31.

2006 2005
Effect on estimated fair value of the following hypothetical changes in key

assumptions:

Discount rate increased by 2% $ @d764) $ (2,947)
Discount rate increased by 4% (9,309) (5.770)
Monthly payment rate at 110% of base assumption(” (1,144) (2315
Monthly payment rate at 125% of base assumption‘" (2,591) (3.998)
Loss rate at 110% of base assumption (3.633) (2,606)
Loss rate at 125% of base assumption (9,082) (6,515)
Interest yield, net of interest earned by noteholders, decreased by 1% (9,819) (6,132)
Interest vield, net of interest earned by noteholders, decreased by 2% (19,637)  (12,264)

(1) The sensitivity analysis at December 31, 2005 used stress rates of 115% and 130% of the base monthly payment
rate assumption. )

The objective of these hypothetical analyses is to measure the sensitivity of the estimated fair value of the
retained interests in securitizations to changes in assumptions. The methodology used to calculate the estimated fair
value in the analyses is a discounted cash flow analysis, which is the same methodology used to calculate the
estimated fair value of the retained interests if quoted market prices are not available at each reporting date. These
estimates do not factor in the impact of simultaneous changes in other key assumptions. The above scenarios do not
reflect management’s expectation regarding the future direction of these rates, and they depict only certain
possibilities out of a large set of possible scenarios.
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Managed business credit card receivable data

Our managed business credit card receivable portfolio is comprised of both owned and securitized business credit
card receivables. Performance on a managed receivable portfolio basis is useful and relevant because we retain
interests in the securitized receivables and, therefore, we have a financial interest in and exposure to the
performance of the securitized receivables. Credit quality data on the managed business credit card receivable
portfolio was as follows at December 31:

2006 2005

Owned business credit card receivables $1,133,132  § 879.468
Securitized business credit card receivables 4,073,128 2,880,401
Total managed receivables 5,206,260 3,759,869
Receivables 30 days or more delinquent:

Owned ‘ 26,053 23,595

Securitized . 108,159 87,610

Total managed 134,212 111,205
Receivables 90 days or more delinquent:

Owned 12,632 10,837

Securitized 52,279 40,223

Total managed 64,911 51,060
Nonaccrual receivables:

Owned 10,524 11,476

Securitized . 45,160 42 828

Total managed 55,684 54,304
Accruing receivables past due 90 days or more:

Owned 11,302 9,479

Securitized 46,785 35,063

Total managed ’ 58,087 44.542
Net principal charge-offs for the year ended December 31

Owned 33,775 44 865

Securitized - 116,227 155,618

Total managed 150,002 200,483

(1) Net principal charge-offs for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $40 million on owned receivables and
$170 million on securitized receivables, for a total of $210 million on managed receivables.

At December 31, 2006, approximately 15% of our owned and managed business credit card receivables were
coricentrated in the state of California. This compares to U.S. Census population estimates of 12% of the
U.S. population residing in the state of California. We had no other concentrations in a single state in excess
of 10% of total owned or managed business credit card receivables.
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Note 7. Selected Balance Sheet Information

Other assets consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
Net deferred tax asset $ 39,166 $ 64,923
Investment in Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. 32,095 32.095
Investment in preferred securities trust 3,093 3.093
Other 91,200 86,216
Total other assets $165,554  $186,327
Other liabilities consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2008
Cash overdraft $ 41,188 $ 24,966
Business rewards liability 25,467 20,658
Cash back rewards liability 7.366 4,506
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 31,628 28,018
Current income taxes payable 21,473 17,048
Amounts due to the securitization trust 7,287 105,917
Liabilities of discontinued operations, net 1,607 500
Other 14,604 9,823
Total other liabilities $150.620 $211,445
Note 8. Deposits
Deposit accounts consisted of the following at December 31:

2006 2008

Demand deposits $ 488 § 4447
Money market savings 72,525 16,353
Time deposits of $100,000 or less 668,398 602,820
Time deposits of more than $100,000 619,326 446,952
Total deposits $1,365,138  $1,070,572

All deposits are interest bearing except demand deposits. Time deposit maturities were as follows at

December 31, 2006:

Year Ending December 31,
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

$

854,336
295,008
108,756
12,859
16,705

The average interest cost of our deposits was 4.43% for the year ended December 31, 2006, 3.46% for 2005 and

2.89% for 2004.
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Note 9. Debt and Other Borrowings
The composition of debt was as follows at December 31:

2006 2005
RediReserve variable rate demand certificates (4.50% - 5.35%) $ 12511 § 13,638
91 day retail notes, fixed (5.12% - 5.26%) 738 0
6 month retail notes, fixed (5.35%) 1,826 0
12 month retail notes, fixed (3.83% - 5.83%) 21,170 19,684
18 month retail notes, fixed (3.34% - 6.06%) 4,333 4,505
24 month retail notes, fixed (3.10% - 6.30%) 19,336 22,970
30 month retail notes, fixed (3.44% - 5.97%) 5,251 9,114
36 month retail notes, fixed (4.40% - 6.77%) 16,556 21,773
48 month retail notes, fixed (5.12% - 8.30%) 16,128 18,010
60 month retail notes, fixed (5.59% - 9.22%) 106,677 104,207
84 month retail notes, fixed (6.30% - 8.62%) 4,278 3,137
120 month retail notes, fixed (6.77% - 9.53%) 16,500 8,406
Other retail notes, fixed (3.20% - 9.53%) 1,822 1,412
Total debt $227,126  $226,856

Interest rates shown in the table above represent the range of rates on debt outstanding at December 31, 2006.
The annual contractual maturities of debt were as follows at December 31, 2006:

Year Ending December 31,

2007 $92,140
2008 63,747
2009 " 31,667
2010 : 10,843
2011 and thereafter 28,729

The average interest cost of our debt was 6.39% for the year ended December 31, 2006, 6.16% for 2005 and
6.19% for 2004.

We had no short-term borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2006 or 2005, The following table displays
information related to selected types of short-term borrowings for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Average for the year:

Securities sold under repurchase agreements $ 5 465% §5 4.00% $ 0 0%
Federal funds purchased 845 543 56 3.73 145 1.58
Total $ 850 542% 361 3.75% % 145 1.58%

Maximum month-end balance:
Federal funds purchased - $50,000 $0 $18,536

The weighted average interest rates were calculated by dividing the interest expense for the period by the
average amount of short-term borrowings outstanding during the period, calculated as an average of daily amounis.

At December 31, 2006, Advanta Bank Corp. had uncommitted federal funds purchased facilities available with
six correspondent banks totaling $247.0 million.
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Note 10. Subordinated Debt Payable to Preferred Securities Trust

We own 100% of a statutory business trust, Advanta Capital Trust I, that issued $100 miilion of trust preferred
securities, representing preferred beneficial interests in the assets of the trust. We established the trust in 1996 as a
financing vehicle and used the proceeds from the issuance for general corporate purposes. The assets of the trust
consist of $103 million of 8.99% junior subordinated debentures issued by Advanta Corp., due December 17, 2026.
The trust preferred securities are subject to mandatory redemption upon the optional prepayment by Advanta Corp.
of the junior subordinated debentures at any time on or after December 17, 2006 at an amount per trust preferred
security equal to 104.495% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid distributions, This amount declines
ratably on each December 17 thereafter to 100% on December 17, 2016. Advanta Corp. provides a full and
unconditional guarantee of payments of distributions and other amounts due on the trust preferred securities.
Dividends on the trust preferred securities are cumulative and payable semi-annually in arrears at an annual rate of
8.99%, and are deferrable at our option for up to ten consecutive semi-annual periods, provided that no deferral may
extend beyond December 17, 2026. We cannot pay dividends on our preferred or common stocks during
deferments. There have been no deferments as of December 31, 2006. The trust has no operations or assets
separate from its investment in the junior subordinated debentures.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — An Interpre-
tation of ARB No. 51, as revised, the subsidiary trust that issued the irust preferred securities is not consolidated. The
consolidated balance sheets include subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust of $103 million and an
equity investment in the trust of $3 million. The consolidated income statements include interest expense on
subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust of $9.2 million in each year.

The following is summarized financial information for Advanta Capital Trust I:

December 31,
2006 2005

Balance Sheet
Total assets : $103,453  $103.453
Total liabilities 360 360
Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities 100,000 100,000
Total common securityholder’s equity 3,093 3,093

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Income Statement
Interest income $9,268 $9,268 59,268
Expenses 0 0 0
Net income $9.268 $9,268  $9,268
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Note 11. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation Contingencies

Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries are involved in class action lawsuits, other litigation, claims and legal
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business or discontinued operations. Management believes that
the aggregate loss, if any, resulting from existing litigation, claims and other legal proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations based on our current expectations regarding
the ultimate resclutions of these existing actions after consultation with our attorneys. However, due to the inherent
uncertainty in litigation and since the ultimate resolutions of our litigation, claims and other legal proceedings are
influenced by factors outside of our control, it is reasonably possible that actual results will differ from our
estimates,

Obligations under Guarantees

In the normal course of business, including discontinued operations, we enter into agreements pursuant to which we
may be obligated under specified circumstances to indemnify the counterparties with respect to certain matters.
These indemnification obligations typically arise in the context of agreements entered into by us to, among other
things, purchase or sell assets or services, finance our business and business transactions, establish alliances or other
strategic business relationships, service assets (including for unaffiliated third parties), buy or lease real property
and license intellectual property. The agreements we enter into in the normal course of business, including
discontinued operations, generally require us to pay certain amounts to the other party associated with claims or
losses if they result from our breach of the agreement, including the inaccuracy of representations or warranties. The
agreements we enter into may also contain other indemnification provisions that obligate us to pay certain amounts
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as the negligence or willful misconduct of our employees or
infringement of third party intellectual property rights. Under these typical indemnification provisions, payment
by us is generally conditioned upon the other party making a claim pursuant to the procedures specified in the
particular agreement, and the procedures typically allow us to challenge the other party’s claims. Further, our
indemnification obligations may be limited in time and/or amount, and in some instances, we may have recourse
against third parties for certain payments made by us under an indemnification agreement. Also, in connection with
the securitization of receivables, we enter into agreements pursuant to which we agree to indemnify other parties to
these transactions. The agreements contain standard representations and warranties about the receivables that are
securitized and include indemnification provisions under certain circumstances involving a breach of these
representations or warranties. In connection with the securitization transactions we also include indemnifications
that protect other parties to the transactions upon the occurrence of certain events, such as violations of securities
laws and certain tax matters. Contingencies triggering material indemnification obligations have not occurred
historically and are not expected to occur. Maximum exposure to loss is not possible to estimate due to the
conditional nature of our obligations and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement.
The nature of the indemnification provisions in the various types of agreements described above are low risk and
pervasive, and we consider them to have a remote risk of loss. There are no amounts on the consolidated balance
sheets related to these indemnifications. '

In connection with our exit from certain businesses, we have entered into agreements that include customary
indemnification obligations to the other parties. In general, the agreements we have entered into in connection with
our disposition of assets, liabilities and/or businesses provide that we will indemnify the other parties to the
transactions for certain losses relating to the assets, liabilities or business acquired by them. The obligations to
indemnify are transaction and circumstance specific, and in most cases the other party must suffer a minimum
threshold amount of losses before our indemnification obligation is triggered. Under the indemnification provi-
sions, payment by us is generally conditioned upon the other party making a claim pursuant to the procedures
specified in the particular agreement, and the procedures typically allow us to challenge the other party’s claims. It
is not possible to determine the maximum potential amount of future payments under these or similar arrangements
due to the conditional nature of our obligations and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular
agreement. We previously had litigation relating to indemnification provisions of transaction agreements governing
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the transfer of the consumer credit card business and the Mortgage Transaction. Cutstanding litigation relating to
both of these transaction agreements was resolved prior to December 31, 2005. There are no amounts on the
consolidated balance sheets related to these indemnifications.

We own 100% of a statutory business trust that issued $100 million of trust preferred securities, representing
preferred beneficial interests in the assets of the trust. See Note 10 for further discussion. Advanta Corp. provides a
full and unconditional guarantee of payments of distributions and other amounts due on the trust preferred
securities. At December 31, 2006, the maximum amount of the undiscounted future payments that Advanta Corp.
could be required to make under this guarantee was $280 million, representing the amount of trust preferred
securities outstanding of $100 million at December 31, 2006 and future dividends of approximately $9 million per
year through December 2026. Our consolidated balance sheets reflect subordinated debt payable to the preferred
securities trust of $103 million. .

See Note 22 for a discussion of parent guarantees of subsidiary obligations.

Commitments

We lease office space in several states under leases accounted for as operating leases. Total rent expense was
$5.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $5.1 million for 2005, and $5.5 miilion for 2004, Future
minimum lease payments include rent and other related expenses. The future minimum lease payments of non-
cancelable operating leases are as follows at December 31, 2006:

Year Ending December 31,

2007 $6,213
2008 ' 6,127
2009 ’ 6,144
2010 4,744

In the normal course of business, we have commitments to extend credit to cur business credit card customers.
See Note 4 for further discussion.

Note 12. Capital Stock

Class A Preferred Stock is entitled to 1/2 vote per share and a noncumulative dividend of $140 per share per year,
which must be paid prior to any dividend on the common stock. The redemption price of the Class A Preferred Stock
is equivalent to its par value and redemption is only permitted upon approval of the Board of Directors of Advanta
Corp. '

Cash dividends per share of common stock declared were as follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Class A Common Stock $0.7509  $0.4347  $0.3465
Class B Common Stock 0.9011 0.5217 0.4158

In May 2006, we repurchased 995 thousand shares of Class B Common Stock beneficially owned by Advanta
Corp.’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer for $38.5 million, The stock repurchase and material terms were
authorized by Advanta Corp.’s Audit Committee and Board of Directors (with the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer abstaining). Also in May 2006, in connection with the vesting of shares related to the 2005 performance year
for our management incentive program, we withheld 132 thousand vested shares with a market value of $5.0 million
from certain employees (including officers) to meet our minimum statutory tax withholding requirements.

Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation and Benefit Plans

We have adopted a stock-based incentive plan designed to provide incentives to participating employees to remain
in our employ and devote themselves to Advanta’s success. Our incentive plan authorizes an aggregate of
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20.0 million shares of Advanta Corp. Class B Common Stock for the grant of stock options, awards of shares of
stock or awards of stock appreciation rights to employees, directors and consultants. Shares available for future
grant were 5.6 million at December 31, 2006 and 7.0 million at December 31, 2005.

Nonvested Shares

Under our stock-based incentive plan, we have management incentive programs that provide eligible employees
with the opportunity to elect to take portions of their potential, or target, bonus payments for future years in the form
of nonvested shares of Advanta Corp. Class B Common Stock. Nonvested shares were formerly referred to as
restricted stock. To the extent that these elections are made, or are required by the terms of the programs for certain
of our executive officers, nonvested shares are granted to employees. The number of nonvested shares granted to
employees is determined by dividing the amount of future target bonus payments that the employee elects to receive
in stock by the market price as determined under the incentive program. Nonvested shares vest ten years from the
date of grant and are subject to forfeiture prior to vesting under certain conditions, including termination of
employment. Vesting has been and may continue to be accelerated annually with respect to the nonvested shares
granted under the program covering the particular performance year, based on the extent to which the employee and
Advanta met or meet their respective business objectives and/or performance goals for that performance year. We
also may issue nonvested shares to employees as part of employment agreements. The vesting and forfeiture terms
vary depending on the specific terms of the employment agreement.

Compensation expense, iiet of forfeitures, and related tax effects recognized in connection with nonvested
shares were as follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Compensation expense $5,593  $6,721  $7,324
income tax benefit 2,153 2,621 2,841

The total fair value of nonvested shares that vested was $22.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
$20.2 million for 2005 and $6.9 million for 2004. As of December 31, 2006, there was $14.4 million of total
unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding nonvested shares and we expect to recognize the
expense over a weighted average period of 3.4 years.

The following table summarizes nonvested share activity for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
{Shares in Number of Price at Date of Number of Price at Date of Number of Price at Date of
thousands) Shares Issuance Shares Issuance Shares Issuance
Outstanding at
beginning of
year 811 $ 8.56 1,784 $ 9.67 2,089 $ ) 8.27
Granted 715 36.45 10 22.27 351 15.46
Vested (597 8.68 (828) 10.50 (433 8.23
Forfeited (104) 19.13 (155) 11.81 (223) 8.47
Outstanding at
end of year 825 $31.32 811 $ 8.56 1,784 $ 9.67

Stock Options

All stock options outstanding in the three years ended December 31, 2006 were options to purchase Class B
Common Stock. Our stock options generally vest over a four-year period and expire ten years after the date of grant.
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Compensation cxpense, net of forfeitures, and related tax efiects recognized in connection with employee stock

options were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Compensation expense . $3.842 %0 %196
Income tax benefit 1,479 0 77

As of December 31, 2006, there was $8.9 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to
outstanding stock options and we expect to recognize the expense over a weighted average period of 2.1 years)

Stock option activily in the years ended December 31 was as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Number of  Weighted Average Number of  Weighted Average Number of  Weighted Average

(Shares in thousands) Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at beginning :

of year 4,986 $11.37 5,522 $11.14 5,358 $ 9.79
Granted 1,012 31.77 155 23.52 1,352 16.03
Exercised (896) 11.74 (523) 11.67 (867) 9.78
Forfeited {156) 23.54 - (168) 14.34 (320 12.83
Expired 0 0 0 0 (1) 2213
Outstanding at end of

yeat 4,946 $16.32 4,986 $11.37 5,522 $11.14
Options exercisable at

end of year ' 3,269 $10.42 3,680 $10.46 2,795 $10.42
Weighted average fair

value of options

granted in the year $9.99 $9.49 $6.56

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $21.8 million in the year ended December 31,
2006, $7.3 million in 2005 and $6.8 million in 2004. The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2006 was $135.1 million with a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.1 years. The
aggrepgate intrinsic value of stock options exercisable at December 31, 2006 was $108.6 million with a weighted

average remaining contractual life of 3.4 years.

The assumptions listed in the table below represent weighted averages of the assumptions used to estimate the
fair value for each option grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model. The expected dividend yield
is based on current dividend rates as well as announced and anticipated changes in dividend rates based upon
management’s expectations of future performance. The expected life of the options is estimated by reviewing
historical option exercise data and considering the contractual life of the options and the vesting periods. Expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility of Class B Common Stock. The risk-free interest rate is based on the

discount rate on a U.S. Treasury Note of a similar duration to the expecled life of the options.

) 2006 2005 2004
Expected life (in years) 5.3 5.0 5.0
Expected volatility 38.09% 53.60% 54.74%
, Risk-free interest rate 4.95% 3.79% 3.62%
Expected dividend vield 4.24% 3.14% 2.85%

Range of expected dividend yield over expected life 2.70% - 7.38%  2.32% —4.07%
/

2.83% — 5.94%
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Prior to January 1, 2006, we used the intrinsic value based method of accounting for employee stock options
permitted by SFAS No. 123 and, as a result, have provided pro forma disclosures of compensation expense. Had
compensation expense for employee stock options been determined using the fair value based method, our
compensation expense for employee stock options, net of related tax effects, net income and net income per
common share would have changed to the following pro forma amounts for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004:

2005 2004
As Pro As Pro
Reported Forma Reported Forma

Stock-based employee compensation expense for stock option

plans, net of related tax effects $ 0 $ 2449 § 119 $ 3,120
Net income 110,429 107,980 44,741 41,740
Basic net income per common share '

Class A $ 411 % 401 $ 171 $ 159

Class B ' 4.23 4.14 1.82 1.70

Combined 4.19 4.09 1.78 1.66
Diluted net income per common share N

Class A $ 377 $ 368 3 158 5 148

Class B 3.82 3.73 1.64 1.54

Combined 3.81 3.71 1.62 1.52

Due to the restructuring of Advanta in the first quarter of 2001, we implemented a program whereby certain
out-of-the-money options were exchanged for shares of Class B Common Stock. Shares granted in exchange for
options were immediately vested but their distribution was deferred. Participants could elect to receive distributions
of 25% of their shares on the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the program or to defer distributions of
any installment of shares until the second through tenth anniversaries of the program. If a participant terminates
employment with Advanta, any unpaid installments will be distributed on the tenth anniversary of the program. No
shares were distributed in the year ended December 31, 2006. We distributed 25 thousand shares in the year ended
December 31, 2005 and 11 thousand shares in 2004, There were 72 thousand shares remaining to be distributed in
connection with this program at December 31, 2006.

Employee Savings Plan

Our Employee Savings Plan is a defined contribution plan available to all of our employees who have reached age 21
with six months of service. It provides tax-deferred savings and investment opportunities, including the ability to
invest in Advanta Corp. Class B Common Stock. The plan provides for discretionary employer contributions equal
to a portion of the first 5% of an employee’s compensation contributed to the plan. The compensation expense for
this plan totaled $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $1.9 million for 2005, and $1.7 million for
2004. All shares of Advanta Corp. Class B Common Stock purchased by the plan in the three years ended
December 31, 2006 were purchased on the cpen market.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which allows employees and directors to purchase Advanta Corp.
Class B Common Stock at a 15% discount from the market price without paying brokerage fees. We report this 15%
discount as compensation expense and we incurred expense of $68 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2006,
$76 thousand for 2005 and $65 thousand for 2004. All shares of Advanta Corp. Class B Common Stock purchased
by the plan in the three years ended December 31, 2006 were purchased on the open market.
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Employee Stock QOwnership Plan

On September 10, 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the formation of an Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP”), available to all of our employees who have reached age 21 with one year of service. In 1998, the ESOP
borrowed approximately $12.6 million from Advanta Corp. and used the proceeds to purchase approximately
1 million shares of Class A Common Stock. The ESOP loan is repayable with an interest rate of 8% over 30 years.
We make contributions to the ESOP equal to the ESOP’s debt service less dividends received on ESOP shares. As
the ESOP makes each loan payment, an appropriate percentage of stock becomes available to be allocated to
participants. At the time of the loan payment, shares are allocated to participants equal to the value of dividends on
allocated shares used for loan payments. The remaining shares available for allocation are allocated to eligible
employees’ accounts as of each year end based on relative participant compensation. Unallocated shares are
reported as unearned ESOP shares on the consolidated balance sheets. As shares of common stock acquired by the
ESOP are committed to be released to each employee, we report compensation expense equal to the current market
price of the shares, and the shares become outstanding for earnings per share computations. Dividends on allocated
ESOP shares are recorded as a reduction of retained earnings. Dividends on unallocated ESOP shares are used to
fund debt service of the ESOP. ESOP compensation expense was $1.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2006, $822 thousand for 2005 and $639 thousand for 2004. At December 31, 2006, there were 732 thousand
unearned and unallocated ESOP shares with a fair value of $29.2 million. At December 31, 2005, there were 766
thousand unearned and unallocated ESOP shares with a fair value of $23.1 million.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

In February 2003, the Board of Directors approved and established the Advanta Corp. Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan (“SERP") to provide retirement benefits to a senior executive with an unreduced survivor benefit to
the executive’s spouse. The SERP is a nonqualified, noncontributory, unfunded defined benefit retirement plan. The
annual benefit of $625 thousand vests ratably from February 2005 through August 2012. Assuming the executive
does not retire until age 70 when he is fully vested, we expect that no benefit payments will be made in the next
5 years and estimate benefit payments of $2.7 million in the 5 years thereafter.

The net periodic pension cost included in compensation expense was as follows for the years ended
December 31:

2006 2005 2004

Service cost $769 $742 %0
Interest cost 64 19 0
Total net periodic pension cost 7 $833 3761 $0

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the accumulated and projected
benefit obligation at December 31:

2006 2005
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 761 % 0O
Service cost 769 742
Interest cost 64 19
Benefit obligation at end of year $1,594  §761

The measurement date used to determine the benefit obligation for the SERP is December 31, The benefit
obligation was included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. We used a discount rate in calculating
the benefit obligation of 5.9% as of December 31, 20(_)6 and 5.6% as of December 31, 2005.
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Note 14. Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements

Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements admin-
istered by the federal and state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory — and possibly additional discretionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the banks’ and our financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, banks must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The banks’ capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the bank
regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the banks to maintain
minimurm amounts and ratios (set forth in the table betow) of total and Tier | capital to risk-weighted assets, and of
Tier | capital to average assets, each as defined in the regulations. Management believes that Advanta Bank Corp.
and Advanta National Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject as of December 31,
2006 and 2005.

In 2000, Advanta National Bank reached agreements with its bank regulatory agency, primarily relating to the
bank’s subprime lending operations. The agreements established temporary asset growth limits at Advanta National
Bank, imposed restrictions on taking brokered deposits and required that Advanta National Bank maintain certain
capital ratios in excess of the minimum regulatory standards. In 2001, Advanta National Bank entered into an
additional agreement with its regulatory agency regarding restrictions on new business activities and product lines
at Advanta National Bank after the Mortgage Transaction, and the resolution of outstanding Advanta National Bank
liabilities. The agreement also reduced the capital requirements for Advanta National Bank to a ratio of 12.7% for
Tier 1 and total capital to risk-weighted assets, and to a ratio of 5% for Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets as
defined in the agreement. In addition, the agreement prohibits the payment of dividends by Advanta National Bank
without prior regulatory approval. Advanta National Bank’s operations were not material to our consolidated
operating results in the three years ended December 31, 2006. Management belicves that Advanta National Bank
was in compliance with its regulatory agreements at December 31, 2006.
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As set forth in the table below, at December 31, 2006 and 2005, Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National
Bank had capital at levels a bank is required to maintain to be classified as “well-capitalized” under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. However, Advanta National Bank does not meet the definition of “well-
capitalized” because of the existence of its agreement with its regulatory agency, even though it has achieved the
higher imposed capital ratios required by the agreement.

To Be Adequately To Be Weli-
Capitalized Under Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective Prompt Corrective
Actual Action Provisions Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2006 .
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted
Assets)
Advanta Bank Corp. $439,335  21.37% $259.648 = 8.0% $286,535 = 10.0%
Advanta National Bank . 77,984 287.33 2,170 = 8.0 2,715 = 100
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted
Assets)
Advanta Bank Corp. $398,653 19.39% $177.516 = 4.0% $207.866 = 6.0%
Advanta National Bank 77,762 286.51 1085 = 4.0 1,628 = 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Advanta Bank Corp. $398,653 20.33% $ 78444 = 4.0% $ 98,055 = 5.0%
Advanta National Bank 71,762  78.25 3975 = 4.0 4970 = 5.0
December 31, 2005
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted
Assets)
Advanta Bank Corp. $393.841 21.82% $221,684 = B8.0% $246,608 = 10.0%
Advanta National Bank 66,768 25442 2,100 = 8.0 2,625 = 10.0
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted
Assets)
Advanta Bank Corp. $359,082 19.89% $148,728 = 4.0% $176,710 = 6.0%
Advanta National Bank 66,486 2533.35 1,050 = 4.0 1,575 = 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) '
Advanta Bank Corp. $359,082 21.98% $ 65347 = 4.0% $ 81,684 = 50%
Advanta National Bank 66,486 4584 5800 = 4.0 7250 = 50

Note 15. Restrictions on Dividends, Loans and Advances

In the normal course of business, Advanta Corp. and its subsidiaries enter into agreements, or are subject to
regulatory requirements, that result in dividend and loan restrictions.

Banks insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation are subject to certain provisions of the Federal
Reserve Act which impose various legal limitations on the extent to which banks may finance or otherwise supply
funds to certain of their affiliates. In particular, Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank are subject to
certain restrictions on any extensions of credit to, or other covered transactions, such as certain purchases of assets,
with Advanta Corp. or its affiliates, These restrictions prevent Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank
from lending to Advanta Corp. and its affiliates unless these extensions of credit are secured by U.S. Government
obligations or other specified collateral. Further, secured extensions of credit are limited in amount; (1) as to
Advanta Corp. or any affiliate, to 10% of each bank’s capital and surplus; and (2) as to Advanta Corp. and all
affiliates in the aggregate, to 20% of each bank’s capital and surplus.

Under grandfathering provisions of the Competitive Equality Banking Act of 1987, Advanta Corp. is not
required to register as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, so long
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as Advanta Corp. and Advanta National Bank continue to comply with certain restrictions on their activities. These
restrictions include the limitation that Advanta National Bank may take demand deposits but may not make
commercial loans. We have no present plans to register as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding
Company Act,

Advanta Bank Corp. paid $75 million in cash dividends to Advanta Corp. in 2006. In 2005, Advanta Bank
Corp. paid $35 million in cash dividends to Advanta Corp. In 2004, Advanta Bank Corp. paid $32 million in cash
dividends and a $3 million noncash dividend to Advanta Corp. Advanta National Bank’s agreements with its
regulatory agency prohibit the payment of dividends by Advanta National Bank without prior regulatory approval.
Advanta National Bank paid no dividends to Advanta Corp. in the three years ended December 31, 2006.

Our insurance subsidiaries are also subject to certain capital and dividend rules and regulations as prescribed
by state jurisdictions in which they are authorized to operate. At December 31, 2006, the insurance subsidiaries
were in compliance with these rules and regulations. The insurance subsidiaries paid no dividends to Advanta Corp.
in the three years ended December 31, 2006.

Total stockholders’ equity of our banking and insurance subsidiaries was $491 million at December 31, 2006
and $437 mitlion at December 31, 2005. Of our total equity in these subsidiaries, $338 million was restricted at
December 31, 2006 and $290 million was restricted at December 31, 2005, At January 1, 2007, $153 million of
stockholders’ equity of our bank and insurance subsidiaries was available for payment of cash dividends in 2007
under applicable regulatory guidelines without prior regulatory approval.

In addition to dividend restrictions at banking and insurance subsidiaries, one of our other subsidiaries is
subject to a minimum equity requirement as part of a transaction agreement, The total minimum equity requirement
of this subsidiary was $10 million at December 31, 2006 and the subsidiary was in compliance with its minimum
equity requirement. We also have an investment in a limited partnership, Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P., and
estimated undistributed partnership earnings included in our retained earnings were $12.1 million at December 31,
2006.

Note 16. Segment Information

Our only reportable business segment is Advanta Business Cards, which issues business purpose credit cards to
small businesses and business professionals through our subsidiary, Advanta Bank Corp. Our business credit card
accounts provide approved customers with unsecured revolving business credit lines. Advanta Business Cards
revenue is generated through interest earned on outstanding balances, interchange income, balance transfer fees,
cash usage fees and other fees.
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The following table reconciles information about the Advanta Business Cards segment to the consolidated
financial staterments:

Advanta
Business
Cards Other™ Total

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Interest income : $ 143,738 $ 26,017 $ 169,755
Interest expense 46,233 29.077 75.310
Noninterest revenues 332,924 5,031 337,955
Pretax income from continuing operations 135,587 1,401 136,988
Total assets at end of period 1,495,544 917,594 2,413,138
Capital expenditures 225 5,643 5,868
Depreciation and'amortization 145 5,640 5,785
Year Ended December 31, 2005

Interest income $ 121,697 $ 17904 $ 139,601
Interest expense 36,027 21,559 57,586
Noninterest revenues 284,556 6,284 290,840
Gain on transfer of consumer credit card business 0 67,679 67,679
Pretax income from continuing operations 88,905 68,274 157,179
Total assets at end of period ) 1,362,133 765,270 2,127,403
Capital expenditures 0 6,193 6,193
Depreciation and amortization 392 6,792 7,184
Year Ended December 31, 2004

Interest income $ 99194 § 7515 $ 106,709
Interest expense ' 35,779 9,798 45,577
Noninterest revenues 285,610 2,231 287,841
Pretax income (loss} from continuing operations 75,182 (2,875) 72,307
Total assets at end of period 994,194 698,730 1,692,924
Capital expenditures 187 6,925 7,112
Depreciation and amortization 2,012 7.654 9,666

(1) Other includes venture capital operations as well as investment and other activities not attributable to segments.
Total assets in Other include assets of discontinued operations, if applicable.

Note 17. Gain on Transfer of Consumer Credit Card Business

On May 28, 2004, Advanta Corp. and certain of its subsidiaries and Bank of America signed an agreement to resolve
ail outstanding litigation, including partnership tax disputes, between Advanta and Fleet, which was acquired by
Bank of America, relating to the transfer of our consumer credit card business to Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. in
1998. The agreement was subject to the Internal Revenue Service’s final approval of the settlement of the tax
disputes. We received the final approval of the Internal Revenue Service in January 2005 and, as a result, we
received $63.8 million in cash from Bank of America in February 2005, representing a return of the payments that
we made to Fleet in the Delaware state court litigation in February 2004. Consistent with the terms of our agreement
with Bank of America, all outstanding litigation between Advanta and Fleet was dismissed in February 2005. The
overall impact of the agreement with Bank of America, including the cash received, settlement of the tax disputes
and reevaluation of the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets, was a pretax gain of $67.7 million, tax expense of
$5.6 million and an increase in additional paid-in capital of $6.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2005. See
Note 19 for further description of the income tax impact of our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America.
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Note 18. Selected Income Statement Infermation

Other revenues consisted of the following for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Interchange income $203,369  $164,853  $140,534
Cash back rewards (45,845) (33,581) (24,713)
Business rewards (22,216) (20,140) (16,513)
Balance transfer fees 7,848 5,561 4,572
Investment securities gains (losses), net'" 5,508 780 (1,498)
Other business credit card .fees 3,545 3,283 2911
Cash usage fees 3,487 3,199 3,097
Earnings on investment in Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. 1,246 1,948 2,545
Other, net 2,349 4,807 2,621
Tota! other revenues, net $159,201  $130,710 $113,556

(1) Investment securities gains (losses), net, include changes in the fair value and realized gains and losses on
venture capital investments.

In each reporting period, we evaluate our estimates of the percentage of earned rewards that customers will
ultimately redeem and the costs of business rewards and adjust our estimates, if needed, based on historical
experience, consideration of changes in portfolio composition and changes in the rewards programs, including
redemption terms. The following table shows the impact of the changes in the estimated percentage of earned
rewards that customers will ultimately redeem and other changes in estimated costs of future period reward
redemptions for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

Increase (decrease) in other revenues $ 500 $(1,200) $(2,700)
Increase (decrease) in net income 308 (730) (1,660)
Amount per combined diluted share $0.01 $ (0.03) $ {0.06)
Operating expenses consisted of the following for the years ended December 31:

| 2006 2005 2004
Salaries and employee benefits $ 96371 % 96,012 § 92,863
Amortization of deferred origination costs, net 48,285 41,729 33,508
External processing 25,072 21,216 20,267
Marketing 23,193 20,560 21,014
Professional fees 11,907 12,236 14,043
Equipment 9,942 10,954 11,173
Occupancy 9,102 8.180 8,695
Credit 5,140 5,064 5,781
Other 27,800 27,107 26,954

' Total operating expenses $256,812  $243,058  $234.298
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Note 19. Income Taxes

Income tax expense was as follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Income tax expense (benefit) attributable 10:
Continuing operations . $52,740 $40,490 $28.034
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses 462 (4,002) 297
Total income tax expense $53.202 336,488  $28,331

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations consisted of the following components for
the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

Current:

Federal $21,794 315090 $13,139

Siate 5,861 3,539 2,699
Total current 27,655 18,629 15,838
Deferred:

Federal 25,281 21,432 12,032

State (196) 429 164
Total deferred 25,085 21,861 12,196
Total income tax expense attributable to continuing operations $52,740  $40,4%0  $28.034

The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax to income tax expense attributable to conlinning
operations is as follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Statutory federal income tax $47,946 $55013  $25,307
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 3,641 2,579 1,861
Nondeductible expenses 945 1,174 982
Compensation limitation 201 440 512
Gain on transfer of consumer credit card business 0 (12,347 0
Change in valuation allowance 0 (6,393) 0
Other ' 7 24 (628)
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations $52,740  $ 40,490  $28,034

Our effective tax rate attributable to continuing operations was 38.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006,
25.8% for 2005 and 38.8% for 2004. The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2005 was impacted by
the Bank of America agreement and reevaluation of the valuation allowance discussed below.
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We provide deferred taxes to reflect the estimated future tax effects of the differences between the financial
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and currently enacted tax laws. The net deferred tax asset was
comprised of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets $ 66,059 § 79452
Deferred tax liabilities (26,893)  (14,529)
Net deferred tax asset $39,166 § 64,923
The components of the net deferred tax asset were as follows at December 31:

. 2006 2005
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards _ $17.249  $26,060
Business credit card rewards 11,492 8,807
Deferred revenue (10,435) 0
Deferred origination costs, net of deferred fees (8,910) (7,345)
Allowance for receivable losses 8,864 18,400
Capital loss carryforwards ' 6,653 4,476
Incentive and deferréd compensation 6,065 5,029
Securitization income (2,624) (3,849)
Unrealized venture capital investment losses 1,352 5,934
Other , 9.460 7411
Net deferred tax asset $ 39,166 $64,923

In January 2005, we received the Internal Revenue Service’s final approval of the settlement of tax disputes in
our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America and in February 2003, we received $63.8 million in cash from
Bank of America. See Note 17 for further discussion. The settlement of the tax disputes resulted in an allocation of
$381 million of the disputed partnership tax deductions to Fleet, which was acquired by Bank of America, and $617
thousand of the disputed $47 million partnership taxable gain to Advanta. The impact to us of the tax deduction and
gain allocation was a reduction in our deferred tax asset related to net operating loss carryforwards of $133.4 million
and a corresponding reduction in our valuation allowance on deferred tax assets of $133.4 million, both in the year
ended December 31, 2005. Upon receipt of the Internal Revenue Service's approval of the settlement of the tax
disputes, the remaining valuation allowance of $12.4 million was evaluated, and management determined that it
was more likely than not that the remaining deferred tax asset was realizable and therefore, no valuation allowance
was needed, resulting in a $6.4 million reduction in tax expense and a $6.0 million increase in additional paid-in
capital in the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in additional paid-in capital represented the portion of
the valuation allowance that had been related to tax benefits from stock-based compensation. The gain associated
with the original transfer of assets to Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. in 1998 was not subject to income tax, and
therefore, a substantial portion of the February 2004 payment to Fleet was not tax-deductible. A substantial portion
of the $63.8 million payment received in February 2005 was not taxable since it is a return of our payment to Fleet in
February 2004. As of December 31, 2006, the cumulative gain on transfer of consumer credit card business and our
deficit capital account in Fleet Credit Card Services L.P. on a tax basis for which no deferred taxes have been
provided is approximately $650 million, as the transaction structure remains nontaxable under current tax law.

In the third quarter of 2006, we completed the preparation and filing of our 2005 U.S. federal income tax return
and recognized a current tax benefit and deferred tax provision to reflect a reduction in current taxes payable and
deferred tax assets from the amounts previously estimated. These results were due to changes in the timing of
certain deductions and recognition of certain revenues in the 2005 tax return and had no net impact on our effective
tax rate or total income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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At December 31, 2006, we have $4.3 million of capital loss carryforwards that are scheduled 1o expire in the
year ending December 31, 2009, $7.4 million that are scheduled to expire in the year ending December 31, 2010,
and $7.3 million that are scheduled to expire in the year ending December 31, 2011. Alternative minimum tax credit
carryforwards do not expire.

Note 20. Discontinued Operations

Effective February 28, 2001, we completed the Mortgage Transaction. Prior to the Mortgage Transaction, Advanta
Mortgage made nonconforming home equity loans directly to consumers and through brokers. This business unit
originated and serviced first and second lien mortgage loans, including home equity lines of credit, through
subsidiaries of Advanta. In addition to servicing and managing the loans it originated, Advanta Mortgage contracted
with third parties to service their nonconforming home equity loans on a subservicing basis. Following the
Mortgage Transaction, we no longer operate a mortgage business. The purchase and sale agreement provided for the
sale, transfer and assignment of substantially all of the assets and operating liabilities associated with our mortgage
business, as well as specified contingent liabilities arising from our operation of the mortgage business prior to
closing that were identified in the purchase and sale agreement. We retained contingent liabilities, primarily relating
to litigation, arising from our operation of the mortgage business before closing that were not specifically assumed
by the buyer.

On January 23, 2001, we decided to cease originating leases. Our leasing business, Advanta Leasing Services,
offered flexible lease financing programs on small-ticket equipment to small businesses. The primary products
financed included office machinery, security systems and computers. We continued to service the existing lease
portfolio during its wind down period. As of December 31, 2006, we had no lease receivables outstanding,

The components of the gain (loss) on discontinuance of our mortgage and leasing businesses for the years
ended December 31 were as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Advanta Advanta Advanta
Advanta Leasing Advanta Leasing Advanta Leasing
Mortgage Services Mortgage Services Mortgage Services

Pretax gain (loss) on discontinuance of

mortgage and leasing businesses $ 500 $700  $(13,762) $ 3,500 $(3,270) $4.035
Income tax (expense) benefit (193) (269) 5,367 (1,365) 1,268 (1,565)
Gain (loss) on discontinuance of mortgage

and leasing businesses, net of tax $ 307 $431  $ (8395 $2,135 §(2,002) §$ 2470

The gain (loss) on discontinuance of the mortgage business in each of the applicable reported periods
represents a change in our estimates of the future costs of mortgage business-related contingent liabilities based on
new developments in litigation or disputes related to our former mortgage programs, or insurance reimbursements
related to past or future costs. The loss on discontinuance of the mortgage business in 2005 includes the impact of
the resolution of the litigation matters with Chase Manhattan Mortgage Corporation related to the Mortgage
Transaction. The gain on discontinuance of the leasing business in each of the applicable reporied periods
represents changes in estimated operating results of the leasing segment over the wind down period based on trends
of performance of the leasing portfolio, sales tax assessments or refunds, or changes in the anticipated timeframe
over which we expect to incur certain operating expenses related to the leasing business.

»
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Per share amounts were as follows for the years ended December 31: _
Advanta Mortgage Advanta Leasing Services

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Basic gain (loss) on discontinuance of mortgage and
leasing businesses, net of tax, per common share
Class A $0.01  $(0.32) '$(0.08) $0.02 $0.08 $0.10 .
Class B 0.01 (0.32) (0.08) 0.02 0.08 .0.10
Combined 0.01 (0.32) (0.08) 0.02 0.08 0.10
Diluted gain (loss) on discontinuance of mortgage and -
leasing businesses, net of tax, per commeon share
Class A ' $0.01  $(0.29) $(0.07) $0.01 $0.07  $0.09
Class B 0.01 029y (007 001 0.07 0.09

Combined 001 (029 (0.0 001 007 0.09

Note 21. Calculation of Earnings Per Share

The following table shows the calculation of basic earnings per common share and diluted earnings per common
share for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

Income from continuing operations . ’ $ 84248 $116,689 $44,273
Less: Preferred A dividends (141) (141) (141)
Income from continuing operations available to common stockholders 84,107 116,548 - 44,132
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses, net
of tax ) 738 (6,260) 468
Net income available to common stockholders 84,845 110,288 44,600
Less: Class A dividends declared . (6,712) (3,842) (3,067 |
Less: Class B dividends declared (16,792) (9,746) (7,544) |
Undistributed net income $61,341  $ 96,700 $33,989 /\|
Basic income from continuing operations per common share : ' . ;
Class A - $ 301 § 434 § 169 !
Class B ' 7 _ 3.18 4.47 1.80
Combined 3.12 4.43 1.76 !
Diluted income from continuing operations per common share
Class A $ 282 § 399 % 1.57
Class B ’ 2.88 4.04 1.62
Combined'" _ 2.86 4.02 1.60
Basic net income per common share
Class A ) $ 304 $§ 411 % 1M
Class B 3.21 423 1.82

Combined" 3.15 4.19 1.78
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ADVANTA CORP. (Parent Company Only)

Condensed Statements of Operations
Year Ended December 31,

($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Income:

Dividends from bank and insurance subsidiaries $75,000 $ 35000 $ 35,000

Dividends from other subsidiaries 282 329 1,542

Interest income 5,757 4,682 2,057

Other revenues, net ’ 5.880 4,175 1,388

Loss on sale of receivables to bank subsidiary (2,688} 0 0

Gain on transfer of consumer credit card business 0 49,899 0

Total income ‘ 84,231 94,085 39,987

Expenses:

Interest expense 19,712 20,042 , 23,299

Provision for credit losses : 490 30 0

Operating expenses 34,600 37,309 33,763

Total expenses 54,802 57,381 57,062

Gain (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity in

undistributed net income in subsidiaries 29,429 36,704 - (17,075)
Income tax benefit (2,941) (15,104) (18,008)
Income from continuing operations before equity in undistributed net

income of subsidiaries 32,370 51,808 933
Gain (loss} on discontinuance of mornigage business, net of tax 279 (8,469) (1,999)
Inéome (loss) before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 32,649 43,339 (1,066)
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 52,337 67,090 45,807
‘Net income ' $84.986  $110429 $ 44,741

The Parent Company Only Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity are the same as the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity.

The parent company had interest income related to affiliate borrowings of $3.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, $4.0 million for 2005 and $3.3 million for 2004. The parent company provided certain
administrative and support services to affiliates. Revenues related to these services were $2.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006, $2.8 million for 2005 and $2.4 million for 2004. Affiliates provide certain administrative
and support services to the parent company. Fees paid to affiliates for these services were $14.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006, $12.7 million for 2005 and $12.8 million for 2004.
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Per share amounts were as follows for the years ended December 31:

Advanta Mortgage Advanta Leasing Services
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Basic gain (loss) on discontinuance of mortgage and

leasing businesses, net of tax, per commen share

Class A $0.01 $(0.32) $(0.08) $0.02 $0.08 $0.10

Class B 0.01 (0.32) (0.08) 0.02 008 | 0.10

Combined 0.01 (0.32)  (0.08) 0.2 0.08 0.10
Diluted gain (loss) on discontinuance of mortgage and .

leasing businesses, net of tax, per common share

Class A $0.01  $(0.29) $(0.07) $001 $0.07 $0.09

Class B 0.01 (0.29) (0.07) 0.01 0.07 0.09

Combined 0.01 (0.29) (0.07} 0.01 0.07 0.09

Note 21. Calculation of Earnings Per Share

The following table shows the calculation of basic earnings per common share and diluted earnings per common
share for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

Income from continuing operations ' : $ 84,248 $116,689  $44,273

Less: Preferred A dividends (141) (141) (141)
Income from continuing operations available to common stockholders 84,107 116,548 44,132
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing businesses, net

of tax 738 (6,260) 468
Net income available to common stockholders 84,845 110,288 44,600

Less: Class A dividends declared - (6,712) (3,842) (3,067)

Less: Class B dividends declared (16,792) (9,746) (7,544)
Undistributed net income $61,341 $ 96,700 $33,989
Basic income from continuing operations per common share

Class A . % 301 $ 434 3 169

Class B ' ‘ 3.18 4.47 1.80

Combined"" 3.12 4.43 1.76
Diluted income from continuing operations per common share

Class A $ 28 $ 399 § 157

Class B 2.88 4.04 1.62

Combined” ‘ 2.86 4.02 1.60
Basic net income per common share

Class A ) $ 304 $ 411 $ 171

Class B 3.21 4.23 1.82

Combined'” 3.15 4.19 1.78
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2006 2005 2004

Diluted net income per common share

Class A $ 284 $ 377 § 158

Class B 291 3.82 1.64

Combined" 2.89 381 1.62
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Class A 8,858 8,825 8,798

Class B 18,064 17,512 16,225

Combined 26,922 26,337 25,023
Dilutive effect of

Options Class B 2,153 1,942 1,606

Nonvested shares Class B 313 706 919
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding

Class A 8,858 8.825 8,798

Class B 20,530 20,160 18,750

Combined 29,388 28,985 27,548
Antidilutive shares

Options Class B 702 13 161

Nonvested shares Class B 2 0 0

(1) Combined represents income available to common stockholders divided by the combined total of Class A and

Class B weighted average common shares outstanding.
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Note 22. Parent Company Financial Statements

ADVANTA CORP. (Parent Company Only)
Condensed Balance Shéets

] . December 31,
(% in thousands) . . .. . 2006 - 2005
Assets : . :
Cash _ ) . - $ 5836 $ 7559
Commercial paper equivalent'" : 40,000 40,000
Restricted interest-bearing deposits : - . 2,142 2,096
Investments available for sale 66,623 03,488
Receivables, net 39,386 17512
Investments in and advances to bank and insurance subsidiaries ot 517,722 448.'}61
Investments in and advances to other subsidiaries S PR -, 172,080 143,273
Other assets 88,202 - 120,562
Total assets - $931,991 -$873,251
Liabilities -
Debt ‘ " $227,126°. $226.856
Subordinated debt payable to preferred securities trust | | o 103,093 . 103,093
Other liabilities . - . ) . 34,611 . 27,865
Total liabilities B . 364,830 357,814
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock 1,010 1,010
Common stock 334 319
Other stockholders’ equity 565,817 514,108
Total stockholders’ equity 567,161 515,437
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $931,991  $873,251

(1) Commercial paper equivalent refers to unsecured loans made to Advanta Business Services Holding Corp. for
terms of less than 30 days in maturity which are not automatically renewable, consistent with commercial paper
issuance.

Parent company cash includes amounts deposited at bank subsidiaries of $5.8 million at December 31, 2006 and
$7.5 million at December 31, 2005. Restricted interest-bearing deposits include amounts deposited at bank
subsidiaries of $1.3 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The parent company guarantees certain lease payments of its subsidiaries in connection with lease agreements
extending through November 30, 2010. At December 31, 2006, the maximum amount of undiscounted future
payments that the parent could be required to make under these lease agreement guarantees was $11.5 million. The
parent company guarantees payments of dlSl’IlbullOl'lS and other amounts due on trust preferred securities issued by
its wholly-owned statutory business trust. See Note 10 for a discussion of Advanta Corp.’s guarantee of payments of
distributions and other amounts due on the trust preferred securities. The parent company also guarantees that an
insurance subsidiary will remain in compliance with its minimum statutory capital requirement of $2.5 million.
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ADVANTA CORP. (Parent Company Only)

Condensed Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,

($ in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Income:

Dividends from bank and insurance subsidiaries $75,000 $ 35,000 $ 35,000

Dividends from other subsidiaries 282 329 1,542

Interest income 5,757 4,682 2,057

Other revenues, net ‘ 5,880 4,175 1,388

Loss on sale of receivables to bank subsidiary (2,688) o 0

Gain on transfer of consumer credit card business 0 49,899 0

Total income ' 84,231 94,085 39,987

Expenses:

Interest expense 19,712 20,042 , 23,209

Provision for credit losses - 490 30 0

Operating expenses 34,600 37,309 33,763

Total expenses 54,802 57,381 57,062

Gain (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and equity in

undistributed net income in subsidiaries 29,429 36,704 - (17,075)
Income tax benefit (2,941) (15,104) (18,008)
Income from continuing operations before equity in undistributed net

income of subsidiaries 32,370 51,808 933
Gain (loss) on discontinuance of mortgage business, net of tax 279 (8,469) (1,999}
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 32,649 43,339 (1,066)
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries 52,337 67,090 45,807
Net income ‘ $84.986  $110,429  §$ 44,741

The Parent Company Only Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity are the same as the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity.

The parent company had interest income related to aftiliate borrowings of $3.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, $4.0 million for 2005 and $3.3 million for 2004. The parent company provided certain
administrative and support services to affiliates. Revenues related to these services were $2.6 million for the. year
ended December 31, 2006, $2.8 million for 2005 and $2.4 million for 2004. Affiliates provide certain administrative
and support services to the parent company. Fees paid to affiliates for these services were $14.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006, $12.7 million for 2005 and $12.8 million for 2004.

92




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

ADVANTA CORP. (Parent Company Only)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

(% in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Operating Activities
Net income $ 8498 $110429 § 44741
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in}
.operating activities:
(Gain) loss on discontinuance of morigage business, net of tax (279) 8,469 1,999
Equity in net income of subsidiaries (127,619) (102,419) (82,349
Loss on sale of receivables to bank subsidiary 2,688 0 0
Investment securities gains, net (1,658) (185) (14
Dividends received from subsidiaries 75,282 35,329 33,559
Provision for credit losses 490 30 0
Depreciation 146 121 97
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (12,149) 0 0
Change in other assets and other liabilities 69,278 24,169 (7,437)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 91,165 75,943 (9,404)
Investing Activities
Investments in subsidiaries 0 1] (59
Return of investment from subsidiaries 224 14 6,028
Purchase of investments available for sale (611,358)  (404,227)  (468,082)
Proceeds from sales of investments available for sale 625,633 358,492 424 811
Proceeds from maturing investments available for sale 14,500 30,055 10,000
Change in commercial paper equivalents 0 4,000 90,000
Change in restricted interest-bearing deposits (46) 429 402
Change in receivables (32,515) (16,507) 476
Purchases of premises and equipment, net 0 {(291) (1)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (3,562} (28,035) 63,575
Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt 31.886 23,311 29.319
Payments on redemption of debt (39,973) (70,805) (90,625)
Change in affiliate borrowings (37,966) 16,725 20,631
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 10,508 6,105 8,497
Cash dividends paid (23,645) (13,729) (10,752)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 12,149 0 0
Treasury stock acquired {(43,576) 0 0
Net cash used in financing activities (90,617) (38,393 (42,930)
Discontinued Operations
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,291 (7.748) (5,551)
Net (decrease) increase in cash {1,723) 1,767 5,690
Cash at beginning of year 7,559 5,792 102
Cash at end of year $ 5836 % 7559 §$§ 5792

1n 2006, the parent company contributed $7.5 million of receivables to Advanta Bank Corp. as a noncash investment
in subsidiary. In 2005, noncash transactions of the parent company included noncash investment in subsidiaries of
$21.5 million. In 2004, noncash transactions of the parent company included noncash dividends of $3.0 million

from subsidiaries and noncash investment in subsidiaries of $3.0 million.
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Note 23. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values and related carrying amounts of our financial instruments are as follows at December 31:

2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Financial assets:

Cash $ 35055 § 35055 § 34,109 $ 34,109

Federal funds sold 547,631 547,631 355,057 355,057

Restricted interest-bearing deposits 1,211 1,211 1,333 1,333

Investments available for sale 197,477 197,477 219,782 219,782

Receivables, net ] 1,115,009 1,155,280 863,893 902,888

Accounts receivable from securitizations 334,486 334,486 450,001 450,001

Accrued interest receivable 6,076 6,076 5,236 5,236
Financial liabilities:

Demand and savings deposits $ 77414 § 77414 % 20800 $ 20,800

Time deposits 1,287,724 1,283,141 1,049,772 1,038,764

Debt 227,126 229,164 226,856 234,248

Subordinated debt payable to preferred securities

trust 103,093 105,155 103,093 102,062

Accrued interest payable 10,415 10.415 5414 5,414
Off-balance sheet financial instruments: '

Commitments to extend credit 3 0 $§ 0 3 0 3 0

The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing parties,
other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many
instances. quoted market prices are not available for our various financial instruments. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques.
Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of
future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the
instrument. SFAS No. 107, Disclosures abour Fair Value of Financial Instruments, excludes certain financial
instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value
amounts presented may not necessarily represent the underlying fair value of Advanta.

We used the following methods and assumptions in estimating fair value disclosures for financial instruments:

Cash, Federal Funds Sold, Restricted Interest-Bearing Deposits, Accrued Interest Receivable and Accrued

_Interest Payable

For cash and these short-term financial instruments, the carrying amount approximates the fair value.

Investments Available for Sale

Investments available for sale are carried at fair value. The fair values of investments available for sale are based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotes or estimates using quoted market prices for similar securities. For investments
that are not publicly traded, management has made estimates of fair value that consider several factors including the
investees’ financial results, conditions and prospects.

Receivables, Net

The fair values of receivables are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis that incorporates estimates of the
excess of the weighted average interest and fee yield over the aggregate cost of funds, servicing costs, future credit
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

losses over the life of the receivables, and interest rates currently being offered for receivables with similar terms to
borrowers of similar credit quality.

Accounts Receivable from Securitizations

Retained. interests in securitizations are carried at fair value. We estimate the fair values of retained interests in
securitizations based on discounted cash flow analyses as described in Note 2. See Note 6 for the assumptions used
in the estimation of fair values of the retained interests in securilizations.

The carrying amount approximates the fair value of other components of accounts receivable from
securitizations based on the short-term nature of the assets.
Demand and Savings Deposits

The fair value of demand and money market savings deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date.
This fair value does not include any benefit that may result from the low cost of funding provided by these deposits
compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market.

Time Dep_osits

The fair, value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the
rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Debt

The fair value of our debt is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on our current incremental
borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Subordinated Debt Payable to Preferred Securities Trust

We estimate the fair value of our subordinated debt using dealer quotes for similar securities.

‘Commitments to Extend Credit

There is no fair value associated with commitments to extend credit to our business credit card customers, since any
fees charged are consistent with the fees charged by other companies at the reporting date to enter into similar
agreements. We had commitments to extend credit of $11.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and $8.9 billion at
December 31, 2005.

N Y
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES (UNAUDITED)

QUARTERLY DATA

(In thousands, except per share amounts) : 2006
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
Interest income $45,048 $45,928 $40,511  $38,268
Interest expense 7 22,227 19,649 17,479 15,955
Net interest income 22,821 26,279 23,032 22,313
Provision for credit losses 9,969 9,202 10,145 9,284
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 12,852 17,077 12,887 13,029
Noninterest revenues 85,210 83,197 87,312 82,236
Operating expenses 68,505 65,932 62,736 59,639
Income from centinuing operations before income taxes 29,557 34,342 37,463 35,626
Income from continuing operations 18,178 21,120 23,040 21,910
(ain on discontinuance of mortgage and leasing
" businesses, net of tax'" 0 0 738 0
Net income $18,178 $21,120 $23,778  $21910
Basic income from continuing operations per common
share
Class A $ 063 $ 075 $ 084 % 079
Class B 0.69 0.81 0.87 0.82
Combined® 0.67 0.79 0.86 0.81
Diluted income from continuing operations per common
share
Class A $ 060 $ o7 $ 078 8§ 073
Class B 0.62 0.73 0.79 0.74
Combined® 0.62 0.73 0.79 0.73
" Basic net income per common share
Class A $ 063 $ 075 $ 08 § 079
Class B 0.69 0.81 0.90 0.82
Combined? 0.67 0.79 0.89 0.81
Diluted net income per common share
Class A $ 0.60 $ on1 $ 081 3% 073
Class B 0.62 0.73 0.81 0.74
Combined*® 0.62 0.73 0.81 0.73
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding
Class A : 8,870 ’ 8,862 8,854 8,846
Class B 18,315 17,887 17,945 18,107
Combined 27,185 26,749 26,799 26,953
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding
Class A 8,870 8,862 8,854 8,846
Class B 20,626 20,167 20,459 20,876
Combined 29,496 29,029 29,313 29,722

(1) See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,

(2) Combined represents income available to common stockholders divided by the combined total of Class A and
Class B weighted average common shares outstanding.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES (UNAUDITED) — {Continued)

QUARTERLY DATA — Continued

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,

Interest income $41,284 $ 35,293 530,845 $ 32,179
Interest expense 15,982 15,301 13,718 12,585
Net interest income 25,302 19,992 17,127 19,594
Provision for credit losses 10,018 11,232 8,603 10,444
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 15,284 8,760 8,524 9,150
Noninterest revenuest! 66,289 76,439 77,304 138,487
Operating expenses 59,472 58,715 62,251 62,620
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 22,101 26,484 23,577 85,017
Income from continuing operations 13,482 16,155 14,382 72,670
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of mortgage and

leasing businesses, net of tax® 2,074 (12,29%9) 3,965 0
Net income $15.556 $ 3,856 $18.347  § 72,670
Basic income from continuing operations per common

share :

Class A $ 048 $ 058 $ 053 § 282

Class B 0.51 0.61 0.56 2.85

Combined® 0.50 0.60 0.55 2.84
Diluted income from continuing operations per common

share

Class A $ 045 $ 054 $ 049 § 254

Class B 0.46 0.56 0.50 2.55

Combined"” 0.46 0.55 0.50 2.55
Basic net income per common share :

Class A $ 056 $ 012 $ 068 $ 282

Class B 0.59 0.15 0.71 2.85

Combined™ 0.58 0.14 0.70 2.84
Diluted net income per common share

Class A $ 052 § 012 $ 063 $ 254

Class B 0.53 0.14 0.64 2.55

Combined” 0.53 0.13 0.64 2.55
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Class A 8,837 8,829 8,821 8,812

Class B 17,992 17,901 17,433 16,705

Combined 26,829 26,730 26,254 25,517
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding

Class A 8,837 8,829 8,821 8,812

Class B 20,535 20,409 20,013 19,670

Combined 29,372 259,238 28,834 28,482

(1) Noninterest revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2005 included a $67.7 million pretax gain on the
transfer of our consumer credit card business. See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

(2) See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

“(3} Combined represents income available to commen stockholders divided by the combined total of Class A and
Class B weighted average common shares outstanding.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES (UNAUDITED) — (Continued)

C ALLOCATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR RECEIVABLE LOSSES

(8 in thousands) December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
, Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
Business credit cards $49.715  98% $44323 97% $49,190 97‘7:,7 $47,041 97% $44,466 96%
Other receivables 1,211 2 1,266 3 1,288 3 1413 3 1,693 4
Total $50,926 100% $45,589 100% $50.478 1009% $48.454 100% $46,159 100%

COMPOSITION OF GROSS RECEIVABLES

($ in thousands) December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount Yo Amount %
Business credit cards $1,133,132  99% $879468 99% $730,483 99% $518,040 . 97% $445083 95%
Other receivables 7,673 1 8,007 | 10,280 1 16,976 3 23,589 5
Total $1,140,805 100% $887.475 100% $740,763 100% $535,016 100% $470,672 100%

YIELD AND MATURITY OF INVESTMENTS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006

(§ in thousands) Maturing

After One But After Five But
Within One Year Within Five Years Within Ten Years After Ten Years

Fair Value  Yield™  Fair Value  Yield"  Fair Value  Yield”  Fair Value  Yield™

U.S. Treasury and government

agency securities $18,262 326% $ 2,678 470% % 0 0.00% § 0 0.00%
State and municipal securities‘" 320 4.71 0 0.00 10,074 5.16 2,848 5.87
Commercial paper 6,941 5.33 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Corporate bonds 865 4.27 7,499 4725 0 0.00 0 0.00
Asset backed securities 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 46,196 5.58
Other'? 0 000 0 000 0 0.00 40 6.00

Total investments available for sale $26,388 3.86% $10,177 4.37% $10,074 5.16% $49,084 5.60%

(1) Yield computed on a tax equivalent basis using a statutory rate of 35%.

(2) Equity investments and money market funds are excluded from this table because they do not have a stated
maturity.

(3) Yields are computed by dividing interest by the amortized cost of the respective investment securities.

MATURITY OF TIME DEPOSITS OF $100,000 OR MORE

Iecember 31,

($ in thousands) 2006
Maturity:

3 months or less $180,918

Over 3 months through 6 months 152,038

Over 6 months through 12 months 216,445

Over 12 months 281,825
Total $831,226
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

, None,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in our reports filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act™) is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management
recognized that any disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily
was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

An evaluation was performed by management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based
on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of December 31,
2006, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the
time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms. There have been no changes
in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this report that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting and the report of our independent registered
public accounting firm on management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting are incorporated
herein from pages 50 and 51.

Item 9B. Other Information

On February 28, 2007, the Board of Directors of Advanta National Bank authorized a dividend of $39.1 million and
return of capital of $28 million payable to Advanta Corp., after having received prior approval from the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency.
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PART 11

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the
captions “Election of Directors,” “‘Corporate Governance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance,” and is incorporated herein by reference, as is the information in Part I of this Report under the
captions, “Executive Officers of the Registrant,” and “Available Information.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the
captions  “Executive and Director Compensation,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation
Committee Report” *Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Employment Agree-
ments with Executive Officers and Other Transactions and Arrangements” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the
captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” and “Security Ownership of Management” and is
incorporated herein by reference.

The following table gives information about equity awards under our 2000 Cmnibus Stock Incentive Plan and
our Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of December 31, 2006.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(In thousands, except weighted average exercise price)
' (a) (h) “{¢)

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to be Future Issuance under
Issued upon Exercise of Weighted Average Exercise Equity Compensation Plans
Qutstanding Options, Price of Outstanding Options, {excluding securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plans .

approved by stockholders 4,946 $16.32 55711®
Equity compensation plans

not approved by

stockholders®™ — — —

Total 4,946 $16.32 5,57149)

(1) Does not include 825 thousand shares of restricted Class B Common Stock granted pursuant to the Advanta
Corp. 2000 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan. Generally, restrictions on these shares may be removed between
2007 and 2016.

(2) Ali of the shares remaining available for future issuance are available under the 2000 Omnibus Stock Incentive
Plan which provides for the issuance of stock options, awards of stock and/or awards of stock appreciation
rights. '

(3) Advanta Corp.'s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) does not specify a maximum
number of shares that may be issued. An aggregate of 15 thousand shares of Class B Common Stock were
purchased under the Stock Purchase Plan in 2006.
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Summary Description of Equity Compensation Plans
Advanta Corp. 2000 Omnibus Steck Incentive Plan

The 2000 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”) was adopted by the Board of Directors in April 2000
and approved by the stockholders of the Company on June 7, 2000. The Omnibus Plan provides for the issuance of a
maximum of 20,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock (including 9,860,191 shares that were available for
issuance under the Company’s prior stock incentive plans that were in effect at the time the Omnibus Plan was
approved by the stockholders and which plans were amended and restated by the Omnibus Plan). The Omnibus Plan
provides for the issuance of options to acquire Class B Common Stock, awards of Class B Common Stock and/or
awards of stock appreciation rights (referred to collectively as “Awards”™). Shares of Class B Common Stock
awarded pursuant (o the Omnibus Plan must be authorized and unissued shares or shares acquired for the treasury of
the Company. Generally, if an Award granted inder the Omnibus Plan expires, terminates or lapses for any reason
without the issuance of shares of Class B Common Stock thereunder, such shares shall be available for reissuance
under the Omnibus Plan. Employees and directors of the Company, and consultants and advisors to the Company,
who render bona fide services to the Company unrelated to the offer of securities, are eligible to receive Awards
under the Omnibus Plan. The terms of any Award made pursuant to the Omnibus Plan are described and established
in a grant document provided to the Award recipient. No Awards may be granted under the Omnibus Plan after
April 5,2010. Awards granted and outstanding as of the date the Omnibus Plan terminates will not be affected by the
termination of the plan. In the event of a change of control of the Company (as defined by the Omnibus Plan}, stock
options and stock appreciation rights granted pursuant to the Omnibus Plan will become immediately exercisable in
full. Other Awards granted pursuant to the Omnibus Plan may alsovest in connection with a change of control of the
Company, depending upon the applicable circumstances. Shares subject to Awards granted pursuant to the Omnibus
Plan are subject to adjustment for changes in capitalization for stock splits, stock dividends and similar events.

Advanta Corp. Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In September 1989, the Board of Directors adopted its Employeé Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan™).
The Stock Purchase Plan is a broad-based plan that has not been approved by stockholders and is not intended to
qualify as an employee stock purchase plan pursuant to Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. All
full-time and part-time employees and non-employee directors of the Company or its subsidiaries with at least six
months of service with the Company are eligible to participate in the plan. Eligible employees may acquire shares of
Class B Common Stock (and under certain limited circumstances Class A Common Stock) under the plan through
payroll deductions. Non-employee directors may contribute a portion of their directors’ fees to the plan to purchase
shares of Class B Common Stock. No individual participant may purchase more than $25,000 of stock under the
plan in any one year. Shares are purchased monthly under the plan. Participants in the Stock Purchase Plan in effect
purchase shares at a 15% discount from the market price because the Company contributes to the plan an amount
equal to 15% of the market price of the shares actually purchased for the month, and also pays. all fees and
commissions relating to the administration of the Stock Purchase Plan and the purchases of shares under the plan.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the
captions “Independence of Non-employee Directors” and “Employment Agreements with Executive Officers and
Other Transactions and Arrangements” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required to be furnished pursuant to this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the
captions “Audit Fees” and “Pre-Approval Policy for Services by Independent Auditors” is incorporated herein by

reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following Financial Statements, Schedules, and Other Information of the Registrant and its subsidiaries are
included in this Form 10-K:

(ax(1)
L
2.

(a)2)

(a)(3)
2-a

2-b

3-c

Financial Statements.
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Consolidated Income Statements for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31,
2006.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equny for each of the years in the three year
period ended December 31, 2006.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the years in the three year period ended
December 31, 2006.

Notes to Coensolidated Financial Statements.

Schedules.

Other statements and schedules are not being presented either because they are not required or the
information required by such statements and schedules is presented elsewhere in the financial
statements.

Exhibits*

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated January 8, 2001, by and between Advanta Corp. and Chase
Manhattan Mortgage Corporation.!’

Mortgage Loan Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated February 23, 2001, by and among Advanta
Corp., Chase Manhattan Mortgage Corporation, and Chase Manhattan Bank USA, National
Association.”

Mortgage Loan Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated February 28, 2001, by and among Advanta
Corp., Chase Manhattan Mortgage Corporation, and Chase Manhattan Bank USA, National
Association.®

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Pre-
Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File
No. 33-53475), filed June 10, 1994), as amended by the Centificate of Designations,
Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Registrant's 6%% Convertible Class B Preferred
Stock, Series 1995 (Stock Appreciation Income Linked Securities (SAILS)) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 15, 1995), as
further amended by the Certificate of Designations, Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the
Registrant’s Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, dated March 17, 1997),

By-laws of the Registrant, as amended.'”

Rights Agreement, dated as of March 14, 1997, by and between the Registrant and the Rights
Agent, which includes as Exhibit B thereto the Form of Rights Certificate (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-A dated March 17,
1997), as amended by Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 4, 1998 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 1 to the Registrant’s Amended Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A, dated June 11,
1998), and Amendment No. 2, dated as of September 4, 1998, (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit ! to the Registrant’s Amended Registration Statement on Form 8-A/ A, dated September 23,
1998).

Specimen of Class A Common Stock Certificate and specimen of Class B Common Stock
Certificate.”
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10-c

10-d
10-et
10-ff
10-g¥
10-ht
10-i

10+j

10-kt
10-1%
10-m

10-n

10-n.1

10-n.2

Senior Trust Indenture, dated as of October 23, 1995, between the Registrant and The Bank of New
York, as successor Trustee.®

Indenture dated as of December 17, 1996 between Advanta Corp. and The Chase Manhattan Bank,
as trustee relating to the Junior Subordinated Debentures."”

Declaration of Trust dated as of December 5, 1996 of Advanta Capital Trust LM

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated as of December 17, 1996 for Advanta Capital
Trust 1.7

Series A Capital Securities Guarantee Agreement dated as of December 17, 1996,

Advanta Corp. 2000 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan.®

Form of Stock Option Agreement,”

Advanta Management Incentive Program V1.9
Form of AMIP VI Restricted Stock Award.??

Criteria for certain Bonus Awards to Executive Officers for Performance Year 2006 (incorporated
by reference to the information set forth under Item 1.01 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 21, 2006).

Card Member License Agreement between Colonial National Financial Corp. (now known as
Advanta Bank Corp.) and MasterCard International Incorporated dated April 14, 1994.4?

VISA U.S.A. Inc. Membership Agreement and Principal Member Addendum executed by Advanta
Corp. on February 27, 1997.19

VISA U.S.A. Inc. Membership Agreement executed by Advanta Bank Corp. on March 3, 2000.4?

Advanta Corp. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. >

Advanta Corp. Executive Deferral Plan."V

Advanta Corp. Non-Employee Directors Deferral Plan."'"

Summary of Life Insurance Benefits for Directors and Executives.®

Preferred Pricing Agreement, effective March 19, 2006, between Dun & Bradstreet, Inc. and
Advanta Bank Corp. (filed herewith).

Tournament Class Membership Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 7, 2006, between
Advantennis Corp. and WTA Tour, Inc. d/b/a Sony Ericsson WTA Tour.!?

Agreement dated as of January 15, 1996 between the Registrant and William A. Rosoff.!!

Agreement dated May 11, 1998 between the Registrant and Philip M. Browne.!'¥

Contribution Agreement, dated as of October 28, 1997, by and between Advanta Corp. and Fleet
Financial Group (incorporated by reference to Exhibiti(c)(2) to the Registrant’s Schedule 13E4,
dated January 20, 1998), as amended by the First Amendment to the Contribution Agreement,
dated as of February 10, 1998, by and among Advanta Corp., Fleet Financial Group and Fleet
Credit Card, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form §8-K filed March 6, 1998).

Commercial Lease, dated September 28, 1995, by and between Draper Park North, L.C. and
Advanta Financial Corp., as amended January 31, 1996 and May 20, 1996, as amended.¥

Amendment to Commercial Lease, dated as of December 6, 2004, between Carramerica Realty,
L.P. and Advanta Bank Corp.®

Amendment to Commercial Lease, dated as of January 25, 2005, between Carramerica Realty, L.P.
and Advanta Bank Corp."”
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21
23
24

Master Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2000, between Wilmington Trust Company, as Owner
Trustee of the Advanta Business Card Master Trust and Bankers Trust Company, as Indenture
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K {Commission File
No. 333-32874) filed August 30, 2000 by Advanta Business Receivables Corp.), as amended May 9,
2006 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form §-K (Commission File
No. 333-32874) filed May 19, 2006 by Advanta Business Receivables Corp.).

Transfer and Servicing Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2000, among Advanta Business
Receivables Corp., Advanta Bank Corp., as Servicer, and Wilmington Trust Company, as
Owner Trustee of Advanta Business Card Master Trust (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 333-32874) filed August 30,
2000 by Advanta Business Receivables Corp.), as amended May 9, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission File No. 333-32874)
filed May 19, 2006 by Advanta Business Receivables Corp.).

Limited Partnership Agreement of Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P., dated as of May 26, 199

Agreement relating to Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P., dated as of May 28, 2004, by and between
Advanta Corp., Advanta National Bank, Advanta Service Corp., Fleet Credit Card Holdings, Inc.,
Fleet Credit Card Services, L.P. and Bank of America Corp.!"”

8.(9)

Service Agreement between First Data Resources Inc. and Advanta Bank Corp., dated as of
January 1, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10-u to Annual Report on Form 10-K for year
ended December 31, 2001).

Amendment (o Service Agreement, between First Data Resources, Inc. and Advanta Bank Corp.,
dated as of December 18, 2006 (filed herewith) (confidential treatment has been requested for

portions of this document).
Separation Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2005, between Advanta Corp. and Brian Tierney.!'?

Relocation Agreement by and between Advanta Corp. and John F. Moore, dated as of May 20,
2004_([5)

Direct Marketing Agreement. dated effective as of December 15, 1999, by and among Advanta
Bank Corp. and CFM Direct, as amended."'¥

Advanta Corp. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended.t'*

Lease Agreement, dated August 4, 1995, between Ortho Pharmaceutical Corporation and Advanta
Corp.

Agreement of Lease dated February 27, 2003 between Advanta Shared Services Corp and Liberiy

Property Limited Partnership (without exhibits) and Guaranty of Advanta Corp.U®

Letter Agreement dated as of October 14, 2003, between Advanta Corp. and Jeffrey D. Beck.!'¥
Advanita Corp. Office of the Chairman Supplemental Compensation Program.”

Advanta Senior Management Change of Control Severance Plan Restated December 21, 2000.*
Advanta Senior Management Change of Control Severance Plan,”

Sponsorship Agreement, dated as of March 14, 2005, between Advantennis Corp. and World Team
Tennis Franchise Inc.”’

Stock Repurchase Agreement, entered into May 9, 2006, by and among Advanta Corp., Dennis
Alter, Dennis J. Alter, Trustee U/I/T dated December 15, 2003 and Dennis J. Alter, Trustee U/I/T
dated May 24, 20042V

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Powers of Attorney (included on the signature page hereof).
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311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.
312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
321 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. '

(1) Incorporated by reference to Definitive Proxy Statement filed January 25, 2001.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 14, 2001.
(3) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 17, 1997.

{(4) Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 1 to Form 8 and Exhibit | to Registrant’s Form 8-A,
respectively, both dated April 22, 1992.

(5) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 17, 2005.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 33-62601) filed September 13,
1995.

(7) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996.

(8) Incorporated by reference to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 333-04469) filed on November 1, 2000.

(9) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004,
{(10) Incorporated by reference to Annual Repert on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001,
(11) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995.
{12) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2006.

{13} Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998,
{14} Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002,
(15) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2004.

(16) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003.
(17) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004,
(18) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003.
(19) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2005.

(20) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 5, 2005.

(21) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006,
(22) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006.
(23) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005,

*  Unless otherwise indicated, each exhibit incorporated herein by reference was previously filed with the SEC
under Commission File Number 0-14120. '

t  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Advanta Corp.

By: /s/ William A. Rosoff

William A. Rosoff, President and
Vice Chairman of the Board

Dated: February 28, 2007

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned does hereby constitute and appoint
Dennis Alter, William A. Rosoff, Philip M. Browne, David B. Weinstock and Elizabeth H. Mai, or any of them (with
full power to each of them to act alone), his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of
substitution, for him or her and on his or her behalf to sign, execute and file an Annual Report on Form 10-K under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 relating to Advanta
Corp. and any or all amendments thereto, with all exhibits and any and all documents required to be filed with
respect thereto, with the Securities and Exchange Commission or any regulatory authority, granting unto such
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises in order to effectuate the same as fully to all
intents and purposes as he or she might or could do if personally present, hereby ratifying and confirming all that
such attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be
done.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated, effective on the 28th day of February,
2007.

Name Title

/s/ Dennis Alter Chairman of the Board and
Dennis Alter Chief Executive Officer

/s/ William A. Rosoff ) President and Vice Chairman
William A. Rosoff of the Board
fs/ Philip M. Browne Senior Vice President
Philip M. Browne and Chief Financial Officer
fs/ David B. Weinstock Vice President and
David B. Weinstock Chief Accounting Officer
fs/ Robert S. Blank Director
Robert S. Blank
/sf Max Botel Director
Max Botel
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Name Title

/s/  Thomas Costello Director

Thomas Costello

/s!/ Dana Becker Dunn ljirector

Dana Becker Dunn

/s/ Ronald Lubner Director
Ronald Lubner ' ’
/s/ Olaf Olafsson Director
Olaf Olafsson
/s/ Michael Stolper Director

Michael Stolper
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IT'S AN APPLICATION,
BUT IT'S ALSO AN EXCHANGE OF STORIES.

Advanta: Thank you for calling Advanta. This is Lisa
gpeaking. May | have your invitation number so 1 may

helter assist you?
Customer: Yes Lisa, iUs xxxx xxxx Xxxx Xxxx.

A: Thank vou and am | speaking with

Mr. Thomas Mason?
C: Yes, vou are.

A: Okay, and vou are the owner? And sir, can you tell

me your total number of employees including yourself?
C: I’s just me, 'm a personal trainer,

A: Greal. How long have you been in business?

C: Going on three vears.

A: That’s what my son wanls to do; he jusl gi'adlmh:tl

from high school.

C: Does he want Lo e a strong inan?

A: No, he wants to be a personal trainer.

C: Oh, okay, Well, iU's a good held. How old is he?
A: He's 18,

C: Yeah, you should try 1o get him into the sports

medicine part of 1, toa.
A Yes, he was taking a class like that in high school,

C: Yeah, that’s a great lield, working with the athletes

and helping with their rehab and everything,
A: Sure, sure.

Az Mr. Mason, may [ ask what your vearly gross rev-

enue for this business is?
C: Approximately $129,000.

A: Thank vou. And may [ have your mother’s maiden

name please?
C: Carter.
A: Can vou spell that for me please?

C: Do I have 107 {laughter)

TM STRENGTH & CONDITIONING

A: (laughter) Pretty please?

C: C-A-R-T-E-R.

A: Thank you, and do you have an e-mail address?
C: No.

A: Alright. If vou have a pen and paper, Ill have your

[

application [D number for you in a moment. And while
we are waiting for the application to process, do you

have any business cards or printing needs?
~ L
C: Yes.

Az You may want to visil a link on our website.

“I AM NOT COMPUTER SAAVY.
I AM STILL A CAVEMAN.
| LOOK LIKE A CAVEMAN,
| AM A CAVEMAN.”

C: | am not compuler suvvy. [ am still a caveman.

| look like a caveman, | am a caveman.

A: (laughter) If you do gel there, you can access free
business cards through a company we are affiliated
with called VistaPrint. We are also affiliated with
weli.com, where vou can have a custom-huilt website
arl advertise your business. You would save 20% by
using your Advanta card. So, if you do get on the web,

you may want to check that out.
C: Okay, thank you.

A: Sure. And sirn, | do have that application 1D for you.
It’s 134865, And if you'd like to check on the status
of your application, you may do so by calling the

number vou reached me at.

C: You were very helpful. If this is recorded, please
tell your superiors you did a great job. Thank vou.
A: Thank you very much, Mr. Mason, and thank you
for choosing Advanta. We look forward to doing

business with vou. Have a great day.

C: You ton. Have a good day.

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: LISA
CALL RECEIVED: 5.26.06
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OUR CUSTOMERS DON'T HAVE TO BE
MORNING PEOPLE, BUT WE DO.

Advanta: Thank vou for calling Advanta. This is
Joshua, How can | help vou today?

Customer: Hi Joshua. This 1s Rachael from All Smiles
Dental Services.

A: How are you lodav?

C: Okay. How are you?

A: Good, thank you. What can | do for vou, Rachael?

C: We just got our credit card bill and there is a
trans... there is a transaction. .. if my brain would

coordinate with my mouth 1 would be doing good!

A: I happens. 1t's siill the beginning of the week.

We have to get adjusted vet.

C: Yes, | know. Hopelully by Friday, mayhe

il will be working,.

A: Yes, maybe hy 4:30!

C: The wransaction date was March 4.

A Okay, let’s hring up that aceount. May 1 have
vour last name and the last four digits of vour secial
please?

C: Sure. Last name is Greene and social 1s xxxx.

A: Thank vou. What is the dollar amount

of the charge?

C: 8390.00.

A: Okay, ProMeadical. Is that correct? What questions
can | assist you with?

C: Do you have a phone number for them? We cannot
identify that charge.

A: Let me see. [ see that it is seme sort of education

service, | have their bhilling address as 334 Silverlake

Drive. Let me look in the directory for a phone number

listing. Let’s take u look and see if I can find any

further information.
C: Okay, sure.

A: Lam not finding anything under ProMedical.

ALL SMILES DENTAL SERVICES

Az Let me see il | ean look them up in the reverse

directory by their address.

C: That works lor me; al this point anything

works for me.

A: We have their address: they just do not provide the

phone number.
C: Okay.

A: Could it be ProMed Incorporated? It is a billing

company at that address.

At 1 eould give them a phone call 10 see what kind of

business it is.

C: Okav.

“WE JUST GOT OUR CREDIT CARD
BILL AND THERE IS A TRANS...IF
MY BRAIN WOULD COORDINATE
WITH MY MOUTH | WOULD BE
DOING GOOD!”

A: Ms. Greene, thank you so much for holding. It is
ProMed. They answer their phone as ProMed. Would

vou like their phone number?

C: Yes.

A: Their phone number 1s 555-436-9350).
C: Great! Okay, that’s 555-430-93507

A: Correcl.

C: Alright. | will give them a call and find out what

they are billing us for. Thanks a lot!

At You're welcome, Is there anything else | can

hielp vou with?

C: No, I think that is it.

A: You enjov vour dav and thanks for calling Advama.
C: Thanks, Joshua.

Az You're welcome. Goodbye.

g

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: JOSHUA
CALL RECEIVED; 3.27.06
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IT'S THEIR BUSINESS. IT'S THEIR CARD. SO WHY WOULDN’'T

THEIR BUSINESS NAME BE FEATURED ON THEIR CARD?

Advanta: Hello, and thank you for calling Advanta.

My name is Carol. How may | help you?
Customer: Carol, good moming. How are you?
A: Very good and you?

C: Good. This is John Goodwin. I have two things.
One, my card has become so worn that it has become
difficult for machines to use it. Can | get another card

and one with another person’s name: on it?

A: So vou said vou want to replace your card and add

an emplovee card to your account?
C: Yes, ma'am,

Az Not a problem, Mr. Goodwin. Could you just verify

vour dale of birth and your mom’s maiden name?
C: 12/2/1943. Cavanaugh.

A: T appreciate that, Mr. Goodwin, as soon as vour
card shows some wear, always feel free 1o give us a
call. We can gel you a new card, There is no charge
to you and you should not be inconvenienced if the

machines are unable to read it.

“YES, HER NAME WILL BE ON
IT, AND YOUR BUSINESS NAME
WILL BE ACROSS THE TOP.”?

“WOW!”

C: Alright.

A: You want an employee card added. Do you want
this card to have the same access to your credit line

or do you want to put a limit on it?
C: Wow! Let’s put a limit on that card.

A: Do you want the employee to have

availability 10 cash?

=)

G&G REMODELING SERVICES

C: No.

A: And the employee’s name?

C: Christina Miller.

A: What eredit line would vou like her to have?
C: [s it a monthly maximum?

A: Yes, if you set the limit 1o $500, that is the mnost

she ¢an spend in the month,
C: Let’s set the limit to 8500,

A: That is Christina Miller with a limit of $500 with

no cash daccess.

C: Yes, maan.

A: Both cards will go out in twoe business days.
C: Will it have her nane on it?

A: Yes, her name will be on it, and your business

name will be across the top.
C: Wow!

A: Do vou want Christina to have full authorization 1o

call on vour behalf?
C: No, thank you.

Az Is there anvthing else you would like to go over on

the account today?

C: No, not unless there is something | need to

deal with.

A: No, evervihing is fine on your account,

e

-

2t [ think that is fine.

A: We appreciale vour business at Advanta and

.

| hope vou have a wonderful day.

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: CAROL
CALL RECEIVED: 12.1.06
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WE CAN'T MAKE MIRACLES,
BUT WE CAN MAKE SOMEONE’S DAY.

Advanta: Thank vou for calling Advanta. My name is

Beth. How mav | help vou loday?

Customer: Hi Beth, this is Terey Danielson. | have
my aceount number and T wanted to do a balance
transfer | just have a few questions, T also have to
discuss this witle iy partiner hefore [ complete

anything. Do vou have my account number there?

A: Yes Ldo, Mr Danielson. To protect your aceount

could you please verify vour mother’s maiden name?

C: Harrison.

“I’'D BE HAPPY TO GIVE YOU

-A CALL BACK IF YOU’D LIKE
ONCE YOU DISCUSS THIS WITH
YOUR PARTNER.”

Az [appreciate that. Thank vou. [ do show you have a
promotion on your account which allows vou to receive

2 0% rate for balance transfers until January 1, 2008.
C: Great! Is there a transfer fee?

Az There is a transfer fee. IUs a 3% minimum bat the

maximum fee would be capped at §50.

C: That sounds good. Se il T wanted 1o transfer
$13.000 would that be a prohlem?

A: Not at all, T show vou have $25,000 available

at this time.

-

-

o1 Okay, and is my current rate for purchases 7.99%7
A: That’s correcl.

C: Okay, and is there any way 1 cun catl you

hack directly?

A: You wouldn’t be able 10 reach me directly, but I'd
be happy to give you a call back if you'd like once

vou discuss this with your partner.,

SAFE-CHEM, INC.

C: Tdor’t think it will take very long; maybe 15

minutes or so.
A: Sure, [ can do that. What munber shonld T call you a1?

C: Pl give you an 800 number, 800-xxx-xxxx.

[y
-

: Alright.

al L) ' fed
C: Pl also give you a regular number just in case.

My business number is 555-3406-7921.

A: That’s actually one of the business numbers have
on file, so U1l try the 800 numher first and then Ul try

vour husiness number.
(C: Thank you very much,

A: You're welcome. Pl eall you back in about 15

to 20 minutes.

C: Very good.

A: Thank you for calling Advanta.
(20 minutes later)

A: Hi Mr. Danielson. This is Beth from Advanta. s

this a good Lime?

C: Hi Beth. Thank von so much for calling me back.

Yes, | would love to process the balance transfer.

Az Do vou still want to process the transfer for

$13.0007
C: Yes. | did not think you would remember

A: Not a problem. Would you like to take advantage
I b )

of this great rate with additional translers?
€2 Not at this Uime, bul thank you for the great service.

A: M Danielson, thank vou for choosing Advanta

and have a wonderful day.

(: Thank you for making my day.

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: BETH
CALL RECEIVED: 10.20.06
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EVEN IF THEIR BUSINESS IS HEALTHY,
SOMETIMES THE OWNERS AREN'T.

Advanta: Thank vou for calling Advanta. This is Lee.

How may 1 assist vou?

Customer: This is Juohn Parsons. Two things. 1 had
surgery 10 days ago. My wife has had the flu that is
sweeping the country. This is the first morning [ have
had aceess to my oflice that is upstairs. discovered |

had not made the payment that was due on the 22nd,

A: Oh, T am so sorry 10 hear that. 1 hope vou are both

feeling better

C: Thanks. We are a bit, thanks. [ would like to
make arrangemeints lo make a payment as quickly
as possible.

At Sure, | can help you with that. Absolutely. To
protect the security ol your account, M. Parsons,

may | have your mother’s maiden nume?
C: Sure, it’s Weathers.

A: Thank you. How much would you like 10 pay?

“l HAD SURGERY 10 DAYS AGO. MY
WIFE HAS HAD THE FLU THAT IS
SWEEPING THE COUNTRY. THIS IS
THE FIRST MORNING | HAVE HAD
ACCESS TO MY OFFICE THAT IS
UPSTAIRS. | DISCOVERED | HAD
NOT MADE THE PAYMENT THAT
WAS DUE ON THE 22ND.”

-

ot [ would like to pay $1,500.

-

: Alright. 1 can take care of that.

-

21 I know things happen but we have never been late

on a pavient in 25 vears. It upset me considerably.

A: Oh, [ understand, 1 can see that this is your

first statement.

FRESH BEANS COFFEE HOUSE

C: Yes, it is.

Az I 'will be more than happy to take that pavment.
I'want o let you know that there is a 312 fee to make

a payment by phone.

C: That’s fine, | just want 1o make the puyment as

goon us possible.

“l SURE DO HOPE YOU AND
YOUR WIFE START FEELING
BETTER SOON.”

A: That is not a problem; we will gel it taken care

of right away.

Az The pavment will post to your account in three

business days, but it will post with today’s date.
C: Okay, fine.

A: When you have a moment, you may want to
register at Advanta.com so you can make free

payments anline.
C: Thanks for mentioning that. T certainly will,

Az [sure do hope you and your wife start feeling

betler soon.

C: [ was able 10 go up a few stairs, which | couldn’t
do before. T always try 10 make the payments early—
usually when [ see them—and I feel terrible abowm
this, hun there was absolutely nothing § could do.

And 1 apologize.

A: I completely understand. Is there anything else

that 1 can assist you with?

(: No, not at the present time, but | appreciate your

help very much.

A: I was my pleasure. We appreciale you giving me a
call and take care of yourself. You have a great day,

Mr Parsons. Thank vou for calling Advanta.

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: LEE
CALL RECEIED: 9.26.06
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SOMETIMES, RED MEAT RAISES A RED FLAG.

Advanta: Thank vou for calling Advanta, My name is

Harry, How mayv | help you?

Customer: | received a call regarding some charges
o my account, so | was just returning your call 1o see

if there was a probdem.

Az Sin for the protection of your acconnt may | verily

vour mother’'s matden name and youwr date of birth?

“THIS PAST SATURDAY WE HAD
A PICNIC FOR THE MARINA.”

C: Carr and December 21, 1967,

A: Thank you, sic After reviewing your aceount,
I see two pending transactions thal we would like
10 verily, both from January 7. The first is from
Trler Rental for $93.28 and the other one is from
Robinson Foods for $638.78.

C: Yes. those are both correct. This past Saturday

we hail a picnic for the marina.

A: Okay, great. | will nolate the acemmt and advise
our sceurily department that those transactions

are valid,
C: Great! | really appreciate vou checking. T have

been making a ol of charges.

“DEFINITELY. | WAS PURCHASING
38 PORTERHOUSE STEAKS,
THEY’RE NOT CHEAP!”

At Yes, for the security of vour account we keep an
eve out for any larger than normal charges that may
appear. That seems to he what happened in this

case with the |m‘gf:|' (:hin’gc.

C: Oh, P sure it raised a flag,

CUSTOMER SERVICE

FRANKLIN BAY MARINA

A Yes it did It was a large charge and we jusi
wanled to verify that it was valid.

C: Delinitely. | was purchasing 38 porterhouse steaks.

they re not cheap!

At {laughter) No, they’re not! Me Williams, 1 have
notified our security department that evervthing
appears 1o be okay. Is there anything else we can

assist vou with today?

C: Well, did just purchase four radios for approxi-
mately $1,000. That charge should be coming
through today.

A: Okay, Me. Williams, 1 will notate your aceount with
that information. Thank vou for calling Advanta teday.

We appreciate vour business.

“NO, THEY’RE NOT! MR. WILLIAMS,
| HAVE NOTIFIED OUR SECURITY
DEPARTMENT THAT EVERYTHING
APPEARS TO BE OKAY.”

C: Okay. thank vou! You guys have been greatl
A: You're welcome. Have a good day sin

& )
C: Okay. bye.

/y

REPRESENTATIVE: HARRY

CALL RECEIVED: 1.9.08
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WE HELP CUSTOMERS WHO ARE STUCK
BETWEEN A ROCK AND A HARD PLACE.
OR IN THIS CASE, SAN ANTONIO AND HOUSTON.

Advanta: Thank you for calling Advanta. This is

Vanessa. How may 1 help you?

Customer: | 1alked to someone vesterday about
my balance. | made a phone payment vesterday
of $1,000. I am overdrawn on my limit. F am in

San Antonio and | need to get home to Houston,

A: | understand.

“MA’AM, HOW MUCH DO YOU
THINK YOU WILL NEED?”

C: Yesterday | was $79 over my limit, now today | am
179 over my limit. [ just need to pay for my rental

car and get a plane ticket home.

A: Let me check o see whal is going on. For the
security of the account, may | have your mother’s

maiden name?
C: Gerardi.

A: Okay, please hold. 1 am going to discuss your

situation with my supervisor.
(pause)
A: Ma’am, how much do you think you will need?

C: 1 think they said it would be 8300 {or the plane
ticket and 835 for the rental car. Oh, and 1 need 10

get my car from 1he lot.

A: So we need Lo get it around $400. Is that

about right?

C: Yes. Am | messing up my interest rate? That is

why we pol the card.

A: No, because vou are paying. This is nol uncommon.

There will be a fee, though.

C: Okay.

SJ CARPENTRY

At Let me talk to my supervisor to see what we can do.
(pause)

A: Thank vou for holding. We did process the
temporary inerease {or vou. You should be okay
now. You should he fine and the payment will also

e added to your account tonight.
C: Thank you so much. I never had this happen before.

A: It’s okay. We are here 10 help. Is there anything

clse T ean help you with?

C: No. Thank you so much.

“THANK YOU FOR HOLDING.
WE DID PROCESS THE
TEMPORARY INCREASE
FOR YOU. YOU SHOULD BE
OKAY NOW. YOU SHOULD
BE FINE AND THE PAYMENT
WILL ALSO BE ADDED TO
YOUR ACCOUNT TONIGHT.”

“THANK YOU SO MUCH. | NEVER
HAD THIS HAPPEN BEFORE.”

“IT’S OKAY. WE ARE HERE TO
HELP.”

A: Thank you for choosing Advanta. Have a

wonderful day.

—

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: VANESSA
CALL RECEIVED: 5.2.06
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From the Office of the Chair

It seems fitting that Advanta founder Jack Alter thought of himself an inventor.
At Advanta, we are constantly reinventing ourselves. Over the vyears, we have
managed to pioneer new ways of doing business, while at the same time staying
loyal to the personal and community-oriented approach we have always taken to
doing business. Fifty-five years strong, Advanta is still driven by the innovative

and entrepreneurial spirit that has characterized our company since its earliest
incarnation as TSO, a small business run out of a private home that made loans
to teachers, who traditional banks tended to ignore. The one constant about

Advanta is that we are always changing, consistently finding new and betfter ways

to do what we now do best: provide credit cards to small businesses.

T 2006 Advanta had o very good vear We were able 1o report
a net ineome from contining operations of 3802 million
ar 82,86 per dilated share for Clazs A and Class 1 shares
combined, To 2006, Advanta Bosiness Cards”™ camings
inersased by over 300 and we were able o add roughly
370000 new customers, an inerease of 30% and omr highest
mumber of new small business owners ever e o given yvean
We Torescee ourselves continoing lo henelil from this year's
acquizition of pew customers over many vears, with 07
Business Cards” carnings projected 1o inerease 1% and

inerease by more than d0% over that in "0,

Relationships/Understanding onr Customers

Mozt of our competitors are huge compatiies with well known
bramds. vast aperations, scores al products and =ervices in
diverse markets with maltiple segments, The 2mall boziness
market s not their top priovits. At Advantae we have the
luxury of being able o focuz all onr energy and resourees and
expertise on =mall busineszes. AU Advanta, we have walked
in the shoes of our costomers and know swhat it means 1o he

a =mall husiness,

We are able todo business with a higher degreee of focus than
our competition is ahle o beeauze we dao not have myriad
bazinesz lines, markets all over the worlib or groups within

our company compeling for resonrees,

Advanta 1= dedieated 10 and focased on this one |nlrli|'|i[;|l'

ehosen sector of the markel i a way that other companies
are not able 1o bes As o company with its origins as o swmall
husiness, part of & market 1that emplovs over hall of the LS.

work foree, we mniderstiond the needs ol oar castomers,

Our rools are intertwined with theirs. We don’t have to
speenlate aboat how a small husiness owner trinks. We
undlerstand how small bisinesses Tonetion o decper
level than many of our competitors do hecausys we were a
sl husiness ourselves, not onee upon a Hmd. bt in this

weneration.

AU Advanta, we pride onrselves on oor pergonable and
persomal way of doing husiness. We are effectively o small
husiness grown to be the sixth Lavgest small biisiness hank
eredit card issuer i the US We marcket 1o high dredin gnality
smwall husiness customers. offering them what we helieve is

the best business eredit card generally available in the U,

P N L L T ]

P N YR

AT ADVANTA, WE PRIDE
OURSELVES ON OUR
PERSONABLE AND PERSONAL
WAY OF DOING BUSINESS.

R R Y N N RN

4484884828880 0000000 202823 NETIIRIIOIIITEARRS NS T TR bEubYdd

dilferent. Siee

Welre

customer’s hrand in large letners al the wop of the card, This

1995, weve highlighted  our

i= our philosophy manifest. Advamta prides itsell on the
relationships 11 fosters. g0l only between emplovees and
customers. bul amongst cmplovees. We have people wla ane
as good at what ihey do as those working for oue competitors,
bt they can foens their energy and talentz exclugively on this

marketplace,




WE FORESEE QURSELVES CONTINUING TO BENEFIT FROM THIS

YEAR™S ACQUISITION OF NEW CUSTOMIERS.

‘07 BUSINESS CARDS” EARNINGS

ARE P

;ROJECTED TO INCREASE 14%.

|

Companies often hombapd ns with claims that they focus on | whieh hotd are noetared and enlivened by the othen Salt

one: particular business | when inoreality 1he natore and size [ Lake Citye howe 1o o hank and second ops center, has
ol their company prohibits this tvpe of lne-tuneds highly | alzo benelted from our sapport of many conmunity and
speciflicd foeus as they mby be turning theiv altention to zeores | culiovad activities. Advanta feels deeply connected 1o 1he

ol different arcas at oneel A Advanta this stidement is not an areas inowhich 0 operates and cantinues 1o coneh therr

t'mggl'l‘;lll'tl lluu'kt'ling |
reality. Advanta has ro
ol our comprtitors have
times s nany peaple
size of 1hese companies
i them 1o have a very

{or anly =0 mueh flesit

are: nimble enough llj

oursebves get hogped

|J|{lgllf' {Hr I.'II"',[C'I' LU

At Advantae peaple’s |
overlap and interact
responsibilities of their

coupled with minimu

Lln_\‘. but a pleasant and varely-zecen
ehiv 12000 cmplovees. where most

ity one hundreed. even two hundeed

Uit hecomes necessary for evervone
specilic job deseription that allows
ity within their organization, We
get things done without betting
lown by the bureaneraey that can

Lilogs,

b deseriptions and responsibilitios

with the gob deseniptions and

‘o-workers. Thiz maximum Hexibility.

m bureancracy. allows Advanta’s

cmplovees to hroaden their horizons G bhevond their

specified field, Advant:
cultivate an intimate k
compiay. Fvery Advant
where it came from and

for taking u= =0 far
Contmunity
Advanta was horn andd

to thrive o the histort

Advania and Philadel;

Cs sl size allows it employees 1o
wwledge of the ins and outs of the
th knows what the company is aboul,

where 10 going. and we thank them

aized in Philadelphia and continues

ally rieh and coltarally diverse city,

hin have a symbiotie relationship in

vorking for them. Given the sheer

=ovial. busines2. and eoltural landseapez.

W haud a great vear Oure continuing promse is to capilalize
~ o

an the apportunities that abound i the mall busines2 marke.

Dennis Alter
Clhiuel Faceutive Ofleer

Chairnum of the Board

William AL Rosoff
President

Viee Chatrman ol the Board

|21




RS L A A et R s R L S B ot e

'mnmmmzﬂm«ﬂemﬂumﬁmmmdﬁllfmu Seloeontn Bsdonrss

anmf o [lfgghaﬂam:{ummfm

mx:ﬂmuunﬂ:mfn&rmmmmmﬂmn&mmmmﬂih

of I]Q.. o
ulul Qclhyenten Uﬂ‘ﬁkﬁlﬁ(%ﬁm‘hﬂnﬂhp[ﬁﬂq}m
off o mnﬁlmnmmmmmmmw&mﬁnm
dicraniommnre of o b koo, ol

i anmnzese (oocfioress aod et aff e

| ﬁmmmﬁ}nﬂmﬂmdﬁw&nﬁmﬂmﬁﬁmhﬂ

) k. T sl off anor anpording Dopborsses app
mwmrmﬂmafnmﬁmhgqmﬂﬂﬁnmﬁmaﬂ]mfm{b[pmumﬂ

amm@mmmmm&mamammmm&
m e e e T
Mmhgmﬂmhmmm{hﬂunﬂkﬁm Do
mdhm@mﬂ&mm«l}fm@mmuam@fm
@%Wﬂﬂwdhn‘ﬂdﬁmﬁhﬂﬂwﬂmﬂb

agppoaz(h ' aproied copoes, g ih)laﬂifnﬁ}mh’ e ol
aff sarenos condll) fnosbonreses woml foosdomss prodfestomk, o to
afflr o] m&mﬂ}nﬂmmﬁdj&nﬁhﬂn@xﬁm
&ﬂum (nmatkos o AR e IIIII a]]:nﬂ d}m}nmhgm mihﬂihmuﬂﬂ)m
with ooy eufing cwostums b nm:r RenaR(s RRGLRNR,

toibuecd) (e of s, an=fiore aroant oz ol

i

nu'|||l-|t- j

mmmmmhm&mmammm |

Do o
munmﬂp[hmmfnnp&n'mufmmnmnm:ﬂmﬂm ‘
fﬂhamr uhgg&muhmﬂi]mw%umwd&nﬂmmlﬂmﬂ&n_

E] &mmnmzmﬁﬁnnﬁmﬂxr

ko ofemlb v oy ol ool ks
LOu| Ll aﬂhwflqga (o o o) a]éu’jnﬁm o mﬂa off sl

ﬁfnwmnpmﬁwaxﬂemm

bty o acrd o wromin mdfl]qpmﬁﬂg)aﬂuk&mmm
&mmmmﬁmﬂiﬂf@m%wﬂﬂm

m{“l;:nmmﬂ oo e 11 uﬁhd]% s cntbero ail ) anr pecgullie, Wiee

t'(‘ul]u (RIE[[iH] [hnmmi}dk\ ﬁmpm]ﬂ[ﬂ:m
tﬂmﬂl}paﬂam?mmﬁwmhuﬁmmmkﬁnmmﬂ%m
b letirouseetifion oo Ol 0 S5

ﬁm[tm%;omﬂﬂannmmﬁfum {fﬁhmﬂﬁmpmmm{mﬁn
ﬁmm&lmmuﬂmm@nlﬁuﬂ
Vl}rnfmlwmwa' i roos{oomee

= wd) dh:m’&q]\) dlﬁmﬁlmiﬂ

¢ i :
'maﬂ]maxmmﬂmﬁmmwﬁm '




L )

i

!
\
!
!

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS INCLUDES

THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS SECGMENT RESULTS FOR THE
YEA% ENDED DECEMBER 315
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SECURITIZATIONS IMPACTED THE FOLLOWING LINE,
ITEMS ON THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOMLE
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IN 2006 ADVANTA HAD A VERY GOOD YEAR.

WE WERE ABLE TO REPORT NET INCOME
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS OF
$84.2 MILLION.

ADVANTA BUSINESS CARDS’ EARNINGS INCREASED BY OVER

00%

ADVANTA NEW CUSTOMERS INCREASED BY

069




IN 2006 ADVANTA HAD A VERY GOOD YEAR.

WE HAD MANAGED RECEIVABLES OF

.2

BILLION DOLLARS VS.

3.0

BILLION DOLLARS

AT DECEMBER 2005



aluation adjustinent o the retained interest-only steip of |
$3.5 mitlion i 20006, Our fulure expectations for viekls on

securitized recetvables are similar to those in owned business

credit card receivables as discussed in the “lnterest Income

and Expense™ section of this 2000 Financial Review, ($ in thousands)
|

|
1

Year Ended December 3lI, 20:06

Managed Receivable Data

o Bl . - ! N (PR T * »

In addition to evaluaing the financial performance of the Nel inferest income

Advanta Business Cards segmem uider CAAER we evaluaie T T T !

) N . ) i ) Provision for credin losses !

Advanta Business Cards” performance on a managed busis.

- - - . Bl . \ H ITYEN VIR a

Our managed business credil card receivable portfolio is Noninterest revenues

comprised of lm[h. owned and securitized business cradit Average business credit card interesl-caining assets

card receivables, We believe that perdformance on a managed ,
basis provides useful supplemental information to investors !

. . , . . . T . o . . . |
because we relain interests i the securitized receivables Year Ended December 31, 2005
anl, therefore, we have o financial interest in and exposure

. . : Nel interest iicome ‘
o the performance of the securitized receivables, Revenue Netinterest ineome
and credit data on the managed potfolio provides additional Provision Tor eredit losses |
information useful in understanding the performance of the ) i

. . . A Noninlerest revenues !
retained interests in sceurilizations.

. . . |
Average business credit cand interest-carning assets
The following tables provide managed data for Advanta

|

Business Cards and a reconciliation of the managed data o [
the most divectly comparable GAAP financial measures: As of December 31, 2006 ‘
|

Ending business credit card receivables

Receivables 30 dayvs or more delingquent

Receivables 90 days or more delinguent

As of December 3I, 2005
Ending business credit card receivablis
Receivables 30 davs or more delinguent

Reeervables 90 davs or more delinguent

10}




MANAGED FlI

NANCIAL MEASURES AND STATISTICS

Advanta Business GAAP Securitization Advanta Business Managed
Cards GAAP Ratio'” Adjustments Cards Managed Ratio"
$  97.503 7.72% S 260319 § 357,824 8.14%
38.05¢ 3.06 119,727 158.377 3.60
332,02 200,35 {140,592) 192,332 4.37
1.263.487 3,133,067 4,397 454
i 8 85,67 8.53% S 280.021 $ 365,091 10.42 %
| 10.315 4.02 152,118 102,433 548
: 244 556 28.34 (127.903) 156,653 4.46
’ 1,004,000 2 506,999 3,510,999
|
)
| S1.133,132 34.073.128 85,206,260
26,053 2.30% 108,159 134.212 2.58%
\
12,631 111 52,270 Gd 011 1.25
b
5 879468 $ 2,880,401 £3,759,809
23.59b6 2.08% 87.010 111.205 2.96%
10,837 1.23 4,223 51.060 1.36

(1) Ratios are as a pergentage of average business credit card interest-carning assets except delinquency ratios which are as a

percentage of ending husiness credit card receivables.

(2) lcludes the amonnt by which the credit losses would have been higher had the securitized receivables remained as owned

and the provision for credit losses on securitized receivables been equal 1o uctual reported chuarge-offs. The year ended

December 31, 2000 includes a 83.5 mitlion unfaorable valuation edjustment to vetained interests in seeuritizations as

an increase to provision for credit losses. The vear ended December 31, 2005 includes @ $3.5 million fuvorable valuation

adjustntent to retuined interests in seeuritizations as a reduction to provision for credit losses.

|31




SERVICING REVENUES

Servicing revenues were $63.7 million for the vear ended
December 31, 20006 and $31.1 million for 2005, The increase
in servicing revenues in 2000 was due 1o increased volune of

sceurilized business eredit card recervables.

OTHER REVENUES

Imerchange income includes interchange fees on both
owned and securitized business credil cards, The inerease
i interchange income for the yvear ended December 31,
2000 as compared to 2005 was due primarily 1o higher
Tl

interchange mies were 2.2% for the vears ended December 31,

merchandise sales transaction volume. average

20006 and 2005, The average interchange rales are impacted
by the interchange fees established by MasterCard® in April

of cach vear

OTHER REVENUES

’I‘IIC il]l:l‘lfilsc i” lfilsll I)il‘lk |'C\\'El]‘(|b‘ rl)l‘ th’
December 31, 20006 as compared 1o 2005 was «

1o higher merchandise sales transaction volume

year ended
ue primarly

mel a higher

average number of business credit card accoums in the cash

back rewards progriens. The inerease in business rowards for

the vear ended December 31, 2006 as compared
due primarily to higher merchandise sales wansa
partially offset by changes in estimates ol costs of
redemptions. Both vears include changes in estin
of future reward redemptions based vn changes i
in redemplion rates and the costs of busin
redeemed, and/or changes in he rewands progra
in estimates increased other revenues $500 thod
vear ended December 31, 2000 as compared 1o
S1.2 mllion in 2006,

*MasterCard® is a federally registered servi

MasterCard Intermational, Ine,

to 2005 was
tion volume,
ulure rewand -
ales of costs
1 experience
155 rewards
ns. Changes
isand in the

decrease of

o mark of

(6 in thousands) vear ended December 31
[nterchange income $ 203.309 3 164,853
Cash lack rewards (45,845) (33,581)
Business rewards (22.210) (20.140)
Balance transfer lees 7.848 5,561
[nvestment securities gains, nel 5,508 80
Other husiness credit card lees 3,545 3.283
Cash usage fees 3487 3199
Earings on investment in Fleet Credit Card Services, L1 1,246 1,948
Other, nel 2,549 4,807
Total other revenues, net £159,291 130,710




|
The ncrease in badane
December 31, 20006 as ¢
to a higher volme of hal

newaceount originations

Investment sccurities

transfer fees for the vear ended
ympared 1o 2005 was due primarily

e transfers resulting from higher

rains, nel, include realized and

unrealized gains and logses on venture capital investimens

reflecting the market co
l’l:S[IDt_'l:li\'t: period, a3 we
the sale of other investo
on venture capital invest
31, 2006, as compared

for 2005, Realized gat

ditions for our investiments in cach
I s realized gains and losses on
ents. We had gains of $1.4 million
nemts for the year ended |,}(r(:<:|||lu:r
to a net gain of 8593 thousand

15 on other Investments in 20006

|
include a $2.4 million gain on MasterCanl Incorporated’s

redemption of a portion of our shares related 1o their initial

public offering,

GAIN ON TRANSFER OF CONSUMER

CREDIT CARD BUSINESS

On Mav 28, 2004, Advania Corp. and certain of its

subsidiaries and Bank of America signed an agrecment 1o

resolve all ontstanding

iigation, inciuding partnership tax

digputes, between Advanta and Fleet Financial Group, Ine.
(*Fleet™), which was acquired by Bank of America, relating
to the transler of our consumer credit card husiness 1o
Fleet Credit Card Services, 1B in 1998. The agreement
was subject o the Internal Revenue Service’s final approval
of the settlement of the ax disputes. We received the final
approval of the Imemnal Revenue Service in January 2005
and, as g result, we received $63.8 million in cash [rom
Bank of America in February 2005, representing a return
of the pavments that we made: o Fleet in the Delaware state
court litigation in Febroary 2004, Consistent with the terms
of our agreement with Bank of America, ali outstanding
litigation between Advanta and Fleet was dismissed in
Felruary 2005, The overall impact of the agreement with
Bank of America, including the cash received, settlement of
the tax disputes and re-cvaluation of the valuation allowance
ondeferred tax assels, was a pretax gain of $67.7 million, tax
expense of 35.6 million and an increase in additional paid-
in capital of $6.0 million in the vear ended December 31,
2005, Sec 2006 Financial

“loncome:  Taxes” in o this

Review for further discuesston of 1he income lax impact off

our May 28, 2004 agreement with Bank of America.

OPERATING EXPENSES

{($ in thousan

ds)

vear ended December 3|,
2006 2005

Salaries and employee benehits

$ 06,371 $ 96012

Amortization of deferred origination costs, nat 48.285 41.729
External processing 25,072 21,216
Marketing 23,193 20,560
" Professional fees 11,907 12,236
Equipanent 9,942 10,954
Oceupancy 9.102 8,180
' Credit 5.140 5,004
Other 27,800 27,107
© Total operating expenses 5256812 5 243,058

BE
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OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee benehts for the year ended December
3L, 2000 include an inerease in expense related 1o employee
stock options resulting from the adoption ol Statement of
SFAS™) No. 123R, Share-
Based Payment, discussed below. Salaries and emplovee
benelits Tor the year ended Decenmtber 31, 2005 include $2.9

Financial Accounting Standads (¢

illion of expense associated with a separation agreement with
a former executive in the hirst quarter of 2005, and a reduction
in slaffling levels implemented i the second quarter of 2005
as parl of productivity and elficiency initiatives that resulted in

£2.1 million of severanee and refated costs,

I December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123K
that addresses aceounting for eguity-hased  compensation
arrangetnents, including emplovee stock oplions. Entities are
required 1o measure the cost of emplovee services received
in exchange for awards of cquity instruments o the gram
dlate of the award nsing o Tair value-based method, Prior to
January 1, 20006, we used the intrinsic value-hased method of
aceounting for emplovee stock options permiticd by SFAS No,
123 Acconnting for Stock Based Compensation. as amended
hy SFAS No. 148, Aceownting for Stock-Based Compenseation —
Transition and Disclosure, and, as a vesult, had not recognized
compenzation expense for options granted o emplovees that
had no inteinzic value ot grant date. We adopted SFAS No.
1231 an January 1, 2000 using the modified prospective
method. and recognized $3.8 million of salavies and emplovee
benefits expense related to erployee stoek options for the year
ended December 31, 20006, As of Decembaer 31, 2000, total
unrecognized compensation expense related to outstanding
stock options was $8.9 willion and the expense is expected o
be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years. In
connection with our adoption of SFAS No. 123R on January
I, 2000, we reclassified nonvested shares from o scparate
componenl of stockholders” equity to additional paid-in capital
o the condensed consolidated balance sheet. Also effective
January 1, 20006, we classificd cash flows resulting rom lax
deductions in excess of recognized stock-hased compensation
costs as a financing cash How on the condensed consolidated

statement of cash flows in accordance with SFAS No. 123R.

Amounts paid 1o unrelated thivd parties to acquire business
credil cand accounts and certain olher originalion costs are
deferred und netted against any related business eredit card
origination lee, and the net amount is amortized on a straight-
line hasis over a privitege period of one vear. Amortization of
deferved origination costs, net, increased for the vear ended
December 31, 2006 as compared 1o 2003, due primarily to

an inercase B onew account originations, partially offsel by a

. . |
decrease in our average acquasiion cosl per acconnt duc 1o

enhanced product offerings resulting in improved effectivencss

in account acquisition campaigns, '
|

External processing expense increazsed for thevear ended

PDecember 31, 2006 as compared 1o 2005 due [primarily 1o
an increase in the number of accounts and higher ransaction

volume.

Marketing expense inereased for the vear ended December
31, 2000 as compared to 2005 due primarily Lo ‘in::re:lm:ulul
cuslomer  acquisilion costs largely  associated) with - new
prospect lists, partially offset by a reduction in sponsorship and

lis events.

advertising eosts associated with culwral and 1en

Tnn 2007, we plan to pilot new outsourcing iniliali\'ﬁs, including

offshoring. involving certain of vur business processes and
information technology functions and (o pursue other re-

engineering opportunitics. We currently anticipale incurring

approximadely 35 million of incremental n;n:mting\t:x[n:nscs in

2007 related to these aclivities.,

LITIGATION CONTINGENCIES

Advanta Corp. and its subsidiavies are invnl\'l‘F:I in class
action lawsuitz, other litigation, claims and legal ];Jl'llt:t‘tf('lillgs
arising in the ordinary course of business or discontinued
operations. Management believes that the aggiegate loss,
iF any, resulting from existing litigation. clatms' and other
legal proceedings will not have a material adverge effect on
our linancial position or results of operations based on our
current expectations regarding the ultimate resolutions of
these oxisting actions after consultation with our attorneys.
However due 1o the inherent uncertainty in Litigation and
since the ultimate resolutions of our litigation, laims and
other legal proceedings are influenced hy factors ouside of
aur control, it is reasonablv possible that actual results will

differ from our estimates. I
|




INCOME TAXES

[ncome tax expense atlril

utable to continuing operations was

852.7 million {or the yeuwr ended December 31, 20060 and
340.5 millton Tor 2005, Qur ellective ax rate was 38.5% for

the vear ended Decemb
Our effective lax rates o
mcomne lax rale of 35%
income  taxes and
fir 2005, our effective 1

lP[ AII]CI'i(,’iI Elgi‘[i(,‘[ll(,‘ll[

nnnfmlm:tilblu expuenses.

31, 2000 and 25.8% (or 2005.
iffer from the US. federal stautory
lue primarily (o the impact of stale
In additton,
Ly rate was impacted by the Bank

md reevaluation of the valuation

allowance discussed below. Excluding the impact of the
Bank of America algl't:t:llljllll and reevaluation of the valuation
allowanee, our cllective fax rate would have heen 39.0% for

the vear ended December 31, 2005.

In January 2005, we recéived the Inlernal Revene Serviee’s
(inal approval of the scttlement of 1ax disputes in our May 28,
2004 agreement with Bank of America aml in Felimary 2005,
we received $63.8 million in cash from Bank of America. See

“Gain on Transfer of Consumer Credit Card Business™

in this

2000 Finaneial Beview fof fuvther discossion, The settlement of

the tax disputes resubted i an allocation of §381 million of the
dizputed parinership tax deductions 1o Fleet, which was acquired
by Bank of America, um! 8617 thousand of the disputed $47
million partnership waxable gain o Advanta, The impact 10 us
of the tax deduction and gain allocation was a reduction in our
deferred tax asset related{io net operating loss carrvloneards of
3133.4 million and a cortesponding reduction in our valuastion
allowance on deferred tay assets of $133.4 million, both in the
vear ended December 31, 2005, Upon receipt of the Internal
Revenue Service’s approval of the setilement of the tax disputes,
the remaining valuation allowance of $12.4 million was
evaluated. and nuumgunul_m determined that it was more likely
than not that the remaiming deferred tax asset was realizable and
therefore, no valuation allgwanee was needed, resulting in a $6.4

million reduction in tax expense and a $6.0 million increase in

adklitional paid-tn capital in the vear ended December 31, 2005,
The increase inadditionaljpaid-in capital represented the portion
of the valuation allowaneg: that had been related to tax henefits
from stock-based campensation. The gain associated with the
original transfer of assets to Fleet Credit Card Serviees, 112 in
1998 was not subject to income tax, and therefore, a substantial
portion of the Febrniry 2004 pavment 1o Fleel was not tux-
deductilde. A substantiall portion of the $63.8 million paviem
received in Febmary 2005 was not laxable sinee it is o retum
of our payment to Fleet in February 2004, As of December 31,
2000. the cuemulative gain on transfer of consumer credil canl
Dusiness and our defieit|capital account in Fleet Credit Card

Services L2 on a tax hdsis for which no deferred taxes have

heen provided is approximately $650 million, as the traosaction
structine remains nontasable under cument lax law. See our
2006 Form 10-K for further discussion,

I Lhes thivd quarter of 2000, we completed the preparalion and
filing of vir 2005 LS. federal ineomne lax return and recognized
a current tax benelt and deferved tax provision 1o veflect a
reduction in current taxes pavahle and deferred tax assets from

the amounts previously estimated. These results were due to

changes in the liming of certain deductions and recognition of

certain revenues in the 2005 tax return and had no net impact
ononr effective tax rate or tolal income lax expense for the: vear

ended December 31, 2000,

AL December 31, 2000, we have $4.3 million of capital loss
carrylorwards that are scheduled 1o expire in the vear ending
December 31,2009, $7.4 million that are scheduled 1o expire
it the vear ending December 31, 2000 and 7.3 nullion that are

scheduled to expire in the vear ending December 31,2011,

[ July 2006, the FASE issucd Interpretation No. d8. Accounting

Sor Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB

Statement No. 109, The statement provides a recognition
threshold and measurement atiribute for the finaucial statement
recognilion and measurement of a Lax position Liken or expected
to be taken in o tax retim, In accordance with the slatement,
hefore o tax benefit can be recognized, o 1ax position s
evaluated using o theeshold that it is more likely than not that
the tax positen will be sustained upon examination. When
evaluating the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the
interpretation provides that a company shouald presume the tax
position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authoraty
that has Tull knowledge of all relevant information, If the tax
position meels the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold,
it is initiadly and subsequently measured az the largest amount
of benelit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlernent. The interpretation also provides guidance
on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties,
acecotnting in interim periods., disclosure and transition. Basoed
o1l our current assessment :;lllaj«:(:i Lo (:hungus that niay
resull from additiemal guidance issued by the FASBE on this
statement, we do not expect the adoption of this statement
effective January 1. 2007 10 have a material impact on our

financial posttion or results of operations.




BUSINESS CREDIT CARD RECEIVABLES IN BILLIONS
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TRANSACTION VOLUME IN BILLIONS
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

For the vear ended December 310 20000 we vecorded a nel

after-tay gain on the dizcontinnance of o morgage wd

leasing husinesses of ST38 thousand. The components af

the net gain included o S300 thousand pretaa gain on the
dizcontinuance of the mortgage business. o $700 thonsand
pretax gain on the dizcontinnance of the leazing business, and
tax expentse of $402 thousand. The gain on the discontinuanee
of the mortzage business represented changes inestimaltes

of legal expenses and related insuranee reimbuarsenents.

and other faverable changes in estimate related 1o a former

tortgage insturancee product. The gain on e discontinnanee
ol the leasing business vepresented changes in estimated
leasing operating resulis of the leasing segment over the wind
down perviod. The largest component= of 1The change in leasing
estinate 1 2000 were ivorable credil recoveries and equipment

realization vates hased on recent performance trenuds.

For the vear ended Decembier 3102005, we recorded a nelt
after-lax o=z on the discontinuance of our mortgage and
[easing businesses ol 6.3 million. The components of the net
Tz included a 318 million pretax loss on the discominnanee

of the mortgage businesse a 545 million pretax gain on the

discomtinuanee of the leasing husiness. and a 1ax henefit of

S4.0 million. The loss on the dizcontinnanee of our morlgage
business included & 325.5 million toss resalting from the courd
ruling inthe July 26, 2001 litigation with Chase Manhatan
Mortgage Corporation {“Chase™ ) a 3.1 million gain on the
seltlement with Chase of separate Titigation that commenced
during 2004 and an $5.0 million gain representing a change
in estimate of cogtz of morlgage business-related contingent
liabiiities. The change in estimate of costs of morgage
business-related contingent Tiabilities was due primarily
o reeoveries Trom msuranee rennbursements for past and
ongoing legal espenzes, partially offset by increased Titigation
reserves amd reserves Tor legal eosts based on developments
in litigadionn priore to the vesolution of the Chase matlers,
The gain an the discontinuanee of the leasing business
represetted o change in estimaled leasing aperating vesuliz
of the leasing segment over the remaining life of the leaze
portfolie hazed on performance tremds ineluding favorable
eredit perfonmznee. sales tax refunds and reduced estimates
of certain operaling expenses. partiably offset by o reduction

in our estitated realization rate on equipment residnals.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET
ARRANGEMENTS

Off-halanee

provide a stenificant portion of our fimding and they are one

shieel business  eredit card secenrvilizadions
of our primary somrees of liquidity. AL December 310 2000,
oll-balanee sheet securitized reccivables represénted 63 of
our funding. Our ceedit vizk in the securitized meecivables iz
Litnited o the amount of oue retained fnderesi= o seearitizations.
W had securitized husiness eredit eard receivibles of 84,1
billion o Deecmber 31, 2000 and $2.9 Lillion gl December
AL.2005. Sce the “O-Balanee Sheet Avvangemints™ section
of onr 2000 Form 10-K for fudher discussion of off=halanee
sheet arrangements and their impact on our liguidity, capital

resources and fimancial condition,

LIQUIDITY. CAPITAL RESOURCHS AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AL December 31, 20000 we had o high Jevel of lipridine
ineloding S350 million of cash and $347.6 millisn of federal
fines sold. AU December 31, 2000, we also had receivables
held for sale and investments available for sale that could be
sold 1o generate additional Tiquiding At December 31, 2000,
we had S135.7 million of =abordinaed trosl assets held w
non-hank subsichianies that were mted BB by Standan! &
Paor’s and Ba2 by Moody™s Tovestors Serviee that could De

2okl o1 borrowed againzt 1o generate additional liquidity.

As shown on the staterents of eash Hows. our aperating aclivities
genevated STAL7 mnllion of cash tnthe vear ended December
31, 2006 due primarily 1o excess spread and servicing
revenues related to secoritized veccivables. interchange
imcomes, e iterest amd fee income on owned receivables,
partially offset by operating expenses, interest expease and
costs of rewards programs, Our operaling activities generated
F8.1 million o cash in the year ended Decembegr 31, 2006
ael were impacted by aninercage in accountz receivable

from zecaritizations in the period,

Our aceess 1o unsecored, mstitational debd i limited sinee
Advanta Corp.s debt rting is not investment grade, However,

we dlo have acecess o a diversity of funding sourees.




OUR COMPONENTS OF FUNDING WERE
AS FOLLOWS AT DECEMBER 31:

{elels 2005

(% in thousands)

| Amount % Amount %
Off=babimee sheet gecoritized receivalles" S$3.032.732 0N 82.771.505 HOG
|)t'|m.-'it:& | 1.3053.138 22 1.070.572 23

i

DNeln 2271260 4 220,856 5
Subordinated deba |r'l_\'£||||u* 1o preferrel secmrilies trust 1R3.003 2 JUK3.005 2
Fequity 367.161 9 315437 1
Tonat 56195250 | 6K S OBT 03 13095

(1) Eveltudes our rm'nlr'r.s'hip interest in the neteliolder principal badunee of securitizations (suhordinated trust assets)

that are leld “”'l"’l”mw sheet amed classeficd as reterined {nterests D securitizations,

Our ratio of equity to m!w-h:nl:uww sheet assets was 23509
al Drecember 3k, 2006 ;ls[-rnu]lul'vtl b 240, 23% al Decemiber 31,
2005, The
to preferred securities
27.78% at f)m'vlnlwr {’rl
al December 3 )()(l*[

ratio of cogugty and subordinated debr pavable
L‘usl to on-halanere sheel assels was

2000 as compared to 20075
In managing our capilal needs,
we alzo consider our vatio of equity to managed assets Lo

be uselul becanse nlllll on-halanee sheot assetz neloade
1
|

retatred inlerests in securitizidions that serve as eredn
cohancemen to the noteholders interests inthe securitizedd
receivables. (e ratio of  eqgnity to managed  assets
wis G945 al December 31,2000 as compared 1o 100526
al December 3102005, The watio of equity and subordinated
debt payvable to preferned secearities rost 1o managed
assels was 10.30% a1 Decewnber 312000 as compared 1o

12,635 al December 310 2005,

WE CALCULATE MANAGED ASSETS AS
FOLLOWS AT DECEMBER 31:

(S in thousands)

2006

Total en-balanee sheot azsots

OM=halanee shect|securitized receivables

Managed assets

|30




We offer o variety of deposit. products al Advanta
Bank Corp. We ulse offer unsecured deln securities of
Advanta Corpe.in the form of RediBeserve Variable Rate
Certificates and Invesiment Notes, o retail investors through
aur retail note progeam. We change the interest rates we offer
o deposits aned deln seeurities freguently depending on

market conditionz and our funding needs,

Iu Marvch 2006, the Board of Divectors of Advanta Corp.
approved an anerease o the regolar gquarterly cash
dividends on Class A and Class B Common Stock heginning
with the dividend paid in the sceond quarter of 2000.
The quaterly dividend inereased for Class A Commaon
Stock from 501134 10 30,2125 per share and Tor Class B
Common Stock from 30,1301 10 302550 per share.
We funded the increase in dividends with zonrees of

operating cash {lows,

Contractual Obligations

fn May 2000, we repurchased 995 thousand shares of
Class I Common Stock heneficially owned l’}' Advanta
Corp.s Chairman and Chicl Excentive Officar for $38.5
million. The purchase price was Tunded with exizling
Liguidits, The stock repurehase and material terms were
authorized by Advanta Corp.s Audit Committee and Board
of Diveetors (with the Chairman and Chiefl Exeeutive
Officer abstaining). Alsoin May 2000, in connection with
the vesting of shares related o the 2005 performanes
vear for our management incentive program. we withheld
132 thousand vested shares with a market value of $5.0
million from certain cmplovees (including officers) o meet
our minimum statutory ax withholding requirements. We

Munded tax withholding paymients with existing liquidiy,

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SUMMARIZES OUR CONTRACTUAL
CASH OBLIGATIONS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006 BY PERIOD:

Payments due by period

Less than or After
(S in thousands) Total equal to | year I-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Time deposits §1,287.724 353360 S 03824 § 29500 % 0
Deht 227.126 92,140 9541 19390 20176
Subordinated debt pavalle
to preferred securities trus) 103.093 0 0 0 103,003
Operating leases 23,328 0313 12,271 4744 O
Purchase abligations 58.142 22,308 20,302 14.5607 ons
Supplemental executive
retirement plan obdigations 1,504 0 0 ) 1,394
Turtal S1.700.007 §975.157 S531.481 5 068.271 $125.708

10|
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We eapeet to fund copmitments related o aperating
leases. purchase abligations and supplememal exeentive
retivement plan obligalions with operating cash flows.

Sources o operating cish flows inelade secaritization

of receivables, excess s

cad and servicing revennes related

1o seeuritized veceivableg interchange incomes and fnlerest

adl lee income on owe
operations inelude fu

evpenses, interest expen

ed receivables, Uses of cazh in
wling o recetvables. operating

seoand coztz of rewands progrians,

Managetment expects W fgnd one depaosit s debt oblimions

with replacement deposit

G oor debn having similar werms and

conditions. The subordinated debt pavable 1o preferred

sectritics trust is not i
:-|||)|)]1'|m'nl;1| excentive

table represent the pres

eountil 2026, Pavinents related ta
retivement plan obligations o the

i value of vested Tateree henefits

pavable and are hazed on zerviee rewdered through

Dcember 31,2000,

We hive commitiments Lo

parehase obligations, T

wirchase goods and serviees that are

s agreements are legally binding,

specify all signilicant tedins abont the ransaction. ineluding

fined or minimume quann

price provizions, and iy
wolice ar penalty. Certan
specilied notice period o
rellected in the table as il

ol the original agreement

Wi have o contracd wil
admimistralive funetions
business eredit cand po
cffective unil December
e greater of 37 million o
vear o an annual basis,
out penally at e disen
the contenet had been o
the lguidated damages
approvitalely 8.3 mitlion

nHng in order o convert

I addigion 1o these ob
extend eredit to our

representing umised i
Becember 31 2000 a
2000, Total lines of ¢
credit cards were S0
and $12.7 billion

that onr custotmers

1
will continue to be suhs

commilments. as has b

s aned fined minimmn o variable

be renewable or eaneelable withonm

agrectends are cancelable with a
¥ |n'n:1|l)': however all contracts are
Liew will he pedformed for the fall tevm

Athont regard 10 suel notice period.

v thied party o perform cevlain
ssocited with the servicing of our
lolio. The five vear agreement s
S1. 2000 and we ae obiligiated o pay
SO0 of the fees paid i the previons

Wee can lerminate the contract withe-

rminated on PDecember 31,0 2000,
upon teemination wonld have heen
plus iy costs ineurred for program-

a new thivd party zerviee provide

igalions, we have commitments 1o
msiness credit card customers,
ws ol credit, of SHES hillion
i S8.9 hillion at December 31
it on o customers” business
7 hillion a1 December 31,0 2006
Jecember A1 2000, We helieve
ilization of their Tines of credid
antiadly Tess than the amonnt of the

noour experienee (o date, W expreet

to Tund the vnmmilnn-n*
components of I'umlin;_i

funding of other new rece

s loeatend eredit with the various
desevibed  above, similar to the

ivahles,

sion az ol December 310 2000, 1f

Restrictions at Subsidiaries and
Undistributed Earnings of Limited
Partnership Iuterest

Advanta Bank Corp. and Advanta National Bank are snbjec
o regilatony capital regquicensents and other regulaton
provisions that vestrict their abiltity o lend andfor pay
dividends 10 Advanta Corp. and its allilistes. Advanta Bank
Corp izsues and primarily finds our business purpose eredit
cards. Prior 1o our exit from the morgage business inthe first
guarler of 2000 Advanta National Bink issued and funded
a barge portion of onr morlgage business, Advanta National
Bank™s operations were nob material to onr consolidiated
aperating resulis in the two sears ehded December 31, 2000,
Our insurance subsidiaries are alzo zubjert to ceratn capital

and dividend vudes and regulations az preseribed Ino state

Jurisdictions i which they are anthorized to operate,

Advanta Bank Corp. paid 875 million in cash dividends 1o
Advamta Corp. in 2000, In 2005, Advanta Bank Corp. paid
235 million in eash dividends wo Advama Corpe Advania
National Bank paid no dividends (o Advanta Corp. in the twe
vears ended December 3102006, There were no dividends
(o insurance subsidiaries o Adsvama Corp. in the two vears
cirded December 312000,

AU Dhecember 210 200060 Advada Bank Corps - comnlbaned
total capital ratio (combined Tier T and Tier I eapital o
risk-weightod assetz) was 2137% ax compared to 21.82%
December 3102005, At hoth dates. Advanta Bank Corps. hanl
capial ineseess of levels a bank is reqoired o maintain to he
classified as well-capitalized inder the regnlatory framework

{or promag corrective action.

Tonal stockholders” cquity of onr lanking and insoranee

subsidiaries wus S191 million ot December 310 2000, of

whiele 3338 million was restiicted. A January 1, 2007,
S153 million of stockholders" cquity of our bhaek and insuranee
subsidiaries was available Tor pavment of cazh dividends in
2007 ander applieable vegulatory goidelines without prior

regulatory apyroval,

I seddition 1o dividend vestrivtions al banking and insomee
subsidiaries, one ol our iher subsidiaries is subject 1o oa
minimue eqoity requirement as part of a transaction agree-
neent. The total minina equity vequirement of this sebsidiary
was S1O million at December 310 2000 avd the subsidiary
was in compliznee with i mintmnn equity requirement, We
also have an investment ina limited parctnership, Fleer Credit
Card Services. L and estimated undistribnded partnership
carmings included inoone retained camings were ST2.1 wmillion

al Decentbwer 3102000,

{41
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Mavagement believes that the restrictions. for bhank.
insurance  and other zubzidiaries and  undisteiboted
carnings of our limited partieership intevest, will not have
an alverse effect on Advanta Corps ability 1o meet its
cash obligations doe o the carvent Tevels of Tigquidiy

and diversity of finding zources.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Thiz =ummary annual veport contains forward-losking

statements that are sulject to certaim nisks and ineertamties
that could cavse actual resalis s differ materially fram
those projected. The most signihicant among, these visks and
uneertainties are: (1) the Company’s namaged nel inlerest
income including changes resielling from leetuations in e
volume of receivables and the range and timing of pricing
olfers o cardholders: (2) competitive pressuresc inchuding
product development and pricing. among financial
inslitgtion=: (3} political conditions. <ocial conditions.
monetary and lzeal policies and general econmmie aid
other environmental comditions that affeet the level of new
accomnl originations, customer spending, delingueneies
and clarge-offsy (4} Getors affecting fluctoations in the
number of accounts or receivable balanees: inechiding the
retention of cardholders alter promotional pricing perinds
have expired: (3) interest rate fluctuations: (6) the level
of expenses: (7) the timing of the securitizations of the
Company’s receivables: (8) the offeciz of governmem
regulation, ineluding restrictions and fimitations inpuesed
by hanking laws, regndators and examinations; (9) effect of,
aned changes inc tax laws, rales: regalations and polieies:
(10) elfect of legal and regulatory: developruents, ineluding
changes in bankroptey laws and regulations and the ultinate
resolution of the ncdustre-related  judicial procecdings
relating to the legality of cortain imterchange rtes: (11)
relationships with customers, gignificant vendors e other
third parties that we invest inor with whom we partner or
comuzet; (12 diflienlies or ditavs inthe Compaay’s alility
o develop, acquire. produce. test and market products

g the ability and cos1i 10 abtain

or services. ineluding

inteHectual property rghts or a failure to implement new
products or serviees when anticipated: (13) the ameownt and
cost ol financing available to the Company: (1) the ratings
ont the debt of e Company aed ivs subsidiavies: (15) the
effect of changes in aceaunting policies or practices as
may he required by changes in US. generally aceepled
accounting pritciples: (16} the impact of Litigation.

including judgment=. settlements and actual o anticipated

insurance recoveries for costs or judgments: (17) the
proper design anil operation of the Company’s diselosnee
controls s proceduresy (18) the ipact of harm or damage
1o the Company’s reputation: and (19) the ability to aliraet
and retain key personnel. Additional risks that may afieet
eir Tuture performance arve detailed inoonr !ilill;:s wilh
the Secartties aimd Exehange Commizsion, including our
2000 Fom 10-K,




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(S in thousands, except share amounts)

December 3,

2006

2005

ASSETS

Cash

Federal funds sold and restricted interest-bearing depuosits
Investments available for sale

Receivables, net

Accounts receivable from securitizations

Premises and equipment, net

Other assets

$ 35055
548,842
197,477

1,115,009
334,486
16,715
165,554

8 34,109
356,390
219,782
863,893
450,001

16,901
186,327

Total assets

$ 2,413,138

$2,127,403

LIABILITIES
Deposits $ 1,365,138 $ LO70,572
Debt 227,120 226,856
Subordinated debt payable 1o preferred securities trust 103,093 103,093
Other liabilities 150,620 211,445
Total liabilities 1,845,977 1,611,966
Commitments and contingencies
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Class A preferred stock, $1,000 par value:

Authorized, issued and outstanding - 1,010 shares in 2006 and 2005 1.010 1,010
Class A voting commun stock, $.01 par value:

Authorized - 200,000,000 shares; issued - 10,041,017 shares in 2006 and 2005 100 100
Class B non-voting common stock, $.01 par value:

Authorized - 200,000,000 shares; issued - 23,425,609 shares in 2006

and 21,918,569 shares in 2005 234 219
Additional paid-in capital 308,219 276,231
Nonvested shares ] (1,148)
Unearned ESOP shares (9,204) {9,622)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (288) (678)
Retained earnings 359813 208,472
Treasury stock at cost, 434,155 Class A common shares in 2006 and 2005;

4,290,789 Class B common shares in 2000 and 3,162,019 Class B common shares in 2005 (92.723) (49.147)
Total stockholders’ equity 567,161 515,437

Total liabilities and stockholders” equity

$ 2,413,138

$2.127,403
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

(S in thousands, except per share amounts)

year ended December 3lI,

2006

2005

Interest income

$169,755

$139,601

Enterest expe 75,310 57,586
NMlmprps“m"m(.94’445 ..................... 820]% .......
Provision for eredit losses 38,600 40,297
NH mlerest m”)mc a“erl""nsmn .r,(.’.r. ””m [m.,,ts ..................................................... 3584;, e 41”3 ......
Noninterest revenues:
Securitization income 114,938 109,051
Servicing revenues 63.726 51.079
(her revenues, net 159,291 130.710
Gain on transfer of consumer credit card business 0 67.679
....... Inla|m,mm,.r.,s;,-..H.m.,.q ;;7()55;',35]9
Operating expenses 256,812 243,058
Tneome from continuing operations hefore income taxes | 136,088 157,179
Income lax expense 52,740 44,490
|n“,"“fr0m (Ommumg .,p.mmms .......................................................................... 341248 .................... o |,,689 ......
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of morigage and
leasing businesses, net of tax 738 (6,260)
Nel income § 84986 §110,429
Rasic income from continuing operations per common share
Class A g 301 § 434
Class B 3.18 4.47
. B2 14
Diluted income lrom C(')l]l.ivl'l‘l;illé; (Ipi’:;“'d‘li‘l;;ls per common share
Class A § 282 § 399
Class B 2.88 4.04
Combiped 286 402
Bds“ net mum" [,..r mm"m" . ahar.: ..............................................................................................
Class A § 304 § 411
Class B 3.21 4,23
Combined 315 4.19
[).|.,|N| nct m |n|np pﬂ‘ Cmmmm Shan‘ ...................................................................................................................
Class A S 2.84 8 3.97
Class B 2.91 3.82
e e 289 38
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding
Class A 8,858 8,825
Class B 18,064 17,512
Combined 26,922 26,337
|)||u[..d “mgl - i u o ragv : e ;har,s e ng ...............................................................................................
Class A 8,858 8,825
Class B 200,530 20,160
Combined 20,388 28,985




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

ear ended December 3lI,
($ in thousands) Y

|
l OPERATING ACTIVITIES - CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2006 2005
Net income $ 84,986 S L4229
Adjustments to reconcile net income 10 net cash provided by operating activities:
{Gain) loss, net, on discontinuance of morigage and leasing businesses. net of tax {738) 6.260
Investment securities gains, nel {5,508} {780)
Depreciation and amortization 3,785 7.184
Stock-based compensation expense 92,673 6,845
Provision for eredit losses 38,600 40,297
Provision for interest and fee losses 8,830 9,270
Change in deferred origination costs, net of deferred fees (3,123) (6,262)
Change in receivables held for sale (2.254,249) {1,345,789)
Proceeds from sale of receivables held for sale 2,160,674 1,248,066
Change in accounts receivable from securitivations 115,515 (205.639)
Excess tax benefits from stock-hased compensation (12,149} 0
Change in other assets and other liabilities (16.607) 138,189
Net cush provided by operating activities 131.68% 8,070
INVESTING ACTIVITIES - CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Change in federal funds sold and restricted interest-bearing deposits {192.452) (2L767)
Purchase of invesiments available for sale {768,031} (543,157)
Proceeds from sales of invesiments available for sale 710,185 428,436
I*roceeds from sules of other investments 2,440 0
Proceeds from maturing investments available for sale 83.818 79,318
Change in receivables not held for sale (201,8:48) (103.415)
Purchases of premises and equipment, net (5,584) (6.070)
Net cash used in investing activities {371.472) {109.685)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Change in demand and savings deposits 50,6014 11,720
Proceeds from issuance of time deposits 735,304 482,612
Payments for maturing time depasits (517.854) (263.294)
Proceeds from issuance of deht " 31,886 23311
Payments on redemption of debt (39.973) (70.805)
Change in cash overdraft and other borrowings 16,222 6.283
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 10,508 6,105
Cash dividends paidl (23.645) (13.729)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 12,149 0
Treasury stock acquired (43.576) 0
Net cash provided by financing activities 237,640 182,203
DISCONTINUED CPERATIONS
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 3,089 1.956
Net increase {(decrease) in cash 946 (1.456)
Cash a1 beginning of year 34,109 35.565
Cash at end of year $ 35,055 $ 34109
|45




SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(S in thousands, except per share amounts)

year ended December 31,

20069 2005 2004 2003 2002
Summary of QOperations®
Interest income $169,755 £ 139,601 £106,709 $108,361 §103,604
Interest expense 75,310 57,586 45,577 48,308 47,580
Noninterest revenues 337,955 290,840 287,841 268,541 240,101
Provision for credit losses 38,600 40,297 42,368 45,423 40,906
Operating expenses 256,812 243,058 234,298 225,165 201,741
Minority interest in income of
consolidated subsidiary® 0 0 0 8,880 8,880
Gain (loss) on transfer of consumer
credit card business v} 67.679 0 0 (+3,000)
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 136,988 157,179 72,307 49,126 1,598
Income (loss) from continuing operations 84,248 116.689 44,273 30,213 {15,572)
Gain (loss), net, on discontinuance of
mortgage and leasing businesses, net of tax 738 (6.260) 468 (1,968) (8,610)
Net income (loss) 84,986 110,429 44,741 28,245 (24,182)
Per Common Share Data
Basic income (loss) from continuing vperations:
Class A $ 301 S 434 $ 1.9 5 119 $ (0.69)
Class B 3.i18 4.47 1.80 1.29 (0.59)
Combined® 312 4.43 1.76 1.25 (0.63)
Diluted income (lass} from continuing operations:
Class A 2.82 3.99 1.57 1.16 (0.69)
Class B 2.88 4.04 1.62 1.23 (0.59)
Combined™ 2.86 4.02 1.60 1.21 (0.63}
Basic net income (loss):
Class A 3.04 411 1.71 111 (1.03)
Class B 3.21 4.23 1.82 1.21 (0.94)
Combined® 3.15 4.19 1.78 1.17 (0.97)
Diluted net income (loss):
Class A 2.84 3.77 1.58 1.08 (1.03)
Class B 2,91 3.82 1.64 1.16 (0.94)
Combined® 2,89 3.81 1.62 1.13 (0.97)
Cash dividends declared:
Class A 0.7509 0.4347 (1.3465 0.2520 0.2520
Class B 0.9011 0.5217 0.4158 0.3024 0.3024
Book value-combined 20.65 18.74 14.90 13.87 13.11
Closing stock price:
Class A 39.81 30.13 22.62 12.93 8.98
Class B 43.63 32.44 24,27 12.92 9.39

46|
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(S in thousands, except per share amounts) year ended December 3|,

20069 2005 2004 2003 2002

Financial Condition at Year End

Investments § 745,108 § 574,839 8§ 482,917 & 480,935 8§ 503,479
Gross business credit card receivables:
Owned 1,133,132 879,468 730,483 518,040 445,083
Securitized 4,073,128 2,880,401 2,564,147 2,463,747 2,149,147
Managed® 5,206,260 3,759,869 3,294,630 2,981,787 2,594,230
Total owned assets 2,413,138 2,127,403 1,692,924 1,608,444 i,681,613
Deposits 1,365,138 1,070,572 825,273 672,204 714,028
Debt 227,126 226,856 265,759 314,817 315,886
Subordinated debt payable to preferred
securities trust® 103,093 103,093 103,093 103,093 t]
Trust preferred securitins® 0 0 0 0 100,000
Stockholders’ equity 567,161 515,437 392,194 341,207 321,313

Selected Financial Ratios

Return un average assets 3.79% 5.61% 2.81% 1.45% (1.50)%
Return on average common equity 15.80 23.06 12.18 8.59 (6.74)
Return on average total equity 15.80 23.04 12.19 8.61 (6.68)
Equity/owned assets 23.50 24.23 23.17 20.09 19.11
Equity/managed assets™ 8.94 10.52 9.44 8.38 8.34
Dividend payout® 27.70 12.32 23.79 26.78 NM

Az a percentage of owned husiness
credit card receivahles:

Tutal receivables 30 days or more
delinquent at year end 2.30

2]
=23
==l

3.87 4.88 5.26
6.38 7.42 1.92

(9]
[
-1

Net principal charge-offs 3.19

(1) Effective January 1, 2006, we adopied 3FAS 123 (R), Share.Besed Payment, using the modified prospective method and hegan recognizing compensation expense
for equity-hased compensation arrangements, including stock options, using a fair value-based method.

(2) The results of the mortgage and leasing businesses are reported as discontinued operations in all periods presented,

(3) Our adoption of Finuncial Aceounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Varighle Interest Entities - An Interpretation of ARB No.
51, ax revised, resulted in the deconsolidation of the subsidiary trust that issued our trust preferred securities cffective December 31, 2003, As a result of the
deconsolidation of that trust beginning December 31, 2003, the balance sheets include subordinated debt pavable 1o preferred secuTities trust and an equity
investment in ibe trust rather than the trust preferced securities. Also, the consolidated income statements include interest expense on subordinated debt
pavable 1o preferred securities trust beginning Jaouary 1, 2004 as compared to periods through December 31, 2003 that included payments on the trus
preferced securities classified as minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiary.

{1) Combined represents net income (loss} ullocahle to sommon stockholders divided by the combined total of Class A and Cluss B weighted average commen shares
outstunding.

(3) Includes federal funds sold and investments available for sale.

(6) Managed statistics are non-GAAP financial measures and represent the sum of owned (GAAF) business credit card statistics und securitized business credit card
statistics. We believe that performunce on a managed basis provides useful supplemental information 1o investors because we retain interests in the securitized
receivables and, therefore, we have a financial interest in aml exposure to the performance of the securitized receivables.

(7) See "Liquidity, Capital Resources and Analysis of Financial Condition” in this 2006 Financial Keview for a recenciliation of managed aesets to on-balunve sheet
assets and a deseription of why management believes the ratio of equity 1o managed assets is useful to investors,

{8) The dividend payout ratio for the year enited December 31, 2002 js negative and, therefore, not meaningful.

N/M - Not Meaninglul

|47
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ABOUT ADVANTA

Advanta is ene of the nation’s Lugest eredit card issuers
{through Advanta Bank Corp.) in the small business market
today, Advanta’s exclusive focus on thiz market, as well as s
sizes, expericnee and commitment o developing meaningful

provhuct offerings and a0 high level of serviee 1atlored 1w the

needs of small businesses. differentiate the company from
other issuers. Tounded i 1951, Advanta has long heen
an innovator in developing and inrodueing many of the
marketing techniques that are common in the  financial

aervices industry today,
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I'T°S SAID THAT OPENING A SMALL BUSINESS IS RISKY.

OUR HIGH-QUALITY
CUSTOMERS

 DISPROVE THAT EVERY SINGLE DAY.
: ‘

WE BEGAN AS A SMALL BUSINESS.

WERE SUCCESSFUL BECAUSE WE

STILL THINK LIKE ONE THE GRE AT;EST

COMPLIMENT
LATER. :ii WE TREAT THEM
LIKE FAMILY.

GOING THE EXTRA MILE TS

SIMPLY THE BEGINNIN G.

THE FOX KNOWS MANY THINGS; ‘
THE HEDGEHOG : LET’S FORECAST
TRENDS

J UST ONE NOT FOLLOW THEM.



